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As one of Pakistan's leading manufacturers,
distributors, and retailers of smnartphones,
AirLink Communication Ltd. has maintained
distinction in the telecom industry since its
creation, Following the successful launch
of the country's largest private sector IPO in
2021 (pioneering an unprecedented
oversubscription of 11,000 million), we are
expanding our endeavors by entering the
TV manufacturing sector, with the aim of
driving significant technological
advancements in this field as well.

With the rapid advancerment of technology
and digital communication globally, AirLink
is dedicated to keeping Pakistani consurmers
not just up-to-date but ahead of emerging
trends. Through our innovative platform and
cutting-edge manufacturing services, our
mission is to enhance the quality of life by
delivering locally produced, affordable
technology to every househoid, thereby
transforrming Pakistan's technological
landscape.

Our values are rooted in integrity, not only in
the quality and design of our products but
also in the core principlas that drive our
organization. We are committed to diversity,
loyalty, inclusivity, accountability and
transparency with our customers and partners,
with innovation always at the forefront of

our mission.
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PERFORMANCE
AT A GLANCE

AirLink has not only achieved phenomenal growth
since its inception but has also expanded its product
offering like none other. Over the past vear, our
company has seen a 25128% growth rate.
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INTRODUCTION



OVERVIEW

AirLink Communication Ltd. is one of the top
names in the telecom sector in Pakistan. We
have achieved this position through consistent
efforts to deliver high-quality and affordable
technology across the country.

ORGANIZATIONAL
(OVERVIEW_

We proudiy partner with top global brands
such as Samsung, Xiaomi, Acer Gadgets Inc.,
Tecno and iPhone. Our operational model
focuses on importing premium raw materials,
which are meticulously assembled locally,
celebrating and enhancing the value of
domestically produced technology.

This journey started with the distribution of
Huawei and Samsung smartphones and has
now progressed to manufacturing the Xiaomi
srmartphones, TV and Tecno smartphones.

Our cutting-edge smartphone production
facility is poised to deliver top-tier products,
extending advanced technology to every
corner of the country.



VISION

To become a global leader in telecormmunication
and technology, driving innovation and excellence
1o establish Pakistan as a recognized technological
hub.

MISSION

To enhance connectivity and improve lives through
high-gquality, affordable preducts, while driving
Pakistan's transformation into a global technological
leader. With a steadfast commitrment o customaer
satisfaction, integrity, and excellence, we aim to sat
industry benchmarks and foster a culture of
continuous improvemeant and innovation.










Airlink Comrnunication Limited is a prominent

player in Pakistan's technology mmunication
sector, excelling in the distribution, il and :
rmanufacturing of mobile phones and varied
electronics. The company has partnered with

leading global brands such as

=r3

delivering innovative products to a broad
consumer market.
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Among the 3-prongs of our corporation's working
medel, we have cultivated a robust and extensive
distribution network that encompasses

16 300
Regional Hubs  Cities

housing thousands of emiployees, wholesalers and
retallers alike. Our company's extensive nationwide
reach asa major distributor of smartphones,
accessories, and digital communication services
cerments our status as a leading force in Pakistan's
telecom industry.

Alrlink is officially partnered with eminent companies
like Sarnsung, Xiaomi and Tecno. Additionally we are
"apple Authorized Reseller” for reselling Apple
Autherized Products in Pakistan. We have also signed
an exclusive distribution and manufacturing contract
with Acer Gadgets Inc. which isa testament to our
comimitment to making Pakistan a technological hub.
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RETAIL

Air Link Communication Ltd. pricles itself on its
expansive nationwide netwoark of retail cutlets,
strategically located to bring cutting-edge technology
closer to our custormers. Our stores are more than
just retail spaces - they are experiential hubs where
innavation meets customer cane.

At Airfink, we understand that choasing the right
smattphone or accessory is a personal decision.
That's why our retail outlets are designed to offer an
immersive experience, where customers can engage
with our wide range of products—from the latest
Samsung and Xiaomi smartphones o Techo devices
and high-quality accessories. Each product on

display is authentic and backed by the assurance

af quality that Alrlink is known for.
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AIRLINK STORE HYDERABAD
Shop # 1, Saddar Cantt, Hyderabad.

SAMSUNG STORE MULTAN
Shop £5, Sharif Near Shell pumnp,
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SAMSUNG STORE BAHAWALPUR
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What sets us apart is our commitment to service
excellence. Qur staff members are not only
well-versed in the latest technology but are also
passionate about helping customers make
informed decisions. Whether it's a question about
product specifications or advice on the best device
to meet your needs, our team is always ready to
assist with a smile.
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In 2021, Air Link Communication Ltd, took a significant
step forward in advancing Palkdstan's technaological
landscape by establishing one of the most advanced
srmartphone manufacturing facilities in the country.

Located in Lahore, this state-of-the-art facility spans an
impressive 250,000 square feet, seamiessly integrating
cutting-edge machinery with skilled hurman expertise
to deliver unparalieled quality and efficiency.

>

Cur facility is designed 1o meet the growing demand
for smarphones and feature phones in Pakistan,
with a production capacity of 8 million handsets
annually. This local assembly opemation has not only
positioned Airlink as a leader in the industry but has
also played a crucial role in job creation, providing
thousands of opportunities for both skilled and
semi-skilled labor acress the region

The establishrment of our manufacturing facility
coincides with the introduction of the Device
Identification, Registration, and Blocking Systern
(DIRBS), a game-changing initiative that has opened
up a market potential of 40 million handsets DIRBS
ensures the authenticity and legality of devices inthe
market, further salidifying the practicality and
profitability of local stnartphone production



At Airlink, we are proud to contribute to the nation’s
econamic growth and technological advancement
Cur rmanufacturing facility stands as a testament o
our carmmitmment to innovation, quality, and the
empowermment of the local worldores, reinforcing our
position as a key player in Pakistan's mpidly evolving
digital landscape.

The company has established a wholly owned
S E L E CT subsidiary, “Select Technologies [Pvt) Limited"
which has launched a cutting-edge smartphone
TECHNOLOGIES mwmthm.émwsm
to the production of mobile phones and related
products for Xiaomi, one of the world's leading
srmartphone brands.







COMPANY HISTORY






Association of Persors ("ACP") and commenced
operations on August 20, 2010 when it introduced
Pakistan's First 3G-enabled Dual-Mode [GSM + EVDO)
Android Tablet and First 30-enabled (GSM+ EVDO)
Androld Smartphone in partnership with PTCL

incorporated on January 2, 2014 to take over the

existing business ofimport, aq:n‘l:cﬁtril:lm

and allied pnch.usbutgn.mt:ymru-k
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acruiring all assets and fiahilities of the Istter on

July, 2018 vide Acquisition Agreement dated

QOctober 2, 2008, Subsequently, Air Link

Communication (Pvt] Limited was converted intoan
\ uniisted public imited company with effect from

Following this Afrfink achieved a significant
millestone by Bsting on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Mnmmmﬁﬁhﬁm




COMPANY
PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Aslam Hayat Piracha
Chmrman / Non-executive Director
Mr. Muzzaffar Hayat Piracha
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui
Independent Director HR & REMUNERATION
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan COMMITTEE
Independent Director

Mr. Aqdus Faraz Tahir Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui
indepandent Director (independent Director}- Chairman
Mrs. Rabiya Muzzaffar Mr. Aqdus Faraz Tahir
Non-executive Birecior {Independent Director)- Member
Syed Nafees Haider Mr. Muzzaffar Hayat Piracha
Executive Directoy [ Chief Executive Officer | - Member

Mr. Amer Latif
{Company Secretary & Head of Legal)- Secretary

Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Nusrat Mahmood

or-axscutive Dirsctor] - Memiber COHPANY SECRETARY

Mr Qasser All

Mr. Sharigue Azim Siddiqui

fIingependent Director) - Member

Mrs Rablya Muzzafiar

Mr. Amer Latif
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e e i Lirmitod of Pakistan
NON-BANKING COMPANY'’S REGISTERED
FINANCIAL INSTITUTE

ADDRESS (HEAD OFFICE)

AirLink Communication

152/1M, Shan Road, Quaid-e-Azam

() ) Raute s O

LEGAL ADVISOR

Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore, Pakistan

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered
Accountants

Punjab Law Associate

FACTORY ADDRESS

152/1M, Shan Road, Quaid-e-Azam
Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,

Lahore, Pakistan

Office Mo. 4, 6th Floor, Askari
Corporate Tower, 75/76/D-1, Main
Boulevard, Gulberg-lll, Lahore, Pakistan
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Airiink Commmunication has transformed technology
and telecommunications landscape in Pakistan,
achieving remarkable growth in the past decade.

By forging strategic alliances with leading global brands,
we've introduced world-class technology to the local
mariket These partnerships have not anly expanded
our product offerings but also bid the groundwork for
technology transfer, fostering a culture of innovation.
From setting up advanced manufacturing facdilities to
creating thousands of jobs, our joumey is marked by
rnilestones that underscore our commitment to
excellence and technological advancement.






GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE
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JIMMY ENGINEER X AIRLINK

= -
THE PEOPLE DF

Vife are honored to support the philanthropic initatives
of renowned artist Jimmy Engineer. His artwork,
recognized globally for its creativity and social impact,
is sold with the primary objective of funding the
education of underprivileged children. Our
collaboration with Jimmy Engineer refiects our
comrnitment to empowering future generations
thraugh education, ensuring that every child has

the opportunity to realize their potential and
contribute to a brighter future.

SOLAR WATER WELLS PROJECT

?’ i Custums Health Carﬂ%

Society Lahore
Solar Water Well

From:
M/s Air Link Communication Ltd

hﬂ March-2024 ‘é
" ‘-‘# L

One of our flagship initiatives is the establishrment

of 17 solar-powered water wells in Thar, a region in
Pakistan grappling with severe water scarcity.

These wells utilize solar energy to provide clean and
sustainable water sources to the local communities,

enhancing their quality of life and fostering
empowerment through improved access to essential
resources.




BHERA COMMUNITY CENTRE

The Bhera Community Centre is a state-of-the-art
facility designed to serve and uplift the local
community. Equipped with both basic and advanced
medical services, the centre plays a crucial role in
providing essential healthcare tothearea. In
addition to medical care, the centreis 3 hub for
health awareness programs, educational courses,
and vocational training, empowering individuals
with the skills they need for a better future. The
community halls are actively used for a variety of
social, cultural, recreational, and civic activities,
fostering a sense of unity and belonging.

SUNDAR STEM SCHOOL

£
e Seestar RS St

- g B
o A
oy ——

Tl e B

S A S S p—
AR e e wE A e b e s e s

el i e R )
— F r e mmms o m e
S ——

AL Airlink, we believe in the power of education to
transform lives and communities. As part of our
ongoing commitment to fostering educational
oppartunities in Pakistan, we were honored to
donate 154 Chramebooks to Sundar STEM School in
Lahore. This initiative aims to support students in
their pursuit of knowledge, equipping them with
essential tools to navigate the digital world. By
contributing to Sundar STEM School's efforts in
promoting STEM education, we hope to empower
studentsto realize their potential and to play a part,
however small, in building a brighter future for

OUr Country.
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STRENGTHS

Air Link exhibited robust financial performance,
maintaining strong gross profit margins and
improving net profit ratios despite macroeconomic
challenges,

Solid local manufacturing capabilities have reduced
reliance on Complete Built-Up (CBUY) imports.

Expanded product portfolic and extensive

nationwide distribution network ensure effective
market penetration and increased market share.

WEAKNESSES

Continued dependency on imported components
for mobile phone production, introducing risks
related to import restrictions and supply chain
disruptions.



O OPPORTUNITIES

Crowing demand for locally assembled products
presents opportunities to expand manufacturing
capabilities with new product lines and explore
potential export markets.

The rise of e-commerce platforms and digital
payment solutions offers new channelstoreach a
broader customer base and enhance sales.

Strategic partnerships, including the addition of
new brands and the expansion of the distribution
network into untapped segments, provide

promising growth prospects.

& THREATS

Ongoing economic volatility, including unexpected
currency fluctuations and inflationary pressures,
could impact consumer purchasing power and
demand.

The potential for unforeseen changes in governmesnt
policy, such as the imposition of import duties or
restrictions, rernains a concern that could disrupt
opertions
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MR. ASLAM HAYAT
PIRACHA

CHAIRMAN / NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Hailing from a renowned business family
of Sargodha, Mr. Aslarm Hayat Piracha,

is our company’s distinguished chairman.
His practice in the leadership role spans
aver five decades of experience with a
central focus in trading.

His journey began as a trader in the

late 19&0s involving the import and

export of textile goods. He is a natural
visionary - launching his business

career in the early 1980s by establishing

a textile manufacturing unit with the
installation of knitting machines. He is

a goal-focused and self-driven professional,
adept at building and enabling
management teams to enhance corporate
profitability and operational efficiency.

His ability to cultivate lasting amiable

and professional relationships with
customers and suppliersgrants him a
significant competitive edge in the industry.

Along with being an excellent businessman,
he actively supports social welfare

through Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) initiatives and welfare activities

of the company, and is involved in
developing the Bhera Community

Center - a state-of-the-art facility

serving medical and community needs.



MR. MUZZAFFAR HAYAT
PIRACHA

CGROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER JEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Muzzaffar Piracha is the visionary founder
and CEO of Air Link Communication Ltd,

a company he established In 2010 alongside

his Iate brother, Mr. Moazzam Pimcha.
Under his dynamic leadership, Airlink has
rapidly evolved ints one of Pakistan's
largest and most influential distributors,
manufacturers, and retailers of
srmartphones. What began as a modest
venture with a FY12 revenues of

PKR 143 million has now become a
powerhouse in the telecommunications
industry, with boasting PKR 129,742
millien in revenues by Fy24,

Muzzaffar's ability to identify and
capitalize on emerging opportunities has
enabled Airlink to forge strategic
partnerships with some of the world's
leading technology companies, including

Acer Gadget Inc, Samsung. Xiaomi,
Tecno, and iPhone. These alliances have
not only bolstered Airlink’s market
position but have also played a significant
role in making cutting-edge technology
accessible to millions of Pakistanis

With over 25 years of extensive experience
in the business world, Muzzaffar is widely
recognized for his strategic insight and
deep expertise in the industry. His
leadership extends beyond Airlink, as he
seryes as the Senior Vice Chairman of the
Pakistan Mobile Phone Manufacturer
Association. In this capacity, he plays a
pivotal rele in advancing and shaping the
mobile phone manufacturing sector in
Pakistan, contributing to the industry’s
growth and developrment on a national

scale,



MRS. RABIYA MUZZAFFAR
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Rabiya Muzzaffar earmed her Master’s
in Business Administration (MBA) from
NUST University, Islamabad, with a

focus on Marketing and Human Capital
Management

She applies her plethora of skills to
optimize efficiency, enhance employee
satisfaction, and strengthen retention
strategies. With a background in
outdoor media and targeted marketing
campaigns, she effectively connects the
company with key audiences. Passionate
about workforce developrment, Mrs.
Muzzaffar is committed to ongoing
training and growth to prepare teams
for the challenges of 3 dynamic
business environment. Perpetually
driven to learn more, she has also
enriched her expertise by attending
various conferences and seminars on

human capital management



SYED NAFEES HAIDER
DIRECTOR SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Mr. Haider, who embarked on his
professional journey in 2003, has been

a comerstone of Air Link Communication
Ltd_ since its inception. As the Director
Sales & Distribution, he leads the
company's sales and distribution network
with a sharp focus on strategy and
policy-making.

Mr. Haider's extensive experience and

deep understanding of market dynamics
make him a key player in shaping

AirLink's distribution network. His efforts
are centered on optimizing the
distribution channel's profitability through
meticulous market analysis and strategic
planning. He is instrumental in developing
both strategic and operastional plansto
meet and exceed sales targets. Additionally,
Mr. Haider plays a critical role in
coordinating product launches, working
closely with the sales and marketing teams
to ensure seamless execution.

Before joining AirLink, Mr. Haider gained valuable
experience in the stock brokerage and tourism
industries, further enriching his expertise and
contributing to his well-rounded approach to
leadership in sales and distribution.



MR. SHARIQUE AZIM SIDDIQUI
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Sharigue Siddiquil is the Chief Executive
Officer of Pakistan International Bulk
Terminal Limited (PIBT), the country’s

first state-of-the-art terminal dedicated

to handling cement, clinker, and coal.
Under his visionary leadership, PIBT has
established itself as a critical infrastructure
assel, supporting Pakistan's industrial
growth.

Mr. Siddiqui's association with the

Marine Group of Companies dates back
10 1997, where he played a pivotal role

in various venturas within the group.

His notable achievernents include leading
the successful bid for PIBTL's terminalin
2007, whiere his strategic planning and
execution were instrumental in bringing
the project to fruition,

From 2002 to 2012, Mr. Siddigui served

as Project Director and Chief Operating
Officer at Pakistan Internaticnal

Container Terminal Ltd. (PICT), where

he oversaw the comprehensive project
planning, coordination, and
impiementation of the container terminal.

Mr. Siddigui holds a Bachelor's and
Master's degree in Economics from Tufts
University, Boston, USA.



MR. HUSSAIN KULI KHAN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Khan, Chief Executive Officer of The

General Tyre and Rubber Company of

Pakistan Limited, brings a wealth of managerial
and leadership expertise to the organization.

His leadership acumen is well recognized,
having served as President and Vice President
of the Landhi Association of Trade and
Industry (LATI) in Karachi. Mr. Khan's financial
and strategic insights were honed during his
tenure as Executive Director of Finance at
JDM Textile Mills Limited, a pivotal role

in his early career.

In 2003, Mr. Khan's was elected Chairman
of the All Pakistan Textile Mills Association
(APTMA) for the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
region, subsegquently serving as Vice
Chairman of APTMA's Central Body.

Mr. Khan holds a degree in Business
Administration from Gettysburg College,
USA, and is also a Certified Director,
accredited by the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance [PICG).



MR. AQDUS FARAZ TAHIR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Tahir holds a Master's degree in Technology
Management from Griffith University, Brisbane,
Australia, and is a seasoned telecom
procurement consultant with extensive
experience in the industry. He has played a
pivatal role in the procurement, logistics,

and implementation of telecom networks

for PTCL and Ufone, consistently aligning

these operations with Intemational best
practices.

Throughout his career, Mr. Tahir has heid
senior procurement positions at PTCL
and Wone, where he was responsible for
overseeing procurement systems and
logistics. As an Advisor to PTCL, he was
instrumental in setting up advanced
procurement systems and managing
the integration of the latest technologies
into traditional supply chains.



MANAGEMENT
TEAM

NUSRAT MEHMOOD
CFo

Mr. Mahmood is a distinguished Management
Accountant and Chemical Engineer

with 23 years of experience across industries,
including textiles, fertilizers, and
telecommunications. As a fellow member

of the Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Pakistan, he has

consistently demonstrated excellence in

driving corporate cperations and executing
investment strategies. His contributions

1o developing policies, internal control

systems, and Enterprise Resource Management
systems have been instrumental in enhancing
organizational performance. Mr. Mahmood's
unique blend of technical and financial expertise
positions him as a key asset in our strategic
initiatives.

ADNAN AFTAB
CEO SELECT TECHNOLOGIES

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSITALY 2F 405 i)

Mr. Aftab is a seasoned professional with

over 30 years of experience in manufacturing,
holding a Master’s in Manufacturing
Engineering and a Bachelor's in Mechanical
Engineering from N.E.D University of
Engineering & Technoloqy, Karachi. He

has played pivotal roles at leading companies
such as Dawlance Pvt Ltd,, Pak Elektron

Ltd., and Waves Singer Pakistan Ltd.

Mr. Aftab also serves as an independent
director for Tariq Glass Ltd. His leadership in
corporate performance and organizational
expansion projects has consistently

delivered significant market advantages




MR. ASIM MAHMOOD
CENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Asim Mahmuood brings over 26 years

of experience in project management,
rmarket strategy, product management,
and sales and distribution channel
development, with a strong focus on the
cellular and telecommunications industry.
He has successfully launched and
managed national distribution channels
for broadband wireless and GSM products,
working with leading companies like PTCL,
Warid, Zong, and Jazz Wireless Broadband.
Mr. Mahmood holds a Bachelor's degree

in Computer Science from the National
College of Computer Sciences and an

MBA from the Asian Management
Development Centre (AMDC),

MR. QAISER ALI
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Mr. Qaiser is a highly skilled professional
with a decade of experience in internal
audit, accounting, and finance, spanning
both the public and private sectors.

He holds multiple professional certifications,
including CICA, CIPFA, CIA, APFA, CAF,

and M.Corm. His expertise includes
implementing internal controls, conducting
audits, and financial analysis, with

hands-on experience in various ERP
solutions. Mr. Qaiser's strong technical
financial competency, combined with
exceptional interpersonal and organizational
skills, consistently drives efficiencies that
align with the company's objectives.




MR. AMER LATIF
COMPANY SECRATERY & HEAD OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

Mr. Amer Latif brings over 23 years of
experience in Company Secretarial functions,
Corporate Law, and Regulatory Affairs. He
is an active member of the Lahore Bar
Association and Lahore High Court Bar
Association. As Company Secretary and
Head of Legal Affairs, Mr. Amer ensures
compliance with statutory regulations
and manages complex litigation, working
with key regulatory bodies like SECP, CCP,
CDC, and PSX His extensive experience
includes roles with the SECP's Company
Law Division and METRO Cash & Carry
Pakistan, significantly enhancing the
company’s strategic compliance efforts.




CHAIRMAN REVIEW
REPORT

e

Dear Stakeholders,

It is my privilege to present the Annual Report for
the financial year ending June 30, 2024. Despite
persistent challenges, Pakistan's econamy has
shown signs of a measured recovery, and our
company has navigated these headwinds with
resilience and strategic focus.

[ extend my heartfelt appreciation to the Board
of Directors for their steadfast leadership and
strategic foresight during these demanding
times. Their unwavering commitment to steering
1he company toward sustainable growth and
maximizing shareholder value has been
instrumental. By leveraging their market insights
and experience, they have successfully translated
our vision and core values into tangible results.



This fiscal year, the company achieved a net profit
after tax of R=. 3059 miillion, translating to

earnings per share (EPS) of Rs. 7.74. Despite the
challenging economic environment, we maintained
our profitability and are pleased to announce a

final dividend of Rs.4 per share of Rs. 10 each,

as recommended by the Board. These results
underscore our ability to convert challenges into
opportunities, reinforcing our strategic position

in the market.

The Board has consistently emphasized the
integration of the highest standards of corporate
governance into the core of our company's
culture. This dedication has fostered a professional
and ethical business environment, ensuring
excellence in every aspect of our operations.

A robust risk management fmmework,
complemented by strong internal controls and
audit functions, has been established to align our
day-to-day activities with our strategic objectives.

| sincerely appreciate the dedication and
commitment of our team, business partners, and
stakeholders. Their tireless efforts and
collaboration have been pivotal in driving our
exceptional achisvements. As we move forward,

I am confident that we are well-equipped to
sustain our growth, united as a strong and
successful tearmn.

Thank you for your continued trust and support.

Sincerely,

e

Aslarm Hayat Piracha
Chairman
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CEO REVIEW
REPORT

Dear Shareholders, Partners, and Stakeholders,

Itis with great pricle and optimism that | present
the Annual Report of Air Link Communication
Limited for the fiscal year 2024. This year has been
transformative, marked by significant
achieverments and strategic advancements that
have solidified our position as a leader in
Pakistan's mobile industry.

MNavigating Economic Challenges

In fiscal year 2024, Pakistan witnessed a modest
economic recovery, with GDP growth reaching
2.4%. The government's disciplined policy
rmanagement, particularly in fiscal and monetary
matters, played a critical rale in restoring market
confidence and spurring growth across multiple
sectors. The sharp reduction in inflation, from
38.0% to 11.8% year-over-year, coupled with
improvements in the current account balancs,
created a more stable economic environment,
which positively influenced our business cperations.



Strategic Partnerships and Global Engagement

A highlight of this year was the historic visit to
China, where we accompanied the Prime Minister
of Pakistan, This visit marked a significant milestone
in our technolagical collaboration with China,
culminating in the signing of a groundbreaking
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU]) with

IMIKI Corporation. This partnership sets the stage
for the manufacturing of smart wearable devices

in Pakistan, enhancing our product portfolio and
contributing to the country's technological
advancerment. This collaboration underscores our
commitment to innovation and our vision of
becoming a leading player in the global tech arena.

Financizal Performance: A Testament to Resilience

Amidst a challenging economic landscape, Air Link
Communication Limited has demonstrated remarkable
resilience and strategic faresight. Our strong

financial performance in FY 2024 is a testament

to our ability to adapt and thrive. We achieved a

net revenue of approximately PKR 56,282 million,
reflecting our rabust market presence and operational
efficiency. Our net profit margin increased by 1.28%
compared 1o the previous year. The company posted
a net profit after tax of PKR 3,052 million, with
earnings per share ([EPS) standing at PKR 7.74.

These results affirm our commitment to delivering
sustained value to aur shareholders.

Looking Ahead: Embracing the Future with
Confidence

As we move forward, Air Link Communication
Limited is well-positioned to capitalize on
emerging opportunities in the technology sector.
Our strategic partnership with Xiaomi TV and Acer
Gagdets Inc. will cantinue to drive our growth

and success. We remain dedicated to delivering
value to our shareholders and making a positive
contribution to Pakistan's economic landscape.

| extend my deepest gratitude to our shareholders,
partners, and employees for their unwavering
support. Togethier, we will continue to explore

new horizons and strengthen our legacy In the
years to come,

Thank you for your continued trust and confidence
in Air Link Communication Limited.

Sincerely,

uzzaffar Hayat Piracha
CEOQ, Air Link Communication Limited
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AIRLINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding

As at June 30, 2024

Directors, Chief Exscutive Officer, and their spoose{s) and minor children

SHARIQUE AZIM SIDBIOUI i 1 .00
HLUSSAIN KLILI KHAN i 1 000
AQDUIS FARAF TAHIR 1 1 0.00
RARNYA MUZZAFFAR i 125 £.00
ASLAM HAYAT PIRACHA h 138 .00
MUZZAFFAR HAYAT PIRACHA 1 78BS E03 2.00
Sponsors
RISHAAL PARATHA (MINDR) THROUGH SALEHA BASIT {GLARDIAN) i 20317, 500 514
ROSHANAY PARACHA [ MINOR) THROLUGH SALEHA BASIT (GUARDIAN) 1 20217 500 514
MAILA PARACHA [ MINGRE) THROUGH SALEHA BASIT {GUARDGIAN] 1 20,317 500 514
SANIA PARACHA [ MINCR] THROUGH SALEHA BASIT [GUHARDIAN) h 2337500 514
YASIH HAYAT FIRACHA i 85 782,500 2433
MUZZAFFAR HAYAT PIHACHA i 08,684 738 2497
SHLEHA BASIT 1 14 517500 157
Associsted companies, undertakings and related parties - - -
HMIT and ICP * - -
Banks Development Financial Institutions: Non-Banking Financial Institutions 7 4,550,015 115
Insurance Comparies 3 7.023678 178
Modarabas and Mutual Funds a1 11 781 665 208
General Public
a Local 5,462 31352 504 783
b. Foreign ik 571547 0.14
Foreign Companies 4 23735505 575
Others 56 18 100620 483
Tatals 5,797 395,268,231 100.00
TASIR HAYAT FIRACHA 9% 782,500 2423

MUZZAFFAR HAYAT DIRACHA 08,684 738 2457




REPORT OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

on Adherence to the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Covernance), Regulations, 2019,

The Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the
Company during the year ended June 30, 2024, and reports that:

- The Company has issued a "Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019" which has also been reviewed and
certified by the External Auditors of the Company.

- The Company has prepared a “"Code of Conduct™ and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures. Equitable treatment of shareholders has also been ensured.

- The Board has developed a Vision / Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

- The Company has complied with all the coerporate and financial reperting requirements.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied. All core & other applicable
international Accounting Standards were followed in preparation of financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis, for the financial year ended June 30, 2024, which
present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in
aequities of the Company.

- The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019 and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed,

- The Chief Executive and the CFO have reviewed the financial statements of the Company
and the Directors’' Report.

- Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and
adequate accounting recards have been maintained by the Company in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2017. The financial statements comply with the requirerments

of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent
with Management processes and adequate for shareholder needs.

- Directors, CEO and executives or their spouses do not hold any interest in the shares of
the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

« Closed periods were duly deterrnined and announced by the Company, precluding the
Directors, the Chief Executive and executives of the Company from dealing in

Company shares, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of interim /final results,
distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, which could materially affect the
share market price of Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all business
information.



INTERNAL AUDIT

» The internal control framework has been effectively implermented through an independent
in-house internal Audit function established by the Board which is independent of the
External Audit function.

- The committee meets at least once every quarter and assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial
information to shareholders.

- The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the
Committee. The Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings taking appropriate
action or bringing the matters to the Board's attention where required.

- The Company’s system of internal control is adequate and effective. The Audit Committee
has ensured the achievernent of operational, compliance, risk management, financial
reporting and control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the
shareholders wealth atall levels within the Company.

- Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency
and contribution to the Company’s ohjectives, including a reliable financial reporting system
and compliance with laws and regulations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

- The statutory Auditors of the Company, BDO Ebrahim, Chartered Accountants have completed
their Audit assignment of the "Company's Financial Statements” and the “Statement of
Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019" for
the financial year ended June 30, 2024 and shall retire on the conclusion of the Tith Annual
General Meeting.

- The statutory Auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan. They are also registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan.

» The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of the Auditors has thereby been ensured. The Audit
Committee had a meeting with the external auditors without the presence of the CFO

and the Head of Internal Audit. The Auditars attended the General Meeting of the Company
during the Year and have confirmed attendance of the Tith Annual General Meeting scheduled
for Sep 27, 2024 and have indicated their willingness to continue as Auditors.

- Being eligible for reappointment as Auditors of the Company, the Audit Committee
recommends their reappointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2025.

- The Firm has no financial or other relationship of any kind with the Company except that of
External Auditors

For and on behalf of Audit Committes

Lahore Hussain Kuli Khan
September 2, 2024 Chairman-Audit Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Air link
Communication Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The respansibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries
of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with
the Regulations.

As 3 part of our audit of the financial statements, we are requirad to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not reguired to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate govemance procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place befare the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only reguired and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committes.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Compamy's compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Rezulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2024,

Further we highlisht below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the statement of Compliance:

Paragraph Reference Deseription

Il 10(4) (2ovi) Anti-harassment policy for protection against harassment at the workplace

LAHORE Boe G4, ..L....._. -~ ¢
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATED: September 05, 2024 Engagement Partner: 5ajjad Hussain Gill

UDIN: CR202410087daHuhOkmMY

RO Elyaliim & Co. Chortensd Accountanks
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Statement of Compliance
The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of company: Air Link Communication Limited (the Company)
Year ending: 30th June 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following: -

a, Male: six (6)
b. Female: one (1)

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

cncon E—

independent Dot mirsman Kl Khmn
Andus Farmas Tahir
Shamigue &zim Sisdigui
[ o zmscunion Glesciaes || A Hayat Mieschi
Habiya surzritar
e [
Mafoes Maidor
ﬁ thahiva Muczaffar

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this Company;

4, The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Cormnpany. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program during the vear from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan for the following: -

i. MName of Director: Agdus Faraz Tahir

i MName of Executive: Adnan Aftab (CM Manufacturing)
M Irfan Chaudhary [(Head of Retail)



The Director’s Training of the remaining Directors is under consideration and hopefully will
complete in next year.

10. The Board has in prior years approved appointment of chief financial officer, company
secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions
of ernployrnent and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

1. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

12 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:-

At Cormrnittes M. Huzzmin Kull Khan (Chairman)

. SHamigen Axim Siddiqui {Member]
M. Apbiiya Mo (Mermbor)

HH and Bermuncration Mr. Shaviguee Azim Siddiaul (Chatrman)
Wiz, Whiceraifae barpat fimcha [Momber}
Mr. Agodus Farat Tehir [Membor}

3. The terms of reference of the aforesaid cormmmittees have been formed, documentad and
advised to the committee for compliance;

4. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following, -

a) Audit Committes; 4 Quarterly Meetings
b) HR and Remuneration Committee 1 Annual Meeting

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have canfirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and
all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) '
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with us have not been appeinted to
provide othier services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with.

9. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6, 7, B, 27, 32,
33 and 36 are below:
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Signature [s)
ASLAM HAYAT PIRACHA
Chairman






DIRECTOR’'S REPORT



INTRODUCTION
Dear Stake Holders,

The Beard of Directors of Air Link Communication
Limited are pleased to present the standalone and
consolidated audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, along
with Auditors’ Report thereon.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The fiscal year 2023-24 witnessed a gradual
recovery for Pakistan's economy, overcoming the
severe challenges faced in the prior year. The
economic landscape, which was previously strained
by import restrictions, natural calamities, political
instability, and the global repercussions of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict, showed visible signs of
improvement due to strategic interventions and
economic reforms.

GDP grew by 238% in FY24, a notable reversal
from the contraction of 0.2% in FY23. The resurgence
In economic activity was also evident in the
industrial sector, which recorded a growth of 1.21%,
with manufacturing output increasing by 2.47%.
Further reflecting the improving economic
conditions, the Pakistan rupee appreciated by
nearly 3.0% against the US dollar during the first
eleven months of FY24. The Pakistan Stock
Exchange also exhibited robust growth, with the
index surging by B2.8%. This positive trend was
largely powered by the successful implementation
of the IMF's Stand-by Arrangement pregram and
stabilization in the economic environment.

Mobile phones sector has also benefitted from
the overall economic improvements and the sales
volumes significantly grew and so as profitability.
This achievernent underscores the positive impact
of the removal of import restrictions and the
broader economic recovery. Statistics reveals that
averall mobile phone imports (SKD/CBU) surged
by 214% to $1.62 billion in the first 10 months of
FY24, compared to $516.5 million during the same
period last year, major portion of the imports was
of SKD import and local assembling.



THE CROUP AND ITS
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The group comprises of Air Link Communication

Limited [(Holding Company] and its subsidiary
i.e. Select Technologies {Private) Limited.

Air Link Communication Limited is engaged in

the business of manufacturing, distribution,

retail and after sale services of various brands of
mobile phones and allied accessories. Select
Technologies (Private) Limited is currently engaged
in the business of manufacturing and sale of
various models of Xlaomi moblle phones,

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

A brief financial analysis is presented as under:

In a supportive business environment, various
external factors such as economic stability,
favorable government policies, access to funding,
and a strong market demand create conditions
that help businesses thrive.

Standalone Performance

T T YT —
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The resurgence in economic activity, alongside
the Company’s strategic initiatives, led to a notable
improverment in financial perforrmance. The
Company achieved a net revenue of PKR 56.28
Billion reflecting a growth of 161.73% as compared
to the previous year revenue of PKR Z1.50 Billion.
The profit before tax and net profit after tax
increased to 5.719% and 5.44% as compared to

331% and 4.16% of last year, respectively.

The group achieved consolidated net revenue of
PKR 129.74 Billion reflecting a growth of 251.28%

as compared 1o the previous year's net revenue

of PKR 36.93 Billion. The profit before tax and net.
profit after tax increased 1o 432% and 3.57% as
compared to 235% and 2.60% of last year,
respectively, highlighting the Company’s resilience,
effective cost management and demonstrating
the success of its operational strategies in a
recovering economic landscape.

This growth resulted fromm a combination of factors
such as improved customer acquisition, higher
product demand, expanded market reach and
successful business strategies. This increase in
revenue s a direct reflection of how well the
company leveraged the favorable conditions to
enhance its performance and scale its business.

@ ll FUTURE PROSPECTS

The financial year 2023-24 marked a significant
turnaround for the group, as the business
environment showed remarkable improverments
as compared to the previous year. The easing of
import restrictions, coupled with currency
stabilization and a reduction in inflation, created

a mare favorable operating environment. This shift
allowed the Company 1o not anly sustain but also
enhance its operations, particularly in local
manufacturing and assembly.

Looking ahead, the group is ready to capitalize on
positive economic trends. By focusing on operational
efficiencies and expanding local manufacturing,
aims to achieve stronger financial performance

next year. The Board is optimistic about continued
econamic stability, further profitability and
continuous expansion in products base.



- COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF
'—F DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
3

Air Link Communication Limited

In line with the requirements, the Company
Board of Directors is represented by Independent,
Non-Executive and Executive Directors with
gender diversity.

Total Number of Directors

Male-6
Female-1
Composition of the Board:
Indepondent Diroctomn Piumazin Wl whan Rtermbes
Asrhues Eiarze Tahiz [Fp———
fnarigue Azim Siddigu Mamb= [P ——
Won-Escoutier Directors Zstam Hayal Firscha
tiakiya W urreffas kdermbor
ELarzutive Brecteora [ ce=fEnr Hiayat Plrncha Il FPEEEiA
mMafoss Hakder Il

Select Technologies (Private) Limited

The Board consists of five directors (Male 04, Fematle 01).
The present directors of the compoany are:

Mr. Muzzaffar Hayat Piracha, Mr. Adnan Aftab,

Mr. Nafees Haider, Mr. Amir Mahmood and Ms. Hina Sarwat.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commitiee supports the Board in its
oversight dutles, particularly in reviewing and
reporting both financial and non-financial information
to shareholders, overseeing the internal control
systermn, managing risks, and monitoring the audit
process. The Commiittee has the autonomy to request
information from management and consult directly
with external auditors or advisors as deemed necessary.
It consists of three members—iwo Independeant
Directors and one Non-Executive Director—thie
Committee is chaired by an Independent Director.



In compliance with the Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
["the Code 2019"), the Audit Committee ensures
coordination between external auditors and the
Head of Internal Audit, in the absence of
management Additionally, the Committee reviews
quarterly, haifyearly, and annual financial
statements, as well as the internal audit plan,
significant audit findings, and recommendations
of the internal audit department.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company recognizes the pivotal role that its
Human Resources (HR) department playsin its
overall success. The unwavering dedication and
commitment of the HR team have been key 1o
achieving exceptional outcomes and overcoming
rmarket challenges. Their diverse responsibilities,
including policy development, employee growth,
and labor relations, demonstrate their significant
impact on the organization's development and
progress. The HR Committee is composed of three
members: one executive director and two
non-executive directors, with an independent
director serving as the Committee's Chairman.

DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE

During the period under review, four (4) Board
rneatings, four (04) Audit Committee meetings

and one (01) Human Resource and Remuneration
(HR&R) Committee meetings were held. Attendance
by each Director of the respective

Board/Sub - Committees meetings was as follows:
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Your Company is committed to good corporate
governance. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility in respect of the Corporate and
Financial Reporting Framework.

The Directors confirm that:

1. The Financial Statements prepared by the
management of the Company present its state o
f affairs fairly, the results of its operations, cash
flows, and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts have been
maintained by the Company.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the prepamation of the
financial statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4, There are no doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

5. There has been no material departure from the
best practices of the Code of Corporte
Governance, as detailed in the listing regulations
of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

6. Thie system of internal control is sound in design
and has been effectively implementad and
monitored.

7. International Financial Reporting Standards,
as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed
in the preparation of the financial statements;
and any departure thereof has been adequartely
disclosed and explained.

RELATIONS WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company remains committed to building
and maintaining strong, mutually beneficial
relationships with key stakeholders, including
regulatory bodies such as the Pakistan Stock
EBExchange and SECP, as well as financial
institutions and business partners.



Throughout the review period, these relationships
have been consistently positive and cooperative.
This commitment refiects the Company's dedication
to upholding ethical and responsible business
practices, which are vital for achieving long-term
success and sustainability.

TALENT ACQUISITION

The Company prioritizes hiring the right individuals
for each role, ensuring alignment with our
organizational vision and values. We recognize
that talent acquisition is a complex endeavor in
today’s dynamic market; however, having a
dedicated and skilled team focused on attracting
top talent is invaluable. We understand that our
people are our greatest asset and acknowledge
the critical importance of each individual's rale in
contributing to the organization's success. By
developing people strategies that foster growth
and enable employees to reach their full potential,
we ensure that our workforce thrivesin a
fast-paced environment.

To promote diversity, equity, and inclusion (DESI),

the company has taken several proactive measures,
These include setting clear DES&I goals, fostering

an inclusive workplace culture, and implernenting
training programs that emphasize the importance

of diversity and equitable treatment. Recruitment
practices are designed to attract diverse talent, and
the company has established mentorship and
development programs to support underrepresented
groups. Furthermore, the company regularly

reviews its DE&I initiatives 1o ensure they align with
best practices and make meaningful progress in
creating a more inclusive environment. These efforts
not enly contribute to a positive workplace culture
but also enhance the company’s ability to innovate
and respond to the needs of a diverse customer base.

The earnings per share of your Company for the
year ended June 30, 2024, was PKR 7.74 in
comparison to PKR 2.33 reported last year. The
Consolidated earnings per share was PKRT.70 in
comparison of PKR 250 of last year.



CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting
the financial position of the Company have
cccurred at the end of the financial year to which
the statement of financial position relates and
the date of Directors’ Report, except as disclosed
in the financial statements

DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The company hasimplemented a remuneration
system for directors aimed at incentivizing them
to enhance business performance, with a focus
on both short-term results and long-term
corporate value growth. This systemn Is formalized
and approved by the Board of Directors through
the "Remuneration Policy for Directors and
Members of Senior Management,” which details
the structure of directors' compensation. The
policy underscores the imponance of enhancing
corporate value as a critical performance indicator.
Owverall, the rernuneration system is designed to
align director incentives with the company's
strategic objectives and financial success. The key
features of this system include:

- The Company will not pay any remuneration
1o its non-executive and Independent directors
except as meeting fee for attending the Board
meetings.

- The remuneration of a Director for attending
meetings of the Board of Directors or its Committizes
shall from time to tirme be determined and

approved by the Board of Directors

- A Director shall be provided or reimbursed for all
travelling, boarding, lodging and other expenses
incurred by him for attending meetings of the
Board, its Committees and/or General Meetings
of the Company.



ADEQUACY OF
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Management of the group is committed to
upholding strong corporate governance through

a well-defined and effectively implemented system
of checks and balances, ensuring the provision

of transparent, accurate, and timely financial
information. The Board of Directors has established
a robust systemn of internal controls, including
affective financial controls, which are enforced
across all levels of the companies

Kev elernents of this systern include:

Effective System of Internal Controls:

These controls consist of processes, procedures,

and policies designed to ensure efficient operations,
asset pratection, and the accuracy of financial
information.

Orderly Business Operations:

Internal controls are in place to ensure that the
companies conduct its business in an organized
and efficient manner, adhering to established
procedures.

Asset Protection:

The companies are dedicated to safeguarding its
assets by implementing measures 1o prevent
theft, fraud, and other forms of asset loss or misuse,

Accuracy and Reliability of Records:

The internal controls ensure that financial records

are accurate and reliable, which is essential for
informed decision-making and regulatory compliance.

Board Oversight:

The Board of Directors is actively involved in
overseeing internal controls, ensuring their
adequacy and effectiveness, This oversight may
be conducted directly by the Board or through its
committees, such as the audit committes,

Regular Review:

The Board regularly reviews the company's

financial operations and overall financial position,
including the examination of interim accounts,
reports, profitability reviews, and other financial

and statistical data. This continuous monitaring

heips the Board stay informed about the company’s
financial health and supports sound decision-making.



All transactions with related parties arising in

the normal course of business are carried out on
an unbiased, arm's length basis at normal
commercial terms and conditions, under the
Company's Related Party policy. The company has
made no related party transaction other than
disclosed in financial statements.

HEALTH SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENT

Our company has consistently focused on achieving
excellence and continuous improvement. Our

core objective is to uphold integrity, transparency
and a deep respect for fundamental human

rights and essential labor principles in every aspect
of our operations. We are fully committed to
maintaining the highest standards in health, safety,
and environmeantal (HSE) matters to protect the
well-being of our employees and the communities
in which we operate, Our safety protocols in
assembly lines and warehouses across Pakistan
reflect our vision of creating a hazard-free environment,
prioritizing both the welfare of our workforce and
the preservation of the environment

QOur top priority is to ensure a safe workplace for

our employees. We rigorously conduct risk
assessments and implement preventive measures
aimed at achieving zero accidents and minimizing
environmental impact. Every accident or near miss
is thoroughly investigated to identify root causes
and prevent recurrence. Additionally, we have
intensified our focus on fire safety by upgrading
firefighting equipment, enhancing training
programs, and conducting regular fire and evacuation
drills to ensure preparedness in case of emergencies.



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and a Director have endorsed the financial
statements of the Company for the financial year
2024 after approval of the Board. The auditors,

BOO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants,

audited the financial statements and have expressad
an unmoadified opinion on the financial statements.

CODE OF
CONDUCT

The Cormpany’s Code of Conduct establishes

ethical standards covering various areas, including
conflicts of interest, employee rights, and fraud
prevention. It promotes a culture of honesty,

integrity, and transparency throughout the company’s
operations, The Code offers clear guidelines for
interactions with stakeholders, including customers,
suppliers, shareholders, and partners. Senior
management is responsible for the daily implementation
and oversight of the Code to ensure compliance.

| _q AUDITORS

M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants,
have audited the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Being eligible, they have offered themselves for
reappointrment for the next financial year ending
June 30, 2025. Upon recommendation of the Audit
Cornmittee, the Board recommends appointing
M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants
as the statutory auditors of the Company for the
year ending June 30, 2025, subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.




@% DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have recommendad a final
cash dividend for the financial year ended June
30, 2024, at the rate of 40%, ie. PKR 4 pershare

of PKR 10/- each, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL
EXCHEQUER AND ECONOMY
OF PAKISTAN

Buring the year, the group contributed a sum of
PKR 1,714.50 million to the national exchequer by
way of income tax, sales tax, custom duties and
other levies.

®

—F— PATTERN OF

’%‘ SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024
and its disclosure, as required by the Code of
Corporate Govemance Is annexed with this report.

SOCIAL CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITIES

The company strongly believes in its responsibility
towards community at large and has taken

various steps in the area of education, health,

gender equality and the natural environment.

During the year, company made generous donations
as reported in Note no31.3 to the financial statements.



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTY FACING THE
COMPANY

The company has established a formal risk
management framework to assess the various
risks it faces within the broader political and
macroeconomic environment This comprehensive
system identifies risks across multiple categories
including strategic, regulatory, environmental,
financial, operational, and sustainability all of which
are tied to the company's business activities.

These risks are thoroughly evaluated by the
mMmanagement committee in alignment with
departmental goals, objectives, and performance
metrics. Appropriate strategies are then developed
and implemented to mitigate the potential
adverse effects of identified risks.

Financial risks, which could lead to financial losses
for the company, are detailed in Note 40 of the
accompanying financial statements. These
include market risk, interest rate risk, currency
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk.

SUBSEQUENT
EVENTS

There are no other material changes, and
commitments affecting the Company's financial
position have occurred between the end of the
financial year of the Company and the date of
the auditor's Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Beard of Directors extends heartfelt gratitude
to the management and staff of the Company for
their unwavering commitment and tireless efforts
throughout the year. \We also wish to express our
sincere appreciation, on behalf of both the Board
and all Company employees, to our valued customers,
distributors, stockists, dealers, and banking partners
for their cantinued trust and confidence in our
organization. We look forward to their ongoing
support and active involvement in driving the
Company's growth in the years to come.

Chief Executive Officer Director
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CODE OF
CONDUCT

Our Employes Code of Conduct outlines the
expectations we have regarding employees’
behavior toward colleagues, supervisors, and the
organization as a whole.

We encourage freedom of expression and open
communication; however, we expect all employees
to adhere to our code of conduct. Employees
should avoid causing offense, engaging in serious
disputes, or disrupting the workplace. We also
expect them to contribute to a well-organized,
respectful, and collaborative environment.

CONFLICT
OF INTEREST

Employees are expected to avoid any personal,
financial, or other interests that could compromise
their ability or willingness to perform their job
duties effectively.

COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS

All employees miust ensure that our company
operates within the bounds of legality. This includes
complying with environmental, safety, and fair dealing
laws, Employees are expected to act ethically

and responsibly in all dealings related to the

company’s finances, products, partnerships, and
public image.




% RESPECT IN THE
WORKPLACE

Respect for colleagues s parmmount. We do nat
tolerate any form of discrimination, harassment,

or victimization. Employees must adhere to our
equal opportunity policy in all aspects of their work,
from recruitrment and performance evaluations to
interpersonal relations.

AirLink's HR policies and procedures provide
guidance on a mnge of employment issues for
both employees and managers. These policies
ensure consistency and transparency, helping to
foster a positive organizational culture. They
cover the full employment lifecycle, from
recruitment to departure, offering practical
advice and guidance on various employment
matters.

IT GOVERNANCE

This policy establishes a framework to maintain the
security of information and related assets

exchanged between Air Link Communication Ltd,
and any external entity. It applies to permanent and
contractual employees, consultants, and all

personnel affiliated with third parties. It also extends
to suppliers and customers where formal contracts
exist. All departments must ensure that electronic
information exchange occurs through secure
electronic media with reliable security and encryption
controls. Information shared through physical or
printed media must follow the same security protacaols.



17§l DIVERSITY POLICY

Airlink 5 committed to promoting equality, diversity,
and inclusion within our workforce and to
eliminating unlawful discrimination. Our aim is to
have a workforce that reflects all sections of society
and our customer base, where each employee
feels respected and empowered to perform at their
best.

We are dedicated to providing equality, fairmess,

and respect for all in our employment, regardless of
whether the role is temporary, part-time, or full-time.
We do not unlawfully discriminate based on any
protected characteristics, including

«Age +Disabilfity +Genderreassignment
im‘ .mm.P lmr
*Race -+ Religion or belief + Sex + Sexual orientotion

@ WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

Integrity and compliance are vital to Airlink.

The Board of Directors requires all employees and
members of the organization to act in accordance
with the law, the Airlink Business Principles, our
company guidelines, and other internal regulations.

The Board of Directors fosters a culture of openness,
trust, and transparency, encouraging both
employees and external parties to speak up and

raise concems about actual or suspected misconduct.
This approach is essential to protecting Airlink from
potential financial and reputational risks, thereby
securing our long-term success.

This guideline demonstrates the Board's
commitrnent to protecting individuals who report
misconduct and outlines the process for reporting
and handling suspected or actual misconduct
within the organization.



17,9 CSR POLICY

We strive to be a responsible business that meets
the highest standards of ethics and professionalism.
This policy applies to our company, its subsidiaries,
and may extend to suppliers and partners.

Our social responsibility is divided into two
categories

E &

Compliance reflects our commitment to legality
and the observance of community values, while
proactiveness encomppasses our initiatives to
promote human rights, support communities,
and protect the environment.

8 PROHIBITION OF
. CHILD LABOR POLICY

Airfink's prohibition of child labor policy emphasizes
our commitment to legal compliance and child
welfare. This policy applies to our entire organization,
as well as to those we do business or partner with,
including suppliers, vendors, and contractors.

Our policy is guided by the Intemational Labor
Organization (ILO), the U.N. Convention on the
Rights of the Child, and local legislation such as

The Punjab Restriction on Employrent of Children
Act 2016. In all cases, we adhere to the stricter
applicable law and require our pariners and vendors
to do the same. They must also ensure their own
suppliers and subcontractors comply with these
standards.
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Tel: <92 42 3587 570710 Oifice Mo, 4, &th Floor,
Fax: +92.473571 7354 Askan Conporate Tower,

wiasin, Bl 0O DR 75176 D-1, Main Boulevard
Guiberg I, Lahore-54660
Palastan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of AIR LINK COMMUNRICATION LIMITED
(the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024,
and the unconsolidaied statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, the unconsolidated statement of changss in equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other axplanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledoe and betief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
uncensolidated staternent of financial position, unconsclidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in eguity and the
unconsolicdated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the
changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Unconsolideted Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We belisve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in formiing sur opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinfon on thess matters.,

Following are the key audit matters:

5. Mo | Key audit matters aH:;tH're matter:, Were arce G
1. Inventory Quantity and Valuation |
As of June 30, 2024, the Company held stock | Our audit procedures in relation o the |
valued at Rs. 2.837 billion, which | matter, amongst others, included the
constitutes a significant portion of the | following:

Company's total assets, as disclesed in Note

12 and in accordance with the accounting | « ‘We conducted physical inventory counts
policy described in Wote 5.4 to the as of June 30, 2024, toverify the quantity
unconsolidated financial statements. of jnventory on hand. This included
inventory disbursed at various stages of
the production and assembly process, as
well as stock held in warehouses, We
reconciled the physical counts with the |

= Given the complexity associated with
the multiple stages of assembling,

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants -
B0 Thorshim & Co., & Fakmian nepirtered pertnessivg fim 16 8 member of 300 inzenatemal Lymted, a U8 company lEmited by susrant=e; and E\E
forrn gart of the mt=rmationsi B0 netsodoal independent member finm
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|

5. o

Key audit matters

How the matters were addiessed in our
audit

production, and distribution of mobile
phones,  accessories, and  allied
products, the verification of inventory
quantities was a critical area reguiring
significant sudit attention,

The valuation of inventory was also 3
key matter due to the involvement of
multiple ‘stages in  the inventory
process. The Company follows the
weighted average cost method for
inventory valuation, as disclosed in Note
5.4 to the unconsolidated finandial
statements.

Determining the accurate quantity and
appropriate valuation of inventory at
each stage reguired management to
exercise significant judgment and apply
complex estimates.

stock records in the trial balance and
cross-checked  guantitdes to  ensure
ACCUracy.

« ‘We assessed the sffectiveness of the
Company’s  internal controls  over
inventory management, particularly at
different  production  stages.  We
performed IT audit controls (ITAC) to
verify that owverheads were allocated
appropriately and that inventory was
recorded and issued at the comect moving
average rates, We also ensurad that stock
costing was accurate and that the
inventory was valued correctly.

s We performed substantive analytical
procedures using disaggregated data to
gain assurance aver the recognized stock.
This involved focusing on outliers and
unusual trends, particularly in the context
of the sxtemal economic erwvironment,
and discussing these findings with
management.

= We checked the final stock valuation
sheet against the physical stock-taking
sheet fo ensure that all items were
included. We alss reconciled the final
stock wvaluation sheet to the general
ledger and stock |edser, wverifying
amounts against appropriate soures and
investigating any unusual ftems.

« We ensured that stock wvalues were
corractly recorded, with all relevant costs
capitalized in the stock value. This
included a review of purchase
transactions, including purchase orders,
invoices, goods inward notes, goods
receipt nmotes, LC  documents, sales
invoices, and other supporting evidence.

s We performed procedures related fo
purchases cui-off to ensure that recorded
purchases were of the relevant period.
This helped wverify that the <costs
associated with inventory were properly
allocated te the correct accounting

period.

* ‘We tested the costing of the inventory and
performed net realizable value [NRY)
testing to assess whethar the cost of the
inventory exceeded its MRV. We alsa
ersured that any necessary provisions
were  made appropriately in  the
circumstances.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
00 Borshim & To. & Paldstan regGter=d parineship firm, i@ & memberof B0 Intemstional Limited, & U company tmited- By qusrante= ard
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How the matters were addiessed in our

5. Ho | Key audit matters audit
» We assessed the adeguacy of the

Company's disclosures in the
unconsolidated financial  statements
concermning imeentory, ensuring:
transparency and compliance with
applicable accounting standards.

2, Revenue Recognition

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the
Company reported net revenue of Rs. 56.28
billion, compared to Rs. 21.50 billion in the
previous year, as disclosed in Note 2% and in
accordance with the accountine palicy
described in Mote 5.8 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

s The Company's revenue is derived from
the sale of a diverse range of products
and services, including cellular mobile
phones, tablets, accessories, allied
products, and related repair services.
The Company alse offers periodic

discounts acress  various  product
categories to different types of
customers,

s Given the significance of revenue as 3
key performance indicator and the
attention reguired fto ensure the
accurate recognition of revenue, we
identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter.

Our audit proeedures in relation to the
matter, amongst others, included the
following:

» Gained an understanding of the
Company's processes  and  related
internal contiols  for revenua
recognition, and on a sample basis,
tested the effectiveness of those
controls, particularly in relation to

revenue recegnition and timing.

s Evaluated the appropristeness of the
Company's revenue recognition pelicies
and procedures to ensure compliance
with Internaticnal Financial Repoiting
Standards {IFRS) as applicable in
Pakistan.

s Conducted seguence testing of sales
invoices to ensure the completeness
and accuracy of recorded revenus. This
included reviewing the numerical
sequence of invoices to identify any
gaps or duplicates, investigating any
irregularities, apd ensuring that all
invoices were properly accounted for
within the correct financial pericd. We
also assessed whether the recorded
revenue aligned with the Company's
revenue recognition policies and |FRS
requirements.

# Performed  substantive  apalytical
procedures using disaggregated daia to
gain assurance over the recognized
revenue, with a focus on outliers and
unusual trends in tight of the external
economic environment.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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|

| How the matters were addressed in our

.S. Mo | Key audit matters aiidit |

'« performed detailed tests on sales
returns,  including  inguiries  and
documentation of reasons for retumns.
ensured the accuracy of credit notes,
and verified the application of revised
rates on updatad invoices,

« Reviewed year-end manual adjustments
impacting revenue to  identify
significant or wunusual Jtems, and
examinad the underlying
documentation.

» Tested supporting evidence for a
sample of sales transactions, including
sales orders, invoices, goods dispatch
notes, oate passes, proof of delivery
(custorner acknowledgment), and other
getailed procedures.

*» Ensured that revenue items are
correctly classified according te the
guidance in IFRS 15.

» Performed procedures related to
revenue cut-off.

« Assessed  the appropriateness  and
adequacy of the disclosures provided in
Mote 29 to the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with retevant
accounting standards.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our lnowledze obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in

this regard. Buo

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
reqmrements of Companies Act, 2017 (%X of 2017) and for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responzible for assessing the
Company’s ability to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do =0,

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 3 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 154s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material missiatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from frawd or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrezate,
they could reasonably be expected to influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SA4s as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judoment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

s Obizin an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company”s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting pelicies used and the reasonablensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managament.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to event=s or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability fo continue as a geing concearm. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exdsts, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in 3 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Boo

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDQ Ebraham & Co., 3 FakSsn resstered partneship fimn, i & member of B30 mtemmbonad Hmreed, @ UE company trited by gusmant=e. and
farms-pert of the int=mensral B00 network of mdesandent menmber firme

Page - 5



BDO

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
tirming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We dascribe these matters in our auditor’s report unbess law or reculation
precludes public disclosure about the matter-or when, in extremsly rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to oubweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion;

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX
of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows and
the unconsolidated statement of changes in 2quity together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in confarmity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980}, was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.

Other Matter

The unconsclidated financial statements of the Cempany for the year ended June 30, 2023 were audited
by another firm of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated October 5, 2023, expressed an
unmodified opinion thereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sajjad Hussain

Gill,
Boo Gt ¢ C.

L AHORE

DATED: September 05, 2024 BDO EBRAHIM & O,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: ARZ0241008750rdDHWES

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Air Link Communication Limited

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipmeant
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary
Long term investrmant
Long term loans
Deformed tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits, prapayments and other receivables
Tax refunds due from the Governmenit
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Aurhorzed share capital
600,000,000 (June 30, 2027 600,000,000] ardinary
chares of 0= 10 each fi=hl
lssuied, subscribed and paid up capital 182
Share premium - capital reserve 20
Accumulated profit - revenue resene
Gen_er'"al recerves - revenue reserne

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term loans 7
Lease liabilities 22
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defined bonefic kabilmy 3
Trade payables, acorued and other liabilities 245
Contract iabilities
Short terrn borrowings 5
Accrued markup 26
Provision for taxation
Current portion of non current habiles 7
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements:

oo i y
W M“ﬁ W L KU

-"""..
CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



Air Link Communication Limited
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers - net
Costof revenus
Gross profit

Adrninistrative exgense
Selling and distribution costs

Operating profit

Other income

Cther expense

Finance cost

Profit before income tax and minimum tax
Minimur tax

Profit before income tax

Incame tax

Profit after income tax

Earrings per share
- Basic and diluted

IG

57

56 282 5187797
(50,449,172.309)
5033 246 588

(B11,349,877)

(318952128
(130,302,005
4700944483
140405176

{328,396355)
(1303,385,686)
32567618

32567618

[52.295.741)
3059341877

T740

21,503,905, 562
(19,223.219,622)
2280685 740

(597,024,947)
334 315154)
(925,340,101}
1355345639
130,136,628
{54,821,653)
(718.455,263)
71220537
71220537
182332.402
834 537773

2552

The annexed notes from 110 50 form an Integral part of these unconsalidated financial statements.

"

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Air Link Communication Limited

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

I
Rupess

Profit after income tax 3,059,351 B77 B94 557773

ltems not 1o be reclassified to profit or loss In subseguent years

Fe-measurement {loss| [ gain on dafined benefit plan (3.240478)
Belated tax effect 1,265,786
Re-measurerment (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan - net of tax (1.976,652)

lterms 1o be reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent years -
Other comprehensive (loss) / income (1,976.692)
3057365185 | 897899558

The annexed notes from 1to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Roo ) ) 4
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Air Link Communication Limited

LI IO AT STATERENT OF CASH FLIRVE
Fo THEVEAR EREFED TUMNE 55 J004e

Note G o

smzszae | soonesn |

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Brofitl befors Laxation

Adjustments for ;
Depreciation on propecty, plant and eguiprment
Arortizaton on intsngaile asssty
Irypaimmiest allowance fof slow moving sfid obsoete stock - hel 15 2,50
Allowarnce for expected credil loss - trade debs- net (6738 45E]
Proyvesion e-gratuty
Preswision for Warker= Welfare Funds
Crovslon for Warkers Profit Participation Funds 7595155
Investment in mutusl funds writien alf 301 5080
Czin an leaze terminsbion
Frnance cost
Lo=={{gam)] on disposal of ppemating xed as=st=
Los=/|gain] on disposal of term linance certificate
Markup an loan gven to subsidiary

Profit on mveslmenits (M0 TES 230
135 2 575
Operating profit before working capital changes: o, T T B0 195

Effect on cazh tlow dus o working capital changes:
{increase) / decrease in current assets
| Stockin trade 253 B0 TTE
Stores arid =petes [T2612.T86]
Trades deils
Loasrnsand edwances
Trade deposlis prepayments and olhes recizvable
Tan relurds dus from the Governmernl {5 332 1o
(B39 578.995]
{Decrease] { increase in current liabilities
Trede payables socrued andothef llabllities
Contract labilites

Cash generated from operations
Finance cost pagd [
Cretuity paid (Yo O=2.008)
Intome lax pald & O 0EN
HET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES L7 65 90
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acdiditroims in operating [ined asset=s (= ol = ]
Procesds from disposal of opsrating fived sssets Ta,TEE000
Investment in=ub=|diary 25000000001
Additors in mlengible as=sts {LBF2 57T)
Long termy nvestment encashed 255 540 A5
Intetest noorme recsved 135,556, 64612
Shart tarm mvestments - net {400 000 DOy}
HET CASH (USED IN) f GEMERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RSB0 958 205]
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Legse liamity r=pad (M= T2 307
Long term loans - nst AR TED T4
Long tarim Hians - egulty portian -
Dividend paid ' (LS4 7E0896)
Short term bormowings = net 3660506 60
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTTVITIES 2O AS
MET IMCREASE [ [DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [ o748
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMING OF THE YEAR SE6.5RE 200

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1L 22456146

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an intagral part of these unconsoligated financial statermnonts.

AvS Aal bd—

__,.--"'" H [ . u' K-L___
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICEER DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE



Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

11 The Cemipany was Incorparated in Pakistan on Januarny 02, 2004 aoa private rmited company, under the repealed
Cormparties Ordinanco, 1982 indw Comparnies Act, 20017 havtig registered cffice at 15284 Quaid-o-Azarm Industrial Ares, Mot
Lakhpat Lakore, Punjab, Pakiztan The Company & engaged [n the businets of import, export distibution, Indenting,
wholosals ratail ofF commumication and T related products and senices ineluding cellular mabilefsmanrt phones, tabilats
[aptops, acoeszories and allied products. The Cormpany convarted to a publle bvdtéed company onc Al 24 2009 ard aot
itaelf récgistared an Pakistan Stock Exchamchs [BSY) on Septomiber 22 2021 ae a result of corrpletion of its Indtial Public Offer
irg (PO

The Compariy alen has afaciity for azzpmbly ofarmart phones andfeature phones ldcated at 152-M, Ouakd. o Azam Industrial
Ares Hot Lakhpiat Lahore, Punials Palkictan.

L2 Subsidiary company: Select Technologies (Privatz) Limited

Sedact Technologles [Privats) Lirmited [STRL] an unlisted public company megetored undsr the Companes AL 201, =3
whiclly ewmed subwidiary of The Company. S1TPL i andgaged in the busmess of assambly and producton of srmarphones
and related acdessaties, and has it regesterad office ard assoemibly amt a1 152-0-M Quaid-o-Azam indusirial Area, Mot
Laklgat Lahore

I'hie sutmdiary Bas ot up 3 ciate-of the-art smarnphono assembly plant in Lahore The princligal ine of tusiness of thi
subsmidiary © 0 et up, estabilich, and opsrate plants for the assembly and production of mobile phones of all soris and
Yesctiplions, acessonies, cormpanants aftachrmants atd bodhes used Tor o 10 commnaction with the aforementioned mokule
phores

I'hiese uncarsolidated nancal satoements are the separate Tinancsl statemeniis af the Company in which investment 1
submidiary Cormparyt s accounied far an the base as discussad i noie S 0E Comolidated financal statementsane present
ed soparaioly

4 CEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

T locationsof Companys haad offce,_assermbling facility, retall outlet= and flagshp store aro as-Golow

BUSINESS UNIT | ADDRESS

Head Office | 1520 Quald-2-2rarn Industral Area Kot Lakhpat Lahoie Puriiab, Pakdstan
s |

Aczemibling Facality | 152-M DQuasd-=-Azarm industrl Area Kot Lakhpat Labhore, Punab, Pakistan

R



Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Il

BUSINESS LINIT

ADDRESS

Sameung Fetail Store

Shop Moo LG9, Lucky One Mall, LA-2/B, Block 21, Opp. UBL Spotfts Comple
Rashid Minhas Boad, Karachi, Pakstan

A Link Flagehip Stare

Shop Mol Xnbwa Mall, 24-B2 Mian Mehmpod Al Kasear) Road, Block
Bz Gulberg N, bahore, Fakistan

Samsung Hetal Store

Air Lk Betadl Store

Air Link Boetall Store

Shop Mo, I7, Ground Floor, Emponum Mall, Johar Town, Labone, Pakistan

Shop Mo SR Lusky One Mall, LA-2/8 Block 21, Opp, UBL Sports Caomplos
Rachid MinHzs Road, Karachi, Pakistan

Shop Moo 1080 Opposite Carrefouwr, Packages Mall, Walton Road_Lahara,
Pakistan

Adr Lirk Botal] Store

Shop Mo 855], Dolivien k43l Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Sameung Fetail Store

Sameung Hetal Store

Samsung Hetal Store

Shopy Mo | Meat Bankalfalah, Ssodar Cartt Hydorabad, Faldstan

Shop Moo S Cround Fleorn, Shareef Complex. Tehsil Chowlk, Multan, Pakstan

ity Cantre, BC Ofhce Chowlk, Bahawalpur

Sameung Hetaill Stone

Air Lk Betadl Store

Shop- 10753 161 Floor, Packages Mall, Walton Bead, Lahor

Shop G-56 Ground Foor, Ermporiur Mall, Jebar Town, Lahore

M Betall Stere

Shop Mo, LG-20, Ludky One kall, LA 298, Block 2|, Opn. UBL Spotte Cormplas,
Razhid Minhas Hoad, Karachi, Falkistan

In addition to the above, the Company also aparates certain stores and warehouses the list of which ls net
presanted in these unconsolidated financial statomiEts o maint3in Concsion

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidatea fingnoal statements ave beeon prepared in accardance with the accounting and reporting
standards as appllcable in Pakiztan, The accounting and reponing stancards apphcable in Palistan comprse of

Internaticnal Financial Feporung Stencards {(IFES) issued by the Interrational Acoounting Standards Hoard [LASH) as

natified under the Companes At 2007,

stamic Financial Accounting Standards (| FAS) Esued by the Institute of Charterned Accountants of Pakistan as notified
undor the Campamies Act, 2017, and

Provision of and directives issued under the Comparnies Act, 201

Boo



Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOL IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Wherd provisione of and directives |=sued under the Companie< Act 2007 differ frorn the FRS and IFAS the proveloris of

arsd directives lssued under the Comparibes Act, 2017 have been followed

12 Basis of measurement

These unconeolifated finrancial staterments have beon prepared under the histor|cal cost comention except defined bene
fit< are recegnized on the basicmentioned In Note 5.5

i3 Functional and presentation currancy

These uncansolldated finandal statements are prezentea in Paklstan| Bupee which i= the functional ard precentathos

currency of tha Comparny. Tha figui'es have béen rounded off to the fearest of Pupees unlesc otherwlse stated.

T4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assurmptions

The preparation of unconsclidaied financial satemonts in conforrmity with approved acoounting, siandards redquiles
management o make estimates a=sumplons and jJudoesments that affect the appllcation of accounting policles and the
reported amaunts of acsetq, iabllities, income and expenses. Actual results may diffor from thece ootirmates

I preparing thecs unconsabodated finandal statements, theé sigoificant estimates. aecurrptions and judoements rade by
the maragemaent in applying accounting pokcies incluede:

Mote
Irpakrimienit of mon firancial assets 515
Leaso term 516
Allpwmince Tor expected cradit foes 551
faxatlan 57
Revenue Trom contract with customerns 58
- APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO

PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

& Mew accounting standards, amesndrments and |IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year
ended June 30, 2024

' Tollénanng standands, amendimenizand interprelatons are cffoctiae far the year ended June 20, 2024 Theso standargs
arncndmments and interprotations are aithe) not rolavantto the Coampany's operations o did not heve significant impact on
the unconsolidatad financial statameonts other than cenain sdditional discosures

Bvo



Air Link Commmunication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Effective date (annual pariods

beginning on or after)

Arpendments to 1AS | ‘Precentation of Financial Statements” and IFRS Practioe . =y
i R 4 Ly . b L LR n gl = Jargany O], 20235
Staternent 2 Making Matariality Judgements- Dsclgeure of Accounting: Folicies
Arnendments 1o A4S B ‘Accounting Policies, Chandges in Actaunting Ectirmates

largary O, 2023
and Ermors - Befinition of Accounting Estimates - ¥ =

Arnendments 1o 1AS 12 Income Takes' - Daferred Tax related to Accets and

e =, : January 01, 2025
Liabs|litios arising fram-a shgle transaction ShE

Arnprghments to WS 12 fnecome Takes - Temporarny exception to the
reguirerents regarding defoerred tax ascot=-and liabilities rofated to pillar two Januany 0], 2023
ImCome taxes

The Company adoapisd the narmow -scope ameandrmants 10 the international Accounting Standard [IAS) 1, Presentation of
Financial Statermnents which have boen effective for annual reporting periods Beginning on or aftar Jatuary 01, 2023
Afthough the amendments did not reswlt in any changes 1o accounting policy themsalves. they impacted the accounting
pelicy Imforrmation disclocsed |0 the uncgneolidates financial statéments

Mamagement revissed the accounting pollcles and update< 1o the [nfonmation disclosed In Note & Material accounting
policies 2025 Significant accounting policies) in cortain Instances In line with the amendment<and concluded that all its
accounting pobcies ane matenal for disclosure.

Mew accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yvet effective

The follewing standarcs, amandmoniz-and intarpretations are only offective Tor accounting pericds, Deginning orear aitor
the date mantiored againsat each of them, These starndards, amendment= and Interpristations ane elther not relevant 1o the
Compamny's operations ar 2re fot expected to ave sgnificant iImpact dn the Companys unconsolidated financial state
ety ethar than certaln sdaiticnal disciosures

Effective date [(annual pariods

beginning on or after]

ArnendmieEnts 1o 156S 7 Firancial Instrumignis Drsciosures - Suppher finance
AFTEN Ot

Januany O, 20024

Amendmen=io ERS T Fimancal Instrurnents Disclosures - Armaendrmants

Januany 0], 2026
regarding the cla=fleation and measurament of financial instruments = AR

Amerdmen=io (ERS S Foancial Instrurnenis - Amendmen:s egarding the arieary Ol 2036
classiitation and reasurement affinancial instruvents Sl it o T
Armandments 1o IERS 16 Leases - Armendments toclanify how a seltor-jescos i Y
i Janmuany O, 2004
submequently meagyres sale and leaseback transactions .

goo



Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Effective date (annual pariods

beginning on or after)

Arnendments to IAS | 'Precentation of Financial Statemeénts’ - Clagsification of . . =
g - i e = R, Jarngany O, 2024
liabilities as current of nop-curmant.

Arnendments Lo 1AS | ‘Presentation of Financial Stalements’ - NoR-currfent

| y My
lzbilities with covenants Januany OL 23024

Arnendments to 1AS 7 Staterment of Cach Flows™ - Suppllier finarice

January 01, 2024
SPTERgETILnTS £l

Armandments 1o 1AS 2] The Effecte of Changes in Formign Exchanos Rates

. . i
Laok of Exchangeabd||ty Januasy 0], 2035

IFES 1Y insuranco Contracts: January 01, L0268

IFRS | Flret-tlme Adoption of Intzrnational Fnanclal Heparting Standards’ has beon [ssued by LASH sffective from July
O, 2009, Hewousr, it as not bean adoptod vt locally by Socurities and Exchange Cormmission af Pakistan [SECP)

tFRS 18 ‘Precentation and Disclbodres in Firancal Stataments' has boen Ezsued by (ASE effective from Januany O, 2007,
Howewar, it has not been aoopted vet locally by SECP

HFRS 19 Subcidiaries without Publie Accovintability: Disclusures has baery issucd by ASE effective fromi January 01 2027
Heweser, 1t hias not been adopte yei locilly by SECP

IFRE 17 - Ineurardco contracts. has been notified by the 1ASE 1o b effective for annual penods BEeginning an or after

January | 2028 Hewever SECP hae notified the timefrare for the adestion af IFRS - 17 wihich wil] be adonted by January
01,2036

5 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I'hie accounting polickes applied ane consistont with prion year oxcept a5 stated 1 Mote &

21 Property, plant and equipment
5.1.1 Owned as=ets

Property. plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation and accurnmitated impairment losses, ifany
Boepraciaticn 1t provided on stralght Hne method at the mtes ghen in achedule of praperty; plant and egulipment ard
charged tostaterment of profit or less to write &if the:depreciallle amount of each ascet at tha ratec cpecified In the Note:é.

Fraperty, plant and equlpmeant ané stated at cost lese accumulated dopreciation and accumulated impairment losse< ifamy
Bepreciation is provided on sttaight line method at the mtes given - in schodale of projparty, plant and eguiprnent and

charged 1o statemment of profit or loss o write aff the depraciable arpount of each avcet at tha ratec cpecifiod in the Note &

Bos




Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TG THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The resioual vajues: usaful Tves and methods of depreciation of propeity, plant and eguiprmentare roviewed 3t each finan
aial year end and adjusted prospactivel), if appropriaic

512 Dieposal

Anitemof propecty, plant and equiprment and any significant partinitially recognized s dereoognizen upon dichosal (T2, at
the date the recipient abdains cantralf o whar no future econorm i benofile are expoected from jts use or dispasal Any aalty
of lnsz arising 'on derecognitian of the aecet {calculated ac the differance Botween the net disposal procecds and the
CArrYIng amcuntal the aseot) & includad in the unconsalidated statarment of profit or losswhen the asset & derecoqnizod

513 Right-of-use as=ets

Thie Company rocogmizes nght-of use ascals at the commercoment dato of the ease (Lo] the dato the underhying asset =
svallabile foy uze), Hight-of-ute aswets are meabured at oot e any accurmiulated depracialion and imipatrment loees and
adjusted for any remeasurermnent of leace llabilitles. The ooct of right-of-use dccote includes the amount of lease liabilitiec
recoamized, imtial direct costsoncwrmed, and [ease payments made ot or before the commencement date fess any lease
incentives receed Right of - Use a=mets e depreciaied of @ stralght-line bazic over the chortér of the lease tenm and the
estirmated useful lives of the assets

5.1.4% Estimiate

Estimates with respect to recidual values, depreciable fves and pattert of fiow of economic bencfits are based on the
analyee of the manggemont of the Company. Further, the management revens the alue of the assots Tor possible
impairments on an annual basis Any changs in the sstirmates in the future rmight sffect the carmyng amount of respectiee
item of property and equipment, with a corresponding offect an The depreciation charge and imoairment

515 Impa@irmant

The carrying armounts of the Company’s assets are reviewad at each regorting date to determime whethar there = any
Indication of impsiiment I any sudh indication exdee the Crrying amodnts of such aseets are revigwed 1o azeecs whathey
thoy af'e recorded in excess of their recoverable ambunt Whare carmrving values exteed the respective récoverablo amount,
amseds are writlen down o ther recovemble amounts and the resulting. imEsiiment B recogmard as sxporcs, Tho
recensorable amolunt £ the kigher of an asset'c falr value loss cogt o sell anmd value in wme Whene an imypairment loss s
charged, the depreciation charge is-adiustad for the future poriods o allocato the assel's evised carrying amount over iz
estimated usaful life

516 tease lRAbilities

At the commencamant date of the lease the Company recogiizes leaze llabllitles msmturad at the preceit value of lease
paymeEntcs o be imade over the: lease tarm. The lease payments include fixed payments [imeluding in-subctance fixed
payments] less any lease incentives recanabile, variable lease payments that depond on an index or 2 mie, and amounis
enpocted 0 be pald Undar residual value guarariees Tho lgace paymenic alzo fnelude the exarcke price of a purchase
apticn reaconably certain 10 be exerciscd Dy the Company and payrrents of penalties Tor terminating & lease, if the jease
termn reflectis the Company édsrcizing the daption to trminale The variable leace payments that do not depend ofy an inces
af a rate ane recogriized ac expanse in the poerfiod on which the ovent of conditicnt that triggors the avment ccurs

Ruo



Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

In calcuf@ting the precant value of lease payiments the Company uses the incremontal borrgwing rate at the lease
comrrencernont date if the interest rates impliot in the leases are not readily detetminable. After the cammencement
data, the amount of jease Habifities & increaced to reflect the scoretian of interest and recuced for the lease payments
rrsace. [0 addition: the-carmying amount of lease liabilites & remeasared T there a2 ncaification, a change it the leass torm
g change in the in-cobstance fixad lease paymiantsor a change in the ascessmEnt 1o purchase the underiying ascet:

The Company detarmines the lease tarim as the non-cancaliable tenmof the [ease together withany penods covared by
anopboh toextend the lease if it s reasonable certain o be exercizad, or-any periods cosered: by an opbioh to terminate the
heass, if it is peaconably certain not to be exarcised

The Company has severad leace oplians that include externsion and terminationoptions: The Company applhios judgemeant
inevatsating whethear it is reasonabfy cartain whather or not toexercise the option o renew of tenminate the lease, Thatic
itconsiders all refevant factor that create an econornic incentive for it to exercise the renewal or termination Aftar the
comrrsncernont period, the Company resssesces the lease term if there s a significant event of chanige in clicurrsianoes
that &= within its control ana affects Esability to exercmss or not o exerciss the option 1o renew or 1o terminate

517 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company apphes the shart-tarm l2ase recogniton exemption 10 tsshort-torm leases iTany (12, those leases that have
3 fegse tarm of 12 months or 22 from the commencement date and 4o not contain a purchase gptian|, it also applies the
legss of bow-value assets recognition ciempion o leases that are of ' fow value Lease poyrents an short-torm leasoes and
logses of lowy valle assots are recognmed as expense on astraaht-ine basis over the lease term

5.2 intangible assets

Irtargible assefs are initially st=tod ai doot lecs accumdlated armmortizaton and accumutated imparmient Iesses of any
Armrtization s charged 1o statemant of profit o o= applying the straight line Basis over 1ta normal weeful life as speaified
N Mote ¥, Amdtization & charged tostatement of prafit or loss antime proportian bass for addition o detotion durlrng the
el Caire and |esses on diegrosal oF assete are Included in statorment of profit o kss

5.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cach and cash equlvalents in the uncenshidated statemant of financial position camprise cash in hand and cach at bank a5
spuecified ih Mote 1B that are readily convertible to 3 known amount of cash and sublest to an heignificant risk of chariges
invalues

For the purpoce of the statement of cash fiows cach ang cash egubalents consist gf cash in hand and ca<h at Banks gafined
abave. Term deposit recelpte are rot ncluded in cash ana cazh egubealents as they are riot hela for cash rmanagemeant

[rurpoces
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AirLink Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

5.4 Stock in trade

Stock intrade <tares ahd sares are valuiesd ot lewor of cost and net reaiizablevalue oxceapt thiose in transit, which are valuied
at invalce value including aothor charges i ary, ncurred thereor. Basic ol detarmifing cost-ic ac follows:

Cact has besn determined ac follows

Raw and packing material wiglghted averade oot
Material in trarsit actiral et

Wiarkl in process wiglghted averade oot
Finished goods wiglghted averade cost
Storet atwd spares wiglghted averade cost

Itams corsiderad obsplate are eartded at nil value, Impalrment allowathce for absolete ard zlow moving Inventary is based
afl managemsnt ectirmatec of wsago In mormal Businegcs oparatiord. Net fedllzable value k= detérmingd an the basic of
éstimated celling . price of the praduct in the or'dinaly course of busingse lecs cocte af complation and costs nécecsary to bo
incurred in ordar to rnake the cals.

55 Trade debts

T radoe dobis and other recoivables are carried a3t enginal inveice amount. Provision (s made for debis considorad doubtiul
of recovery bemed on expecied crodit Ioss {ECL) model of IFES 2 and dobts cansidened irecoverabde are wntien off azand
when dentified. Recoivable are generally. Gue within 30 to 90 days of satefaction of perforrmanco cbligaton

551 Allowance for expected credit losses of trade debts

The Corvyzany a=eczes the impalrment of ks financlal podets baced o the Expected Cniadit Lose {"EOL ") medel. Undear the

I eredlt risk slnee inlthal recoanition of the financial assete The Company measuiecs The |oss allowance at an amolnt equal

to ffetime ECL T its financial jstrumants

Ihe Campany measures the ECL of a financial [netrurrent in 3 way that reflects

. an unblaszed ard probabifity-weiahted ameount that k= determined by evaluating arange of po=ible outcomes

. the time vallie of money, if applcabile, andg

. reasonable and supportable |nformation that iz avallable withoutl undue cost or effort at tha reporting date about mast

evgrnle current conditions and forecasiz of futw s acanomic condltions

Exprectied credit losses are measured for the maxlimum contractual pevled ever which the entity i expoced to credit riak
Ihesignificant estlmate< ralating to the measurament of ECL relate to the falr valee af the collaterals |n place, tha expecte)

tirmying . of the collection and forward loaking economic factors
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

5.6 FProvisions

Provisions are recognized in thestatgment of financial position when the Carmpary has 3 legal or constrictive obligation as
a resuft of past eventc and it probable that outflow of recourees embodying economic benefits will be reuired to settle
the abligation and a reliable actimate of the amoaunt can be inade. Provisians are reviewsd ot pach staternent of finahcial
pesition date:and adjuctod 1o reflect Current bect ectirmate Whare: oltflow. of fecolurces am bodyitig sconomic ben
not probable acontingont Hability e diccloced, unlést the pescibility of outflow s remiote.

5.7 Taxation
5.7 Currant

Curraint tax le the expectéd tay, payvable on the taxalle income for the Year bazed on taxable profite. wsing tax raies enacted

or substantively anacted at the reporting date and any adjustrrent bo ey payable o respect &f previous yéars

572 Levy

ThHe arount caldlitated an taxalsle come using the nétified tax rate o roscognized & cufrert ncorme tax experse for the
year iny statemont of profit or lees acoolnt. Ay eitses OF expétted Income tax paid of payable for the yvear wnder the

Ordinance ovar the amount desigrated ac cutront mcomo tax forthe year, B then rotodrimod B 3 lew

573 Deferred

Oeforred tax e provided using the balance sheot methed for all temparary differences at the reporting date betweoen Tax
base of assets and lisbhilines and their carrying ameunts for financial reporming purneozes

OCeforred tax habity = recognizeg for all taxable temporary diferences and deforred tax assets are recognized for all
godicnible temporary differences, carry forwand of pnused tax cregits and unused tax losses, if any, o the oxtent that it =
probable that future taxable profit wll be availsbie agamst which the geductible temporary differences, carmy-fereand of
urueed tax credts and urwsed by iosses can be utilized

Deforred tax assets and labllmies are measured at the tax rates that are expectod o apply o the poncd when the labiity 1=
gottled based on Tax raies that hayve beon aracted o substantally enacted at the reparting date

5.7.4 Estimate

The Company establizshes provizsions bated on reasonable estimates taldng nte account thie apolicakle tas laws and the
decision: by appollate authorities on certain Esues in the past Inctances whore the Company's view differs from the view
ke By the income tax departrmont at the asecorment stagd and wiare the Compary considers that its views on 1teaens of
rraaterial fature i< in accoidance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent Habilltios
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

A deforred ta lability |2 recogrized for all taxable tomporary differences and doferred tax asoets gre recoghized for deduct
ible temporary differénces and unusad tax lostes to the Sxtent that it &= probakle that taxable profits will be avwailable
agdinct which the loece< can be utilized, Slgnificant management ludgmant i€ requbred to detarmine the amount of
defarred tax ascots that can be recognijzed, bazed upon the likely thmiing and level of future taxable profits togethar with
futire tay planninig strategies.

5.8 Revenue from contracts with customers
5.8.1 Eale of goods

Tha Campany lein the business afeelling callular mobile phomes tablote accescornes, allléd products and services. Boveriue
from contract with custoreds s iecogiined when contral of ooods are trandérred to the oustomear at an amount that
rafiects the cangidaration to which the Company expedts to be entitled in exchangs of those goods

Reenue from eale aof goods 2 recognized at a paint when performance abligations are catisfied coinaiding with trarsfor of

control of the accet to the custarmer, gerierally on dellvery

582 Senvice income

The Company also provides repair zenaces for mobile phones, tabléts acecessones and aliied products which are in o war@nty
and out-of warranty at s service centers. The Company recognizes the revenue from regair senvices when the service s
providod 1o the customuers.

5.83 Sales returns

Mhe Company provides salos returrs 1o customers Based an the instructions by the brand owndsre Wpon receipls of instruc
tiars, the Company gives the customers at option 1o feturt unsoid products and obtaivsame prodoct categaries based on
rinviscd selling prices o the Company issues-a Credit note 1o the custamer which can be usad (o adiust against the recoiv
able recorded of the cistomet

5.8.4 Contract iabilities

A cortract Haldlity = the abligation to trarnslzr goods to a cusgomies for which the Cormpany has recelved cansideration (or
an amount of coansideration s dued frorn the custamer. If a custoirmel pave consideration bafare the Compary transfois
goods (o the custarmer, a cantract labllity le récognized when tha payment = mads or the payrivient is dus (whicheear s
earller] Contract liatilities ave recovnized a5 révenus when the Compary perforrmes under the contract

59 Defined benefit liability

The Company oparates an unfunded gratuity <cheme coverning ellgible worlers, payable on ceazing of amployment subect
to completian of minimum gualifiying perled of 2endice. Obligations under the scheme are calculated on the last drawins
gross salary by number of years served to the Company.

Ay actuarkal valustion of all defined benefit echarmes s conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit
mathod. Experionce adpietments are recognized 0 ather comprehensie income whean they cccwr, Amounts recarded |
siatament of prafit o less are limited 1o current and past service cost, galns or losses on settlemants, and net interest
Income ! [expanse). All othar changos in net defined Benafit labifity are recognized in other comporebeneziee jnooeme with ne

subeadinent recweling to unconsolldated statpiment af prafit or lose
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Staff retiremient gratuity defineg:-bendalit i provided Tor permanent employvees of the Company, Calculations in respect of
the kability requine assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the princlpal ones: being in respact of mortality rata,
withdrawsl rate, increase in rernunoration and the diccount rate weed to convert future cash flows 1o carrent vatues Calcu
fationz-are sansitivie 1o changes in the underiing assumprions.

510 Foreign exchangs

lransactions inforeign currencies areinitiafly recorded by the Company Gt ks functionat cureency ot ratecat the date the
trarwaction first gualifies for recoggnition

Monetary asccls and fiabilithes donominatad in foreign currencies are transiated at the functionai currency spot ratgs of
exchange at the reportng dote. Diffcrences arsing on settlernent or ransiation of monctary tems are recoghnizad in
Linconsoidated statement of profit or loss:

Mo -monotary iterms that are meacsured in terrms of historical cost in aforeigr currenoy are transiatog using the exchange
rates-at thie dates of the initial tansactions There are no non: rmonctary items rraasured at fair value in & foreign carmancy.

I detatrriring the spot @xchange rate touss oninitial recognition of the reated asset, expense of incone (or oart of it) on
the derecognition of a non:rmonetary asset of non-monetany fobility relating to advance cansideration, the gate of the
trarEaction is the dote on which the Cornsany initially recogrizes the nomn:imonetany assot of non-monetary lability arsing
fram thie advarice carsideration. if thete are multiple payrments o receipts inadvance, determines the transaction date for
gach payrment of receipt of advance consideration

A || Financial instruments - initial recognition and subssgquent measuremeant

A financial instrumenit 5 any contract that gives rrse to a financsl asset of ane entity and a financial Bability or eguity
instrument of anothor entiy.

511 Firnancial assets
Firnancial assets - |nitial recognition

Firandial azsets aré clactified, at Initial recognition, and subeeguently measdred at amaortized oost, Tall value through athey

comprehenslsg Indome [OC1), and falr value theaugh profit or loes

Tha clacsification of financial azsets at Inithal recognition déepends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteris
ties and the Compary’s business medel for managing them With the edception of trade debis and bank balance that do
nat contain a dgnificant finarcing component arfor whch tha Comipany has applled the practles)| expedlent, the Company

initially rieasures a financial a==5t at it falr value plus in the caze of 3 finandial ascet not at fair value throuah profit or lo=
trantaction ceste Trade dalsts that o not contain a significant financina cormponent or for whilch the Company has applied
the practical expedient dre rmeasured at tha trancaction price determined wundar IFRS 15 Bofer to the accounting pallcy in

Reénaen e Tronm cartracts with custgmeds Mote 68
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLUIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

I ardar for 3 financial asset to B classified and measured st amoltized costor fbir value throogh OC), it necds 10 give rics
to cach fliows that are solely poyments: of princigal and imterest (P97 on the principal amount odtstsnding This
ancosemnent i roferred 1o as the SPP| test and s perforrmed atan irstrurnoent eva

Mhe Company= business model for managing financial aszets rofers o how it macadges its firancial assets in order to
gaterato cash fowrs The business rmodel-getatrmines whether cash flows will result from cotlecting contractual cash fhows
cafling the financal az=ot= or both

Purchaces or sales of financial ascets that reduire defvery . of assots within g time frame estahifshod Dy regulation o
corwention in the market place (regular way trades) sre recognized on the trade date, el the:date that the Company
CcOmrhils 1o purchase or sefl the-asoel

e Convpany’s financial-ascets inciude long-term deposits, short term investmonts other receivables and bank baiances:

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement

Forf purposes of subteguont meaclirement, financil assets are classified In four categories

Financial assete at fail value throwgh profit or loss

Financial zs<etc at amartizad cost (dabt ingtrument=)

Financial assete designated ot fair value thioogh OC1 with na recycling of cumulative gainc and locses upan
daredoanitian [equity instruments)

Financial assete at fail value throwg b OCHwith recycling of cumulative gains and locses [debt instrumant)

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial azcats ot fair valee thradgh profitor less ineluds financlal acsets held for trading, financlal assete desigrnated upon
initial recogniticn at fair value through prafitof losc of financal essetc mMandatarily required (o be measured 2t fair value.
Financial assete are cleccified &s held for trading if theay are acauired for the purpese of selling of ropurchasing in the hoar
tetne Derivatives, including separated ambedded derhvatives, ate also classified 2= hibld far trading unless they arpe
decignated ac effective hedging instrumente Financial assets with ¢ach flows that are not colely payiments of pringipal and
imterest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or less, ifrrespective of the businecssmodael Notwithetanding
the eritaria for debt instruments to be classified at amaitized coct or at fair value through OCl, 2= deccribeod above, daibt
instrumants may be desigrated at fair value throudh piofit or lose of initial fecodnition I doing so eliminaties, or
significantly reduses, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assetc at Tair value through profit or lase are carried In the unconsalidatod statemant &F fimancial position at fair
value with net charges in fall value recognized i the statorment of profit dr loss
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Ihis category includes denvative instroments and |isted equity, investrments which the Campany had not amevacalbly
etected 1o classify at fair value through OCL Deadoends on listed equity investments are also recognized as other incoma in
the statement of proft or ioss when the nght of payment has been establishod.

A gorvative embedded ina hybnd contract wath a-financial hability or nop-firrancial host, s separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate dervative 1 the econoamic charactenstics and risks are not closely molated o the hest g
geparate instrument with the same terms as the emibedded denvanive would meet the definition of a gervative; snad the
hybrid contract i= not measureg at fair vaive throwgh profit or lnss. Embodded denwatives are measared at famr valus with
changes in fair value rocognized in orofit of loss. Resssesement only oocurs i there isefther achange in the topms of the
contract that significanthy modifes the cash flows that would gtherwise be roguired or a reclassfication of a finanoial asset
cut of the fair value through prafit of 1oss category

A derivative ombaodded withina hybrid eontract containing a financial asset hoet js not acoounted for ceparataly, The finan
cial-aecet host together with the embedded darivative is requited 1o be classified in s antiroty 2s.a financial assat ot fair
walue throwgh profit o loss

5] Financial assets at amortized cost {debt instruments)

This category 15 the most relevant to the Campany. The Company measdres financial assets at amortized eost [T both of
the follawing canditlons are mer:

. The financial asset s held within & business model with the cbjective to hald finascis] assets in arder to collect
cantiactual cath fiows and

Thecontractusl terms of the linancial sszat glve rlse or specified dates to cash flows that are solely gayrments uf
princiosl and Interest on the orincipal armadnt outstarding.

Finarcial sszets at amortized cnst are subssguaently measured using the effective Interest [EIR) mathod and ars sulbject to
impalrment. Gains and lesses ara racognized [n ofafit or loss whean theazset s derecognlred, miodified or impslred.

The Company's financisl essete at emortired cogts includes trade debts, danosiiz prepsyments and ather receivables,
fng-term investrmonts, short-teem investments exeluding bank balamoe

| Financial assets designated st fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulstive gains
and losses upon derecognition (eguity Instruments)

Upan inital recognition, the Company can alect to classify irevocably iTsequity |nvestrments as equity INstrurments doesig
natad at fair value throuah OC whoen they rmee: thegefintion of equity under TAS 52 Financial Instrurnents Prosgntation
and are not held for traging, Theclassification s demrmined on an instrumant- y-instrument basis
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Cainsand lesses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss Dividands are recognized as other jncame in
the unconsolidated statement of proftor loss when the right of paymaent Fas been omtablizhed; excentwhen theCompany

Eeradits fram such procsads as aneoovery of part of the costof the financial asser, In which case, such gains ane recorced in

O], Bopuity instrumants designaied st fair value throwgh OC) are not sulhect To ImMpairent assessment

Thie Company does not have any Tinancial assets designated at fawr value through OO ety Instrumsnis)

o) Financial assets at fair value through OC| with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
(debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value throwgh OO0 if both of the following congitions are met

Thefinancial asset Is held vithin & business model with the chjective of Both holding to collect contractual cash fiows
and selling, and

The contractuzl terms of the financial ass=t glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the grincipsl amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OC) Interest income, forelgn exchange revaiuatinn ang impalrment (osses of
reversals are recognized |n the unconsolidated statement of profit or ioss end computed in the same manner as for
firancial @szets messured at amortized cost The remaining fair value ghanges are recognized in OCL Upon derecognition,
the cumuiative fair value change recognized in OO s recycled (o profitar loss

The Company does not have deot instruments recarded at fair value through OC] with recycling of cumnuiative gains and
IoEEes,

Financial assets - Derecognition

Afingncial asset (or, whereapplicabla g part of a financial asset or part of a Company cf cimilar financial essets) is prirnarily
daracognizad when!

The rights o receive cash fiows from the asset have axpired; or

Thie Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset of has assurnad an obligation te pay the
recaeived cash fiows In full withicut material defay to.a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement. and aither (a)
thie Company has transferred substantially all the risks and revwards of the asset, or {b} the Comnpany has neither
trancfarrad nor retained substantially all the ricks and rewards of tho ascat, but has transfarred control of the assat
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Whan the Comparny has traticferred itc rights to receive:gash flows from af @ssot or hat entel'ed Inte 2 pacc:throuwah
arrangemeont, It evaldates if, and to what exdtent. it I*.;qs retairied thie riske and rewards of ownership. Whon it figc noither
transforred tfior retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the accet nor-transforrod contral of the azcet the ascot i
recadgnized to the extent of the Campany'’s continuing iInvolwrment in the asset. [n that case the Lu11|[‘::||' 1w Akl recognizec
an associated liability. The trarefor’'ed asset and the assoclated lability arg maacsured on a bacic that roflects the rightc and
abligaticne that the Carmpany has f'etained.

Cantinuing imvalvémant that thkes the form of a guarantee over the trarsforred aoccot (= measurod at the lowar of tho
arlginal carrving armaount &7 the accet and the maximuiri amount of concidearation that the Company could be required to
rapay.

Financial assets - Impairment

I Campary recoanizes an allowance for expected credit losses (TECLY) Tor all debt Instrurments rot beld -at Talr value
throaaggh profit or loss ECLS are bavced an the diffesence betwesr the confrscnes! cash flows dud in 2ocardancs with thi
contract and all the cash fiows that the Compainy expects o receive | he shorifallis then discountod at 3n Iperasimaton
Lo the acsot s oninal effective interest ate

ECls are recognized [y two stages. For credht exposures for whinch there has not been -a sagnifficant increase in oredit Hsk
sifycEr initial cognition, ECL: are pravidod Tor eredit losses that resolt from default eventsthat are possible within the nest
12manths (a 12ymonth EOLY For thoese credit exposures Tor which thore has beon a sognificant increase in credit rek snce
initial mocgnition,a less allowancs = eguired for ECL ever the remairming life of the exposurs, irrespective of the timing of
the default {a lifctime ECLY The Comparny considers: a financ@xl assoet in default wihen Somtractuasl payrrants are 20 days
past due. Hiveevies, it Cortain cases the Company may alss considir a financil asset 1o bo In default when ntemal o oxtor

nal infarmation indicates that the Campany s anliveby 1o rocaive the gutstandltg contractual amounts o full beforetakmg
INTS acCount any credit enbaincemants held by the Company. Afinancial as=ot w writtian off wihen there = no reasanable
expectation of recovering the cantractual cash flows

i Commpalny wees a pronision mairs 1o culoulzte ECL s for tragde debts The pralisiorn rates are based an days past due for
arougings of varnous custormsr cedaments that have similyr loss patterns (te by gedaraphy, product Type and customer
tym]

For trade debts tho Comparny applies a simphified appgtoach ey calculating BECLs based on [ifetmme expected credit |asses
I pedvisiorr matels = imimially based on the Company's historcal abseoved difEuit rates. The Carmpany wall calibbrate this
meatrks 10 3diust the istatical credit los expanonce with forward lookimg information. For instarcs, f forecast economic
conditmns (e gross domestic product and inflation) are expected (o doteraate aver tho nextyear wihiich can e o an
incroased numibes of defaults I the cectorn, the vstoncal defaull retes are adjusted. AL avery reporting date, the hmiotical
ob=orved default rates aro updated and changss in the forwand lgokingestimaies are analyzed. The expected crodil Iosses
are recoghized inthe stottment of profif or less. For bank alarces short Torm investmenits, margin against batk guaran
=2 the Company apples e amplifed aporcach in caleulating ECL: based on hfetime ezpected cradit losses The Comparsy
rEviees Intemal and external informatian svallable foreach bank balares 10 e sxpectad crodit loss-and the fikalibood
Lo reconva the custanding contractusl amount. The oxprected cradit |osces arg recodmzed in the whcansoldated statement
of prrafit or loss
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

5112 Fimancial liabilities
Financial liabilities- Iritial recognition

Financial iabilities are classified, at initial recogniticn, as firancial Rabilities at fair valus through profit or joss, loarns and
barrowings:payvables, or as:derivatives desigrated as hedging instrumientsin an effective hedoe, as-appropriate

Al financial lizhilities are recognized initially at fair valae and, in the caze of loarns and borrowings -and payaoples: not of
directly attribufable transaction costs.

The Company's firmncal Habdities-include ong t2rm loans, short: ferrn borrowings atilized ander miark-up arnmangomisfes
creditars, socrued and other labilitics

Financial liabilities - Subseguent measurement
Loans and borrowings

Afer it recognition, iIntorest bearing loans and BOrrwirigs are sub=sguently measured at amortized oost wsing the EIR
merthod. Cairs and fosses are recoanead 0 profit or lass whon the latihtes are derecodgnized as well as through the BEIR
SMMOrTIZEon Qo

Armiartized cost = oalculated by taking inio account any distount o ptemium oreacousition and feos or oosts that are an
integtal part of the EIR. The EIR amortization & included a5 finance costs in the statoment of comptehensive iIncarme

I'his cateqaty apples 1o long tenm leans, short e Barrowings utiized under meark up arrangemmenis, creditomns, acorued
amd ather labilites

Financial liakilities - Derecognition
Afinancial lhabllity b derecognized whan the ebllgation under the liabdlity s dischargéd or cance|led or explres

When an existina financial liabiiity = replaced by ancthér fromy the same lender on substantially different terme ar the
terme of an exsting labllity dre substantially modified, such an eshange o modification iz treated as a derecognition of
the orlginal llability and the recognition of 3 new labliity, and the differences in the recpective carrying amounts s recoq

nizsdg nthe statermneant of profit or lo=

512 Off=stting financial instruments

Financal assets and financial kabilites are offset and the net amoont i reported 10 the unconsoligated statement of finan
cizgl posmion iT there s a currantly enforceabde legal ng bt to offeet the recognized amouwnts and thero = an intention tosettle
an anet basic, to realize the assolz ana settle the liabilities simultanecusiy
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

513 Operating segments

Operating segments ané reportad [ a manne Consistent with the nternal reporting provided to the chief oparating
dedsion maker. The Chief Operating Decision Makar [COOM), who s responzibile for allocating resources and acsdssing
parfarmance afthe operating cegments, foa boon identified as the CEO whio makes strategle decisions. The CODM rrord
tors thie operating results afits businiess umits separately Tor the purpose of makling decisions about resoures allocatlon and
parfarmance ascecomant. Segment performance £ ovaluated basad an profit or loss and = measured comskEbently with
prafit ar lses in the unconsalidated financial statemantz.

THa rmanagement has doterminod that the Campany has 'Cistributlon and Berall’ amd Accamilsly’ ot two detinc repartabde
sogimenteAncdcrdingly, cegment ralated inforrmation 1S presented in MNate £5

214 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Chwvidend distribution and appraariatian o ressrves are recognized as [latnlity 0 the unconsolidated financa! statoments
inthe e od 0wl thass are aporoved.

5.15 Investment in subsidiary

Ivwestrmerits in cubsidiaries are agpcounted for at cost In the uncorncsolidated-fimanchal satemonits of the Company. The oot
of an investmont £ meacuied ac the falr value of the concsidoeration transferned. including any tranzaction cocte directly
attributable to the acguisition of ths vwestimant

Sub=ggient to irbtial recogrition, investrments in sulbsidiaries are caifked 3t ooot lecs any acclmulated im pairmment lascexs
THa carrying amaunts of investmerts are reviowod Tor impalrmont whenover gvente or chatrges in oifcumstancos indlcats
that the cainying amount may not be recoverable An Impairment lost 5 recogrized in the unconsaldated staternent of
profit of lees whan the cariing amount af the investment okceeds 12 recoverable amount. The recoweralile amournt i the
Rigker of thae investmant's fair valide less eosts 1o sall and its valugin use

CHvidends received from subsidiaries are recognized in the unconsolidated staternent of profit or legs when the Company’s
Fialit to racelve the payrnant s establichiod

Whare thie Company dispoces of part ar all 6Fits investrmernt in a subsidiary, the difference between the carmying amaurnt of
thie irssestivient and the corsiieration receired 1S recodrzed In the undonsoldates) statement of profit or 1aes,

516 Earning per share

Bazic EPS = calculated by ciividing the profit or loss sitribiitabde to ordinany sharehaldors of the Company by weighted
averdge numiber of ordimary shares cutstanding during the yoar

Dilutad EF5 1= caleulated by adjusting basc ERPSwith weighed average numibes of ordinarny shares that wolld be lzsuod on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinany shares and post-tax effect of changes in profiter loss attri
utatle 1o ordinary-shareholgors of the Company that would result from cormeersion of all dilutive potental ordifarny shares
into crdinary shares
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Air Link Communication Limited

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

517 Contingsnt liabilities

A contingert hakility is disclaséd when!

thiers =a possibio obliagation that arees from ' past evants and whoss exlstorcs Wil be cortfirmed only by the oceut

FERCE Of Ron s oocurrencs of ane o more uncartain future evems not whally within the control of the Compariy; of

there i presant abligation that arlses from past evients but it = hot probable that an outflow of resaurces embadying
eoanornns benefis will be reguired to settio the obligatian or the armount of the abllgation cannot be imeaciurad with
sigfficiant ieflabilit
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&7 Right of use assats

Vehicles &M 9450 T BIa0 10
Rented profmisss - buldings 672 55 o8 120424
0O BaaaTS
&7 Vehicles
Year ended June 30,
Met carrying value basis
Cipaning net book value July 01, 6180359 S0
Additlons 2TTETSE
Dispeeals -
Depreciation chargs {2 481 264) (9,236 Blg)
Clerstng rot boak valuis 19,550,721 5160399
Gross carrying value basis
Cnet THl, 544 547 B T72965
Actumulated gopreciation E1.095.820) [B1.612.5655)
Mot bodk value H450,72 6,150,255
Cepreciation mte per annum % 2 1

6.72 Rented premisas - bulldings

Year endoed June 30,

Net carrying value basis
Oponing net book vaiue 3uly O 94 T2 474
Addinans ; 4
Cmpnsals
Depraciation chdange
Closing riet ook value

Gross carrying value basis
Ceet L05100,974
Acrummiulated deprociathon (27 a8d S16)
Mat book value 7.8 S5
Deprocistion rate per Snnurm U 10-20

7 INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software

Met earrying value

Opening balance as o July 07,
Actdition durinag the year
Amartization charge L
MNet book value &5 a1 Juna 30, T2 3R

B>




Gross carrying value
Coat ! L0 G0 ANT
Arcurmulatod amortizathan [ L) (30, 3X0 520}
Mel book valua TE23H 18267 %35
Amaortization % per annum L % EEi LT
T This represents the software upgradation of the Relail Pro softwas
72 Thxamaortization chargs for Lhe woar has Bbeen allodcatad as follows
Cor of revanue 0 QL Gl
Adminislratiiee exponse 3 16T 204
sallingand distribution costs ) 150576
B INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
Irnezstmant in subsidiany - st cost L
81 Mowvement in Investment in subsidiary iz as follows:
As at July Ol 5. 00 D00.000
Arfdition 2.500, 600 050
Ac at June 30, B2 B,000 000000
82 The Company directly hold 800 rmillion (2023 550 million) shares representing 100% ownership in STPL, a subsidiary
Company, The additional investment of B 2500 millkon was made during the year in accordance with the reguirement
of cection 199 of the Cormipanies Act 2007, accoadingly, the number of shares increased 1o BOO milllon [A52% 550 millian)
9 LONGTERM INVESTMENT
Financial assets at amortized cost
Torm finanes certificais =R _ 300,000,000
g1 Thes relates o a term financa - certificate [TRC) obilaired from 35 Bamk, having a face value of Bs. Nl (202X Fs 300 millsn)

and carried a mairkup at the fAteol 3 months KIB0E « 2 %, hoving a maturily parod of 10 years (2022 3 manths KIBOH +
2% The TRC paid intergst gquanterly, andis rated &+ by PACRA TFC s disposed off dunng the yeoss, Mowement in financial
Ag=ets = as follows:

Az at July B, 100 D00 000
Arddithons

Delotionz {00 D00 000)
Markup accrued

Current portion ef markup accrued on bng-tenm
inwestmenl - net

AL Al June B0,

B
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LONG TERM LOANS

Advance to employsos againest salary fLeR] 47055 510 Tyrsormn
Lo eurrent porton (22,770, 157) (13,7002 S0
SIS ETE 3708565

These are intorest free loan provided o employees and executives of the Company, repayabde over three years The
preaent value adjustmoent in accordancs with the reguirarents of IFES 9 ‘Financial Inetruments’ s insamnficant. henoe
nol recognizod in the unconsalidsted financal stalemenis

Fhis includes loars and advanoes armounting Lo B 3508 milion 202% e 2008 million] given to 238 (2024 13) axeoutives
of the Company. '

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

The net asset § [habiliny) for gdeferrad taxation compses Iomporary
differences relating 1o

Deceloratod tay depiesiation

Leacs liakilities - net

Dofired bonefit iabidhoy

Frovision for fat realizabho value adjustment
Woorkers Welfare Fund

Wi kers Profil Paricipation Fund

Provision for expected credil loss

Reconciliation of deferred tax - net

Azat July 01, B0 4% ZA a2 7T
Hecogneed o wuncernsoligated statarment of profit o loss TaS Of 4, B 0T
Feocognided n unconsolidates staterment of other comprabensive income 25 {2 142.351)
Az at dune 30, N 615118 WS B0S 405

Ceferred Lax acmet has boen recognized based on the setesament that suffent tecable prafits will be swallable (o the
Company in future vears, against which deferred tox assol will be utilisdd.

STOCK IN TRADE

Ravw rhaterial 0% 570 a5 I 0aoes
Wiairks I parosess N5 agrrizs
rabile phones A0 > JESDEQ DEE
Spare parts 50007, 186 &4 00T X5

06,002 O
Irrpsinrrent atkowancs: for slow moving and obsclete stock 121 (Lo ras)

EFSOT 915
Gomds n Lrarnsil 22 - 25592 55 TG
L 3087267 NS

Meserrent in impanrmant afllowance for slow moving and obeolote stock saz Tollows

AL Al Julby O, 107
Inereass in allowaroe G G B0
Revercsl during tho year

goo tEi_’iEﬁ,i-ﬂ:-'
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This represents goods that are made avallable for use (o the Cormpany by the supplier against open lettor of credits, but
have not yob boon recaiesd by the Cormpany:

Mote
TRADE DEBTS
Due fram custamens - Considored good
Considercd doubtful - Others! BIARETE
Allvwance for oxpocted eradil lesces |8 EL85TE)
Movement (o allowance for expected credit loee |2 as follows
Aeal Julby 01,
fReversal] £ eharge durlng 1he yoar 31 i
Clusing bsiance 8348 676

Theso custamers have no recent history of dofault. For agma analyss of these Trads dobis, refer o Note <027

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Recoivable from related party
Loan Tor working capltal reguirsmeants B4t TSR g 1903 516,315

Mafkup acciusd an loan 40 : £ OSTT0A
: g Lo9OT 510.02%

Advances considered good - unsecured

Advances 1o supphers el L34 186,550 e EES
Advance o cuttorm authoritlies - 80902077
Current portion of lonag term loarns 10 Z2NoEe 13,702 90
Adivante to emiplovees Adainst Campany expanses &4 500 B B0
Advance o pimpleyees against leaned [ mabilecsals 146,135 A6 15

AT IS0 1,724 680 Sat
4145760804 363225608

This represenils an amount receivsble agEinst expeices incdired to meet warking eaplital regquirement of the cubcidiany
company: Thie amount cames markae charged at 3 month KIBOR plus 36 and |2 expected 1o be repaid wathun ene
month from the reparting year efd The asirmum aggregated amount outstanding al any month end e RE3649
reilhion [2023-Re 1,908 millicn).

This reprosenls amount given: as advance to suppliars agalnst purehase af stock in trade.

TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVAEBLES

Advances o cleanng agent 151 94 551 554 -
Fregayrmears BG&ELET?
£ 551 e
Receivable from others
Margin adsinct letiers of eregit B 245 S0 148
Due frem brand ownars 152 SI0.034 007

Bank guaranies
Current portion of markug on long e invesoment

oo

Z500.000

1,032,787
7797057
LTEHED A




181 This represenis srrount depncaled with cusiom authonlies against Impar cesmnce.

7 This represeras due from brand owners on account of wnols incentives and promotions offered by them, and otheyt

costs reimburced by thosr
Mote R Rupsas

16 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT

Incoyme Lox
Prepald assets
Sales tay

541 52052

17 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Financial assets at amortized cost
Torm daposits rA| S0 00 0 200,000,000

AT e TS U ; STNEA5E
25T R ASS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

livvestivend e rrotunl furds 172 - R0 200y
219G B8 T4, TSI

7 Ths refates worerm deposits (TDHS) boving face valuse of 850600 million (2023 85 200 million) snd carying markap
ranging from (8% (o Z2% 2073 12 205% 10 205049, having a maturity. pesiod of 30 daye (o 365 days D02%: 30 daye (o 365
dayc). Thase TDHs are under lign against Tunded facilitios obtsned from financls instiutions.

y72  This amount relates o0 unile 075 29945 units) of Al Habib Cash Fund managed by 4] Habib Asset Management
Lirmited.

7.3 Mavement in financlal assets is as follows:

Rupees

For the year ended June 30, 2024

AL at July 01 2T NT 45T

Agditions 2000000000 - -
Encashed (1E00,000,000) - (20, 204)
Markup accrued 100020108

Falr vitloe gat on iImvestonent

Markup reconed (135,636 642
[owy ke o




At Fair value
through Profit or

For the year ended June 30, 2023

£ a1 July O, B 605 BSL 44 BIZ 15D [Ra o Xow Tt
Additans F0.460,000 HTTESG AR y IR0 N&T
Encathed (B, O ) [ET1E4.488] (49,071,602 [1.486756.250)
Mark up accrued AL 05 A 1157746 o AEZTTE
Fal value gair on twestment - . 2zie DF B8]
Mark up recojvad (#5205 43R (14147 756] o8 L3210

21N 452 00299 e 8 S

Tig  Mosermand in gan on rereasurement of financal assets at faw value through proflt or loss is as follows:

A= at July 01,

Fabr value galn dunng the year
Gain realizzd during the year
Written off during the year
Clesing Bialam o

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Caeh i hand
Cazh at bank - Current acealnte

19 SHARE CAPITAL
¥ Authotized chare capital
2024 2023

Number of ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/ sach

E00,000000 | 00000000 Feff- My IvEs SEYiar 4T, - AV ) 000,000,000 6,000 000 (0

9.2 lssued, subscribed and pald up sapitsal

025 2023
Number of ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/~ each
192 592 OOH ([= et bl Va1 Fully paid i cash SRS 1028 N (D)
AT TR EX 202 576.90% Fully paid binus sharss 2 (2% 765 250 2EETRI I
05 0 A5 205 260 1 risirh 2950 ) XD

Boe



SHARE PREMIUM - CAPITAL RESERVE

IS5 1TEBOR

This resenve can be utillred by the Campany only for tha purposes speciied in sectror 8152) and 81(3) of the Companies
Ast 2007,

Shara premlum resene 20

LONG TERM LOAN
Cirie Leasinig Pakistan Limiled 21
Saudi Pak Industnal and Agrculiura)

Irvestrent Compary Limited 212 B0 00000 BO0 OO0 000
Fak Orman Investmeant Campany 23 [ ¢ 150,000,000
Ao Arcrubd miErkup I8 G SH 240 616

1,056 551 550
Lecs Currant portiorshown undar currant kabilites: { (228 IHZ JT4)

Loes; Actrued markuppreseniod nocurrent abilites [ 45 (58 245610)
. GO0 SA0.000.000

Thes represente loan obitaired fram Ornix Leasing Pakestan Umited unde: sale and ledse back arrangerment of different
machinory including but net limited to mobllz asserm bly urits, air conditiona ineluding VRF system. elévator, electical
aquipmeants vehicles As the ransfer of the assets did not meet the ontene of sales under IFES 15 Revonue from
Cantracts with Cuttomers therefore the sald transaction has been troated under [FRS 9. The loan carries mark-up of &
rrenthe KIBOR+ 55 and s repayable 56 equal monthly instalimenss The mark-up raze charged during the y=ar an the
cultstanding balance ranged fromm 25,04% 1o 25 865 (3026 20,6 3% 1o 27 16%) per annume The loan was secwred againe Lhe
loased assate. Thicloan is sattled during the yaar

Tho represonts’ ioan of PKE BOD million abtained from Sawd Pak Industrial and Asgrieultural nvestment Company
Lirmited jr 2021 Lo rmeet working caplal requiraments of the Compary. This loan was obtained for Lhe period of 5 vears
with & agrate period of | year from the dale of first disbursement. Loan s repaysblein 8 edual semi-gnnual instalments
starting from the end of 8th guarter from the date of first disbursement. The rate of mark upeen loan is 3 months KIBOHR
+2 5% The mark-up rate charged during the year on the outstanding balarce ranoed frarm 2274% - 25 B4 1o ROZL 1R 275%
tn PR 5E%] per annurm. This facility is secured against all present and future current assets of the Campany.

Thia roprosents loan of PEHE 300 million obtained fram Pak Coman (nvestmenl Campainy Limited in 2020 ta rmeel waorking
capizal reguirements of the Company. This loan was obtaned for the peried of 3 years with & grace pariod of B month
froem the date of first deburcernent. Loan s repayable in 10-equal auarterly instalmentizs starting from the end of Ird
guarter from the date of fist debursement. The rate of mark upon loan = 3 monthe KIBOR + 2% The mark-up rate
chargid during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from 2224% - 26 14% POFS 1736% (o 24.90%) per annum.
This famility is =ecurad sgfainst all presentand Tuture cunont assats-and non curcant assots of thie Compsny.

LEASE LIABILITIES

|eaze panod for the lease during curent year mnges from 3 1o 10 years (2625 3 to 10 years) The éffective interest rate
used ac-tho discounting factor (i.a incrarmoental borrowing rmte) ranges from 9.39% po 25 99% (2075 939% 10 12.694). The
armgurite of fulure payments and the porods in which they will beesmie die ane

Boo
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Year ending

024 B4 798,171
2025 1£ L3 IS S
2026 = e T RRA
2027 : 582175
207E HATHS38)
2025 -
Later than 2029 5 Sk
200 058 207
jees Fudure finance charges ELS00 24.4) (2 ae 3a00)
Present value of lezse payments 40 0814 T8 168120 108
Leze Currant maturity Shnen undiar curient liabilities i LY [rione sns)

S5, 142001

Lease payments (LP) and thelr present value PV} are as follows:

Biises reevl Batese Lhvaen | year 64 101 599 AL LR 200
By later than | year but mot later than
Gysars 2R 997 5 o0 BO% SHE

Lator than 5 yaars : ki 13,804 240
5084 T8

Movement of lease liabilities

As at July 01,

Aqdilbons during the year £

Mark-up on lease [labilities B 7D 500 25000 450

termination of lease 155 Xea o)
' £ 418 FTIEET IS

Bayrments fadjustmants: S BT 2 1Y, Mo Se6 Aef)

Presanl value of lease paymentic 14008, 1% TEB 030

Less: CurrenTporteon of long tenm leasa [%3.576200) [Ti578 305)

6142 001

Cash outfiow for lease

the Company had tal cazh outfiows for leases of Re, E8 5RO 968 [Eiﬁlt Fe 104568 848 | Mar-cash additions 1o riahi-
of use acsats and lease habilites in the currenl véar amounts to R FL0GE0 17 and Bs BDATE 642 respectiveby (2028 e
Pk,

DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY

UNFUNDED CRATUITY

Thaarrmunts recognized in the unconsolidated statement of flirancial pecition are:

Presanl value of defined berafits obligation

Roo




232 Thoamounis recognized n the unconsoidaled staterment of profitor ioss are:

Current sarvies cost

Fasl seprvice cosl

Interest eoct an deflined bonelit obligation

Exponse racognized in the unconsofidated statemont of proficor Joss

3 Movernent in the net present value &f defined bensfit ehligation iz

Mot habuhtes at the beginming of the year

CLrant sarnce oost b 27e S nagass
Past sarvica cost - 1057118
Interest cest on defined bonefit ebligation 212 480 2 Ln i fleg
Femeasurements loes f (galn] chamiod to other eomprahisfsive noams
-Actianial 3ssurpthi 3 250 &T8 5511187
-Experinnoe adjustmants -

X 286 504
Loes: Payrments dunng the year (16,092 O8] [BE156.7HT)
Mt labulities at the and of the peor 2 ET4 ARG Fd =i ]

Qualified artuaries have earred out the valuation as at June 309, 2024, Tha projected unit credit methad, bazed an the
foliowing significant assumprions s wsod for valuston:

Dicrouint ate

Exipoctiod rates of salary increasein futire years
REtiremant sccumpion

Mortalty rate

Thar risks 1owhich plan 2 exposed include zalany, gemographic, investment and diecount rske I the ssamificant aciuanal
ascymiptiong (relating o major rlsks] wsed (o estimals the defined benefit obligatlon at the reporting date, had
fuctuated by 100 bps with all othar varbables held constant, the impact on the presont value of the delined bosafit
abligatan would have bieen as follosws

Aszumption

+100 bps CEscount rate

Decroumnt rats
+100 bps Expectad incres<e in saliary
108 s Expartadd ncrercs jn ssiary
bdrtabity mb=
bdrtality mb=
Mlartality varixdon
Mortafity wnation

The sensitivity analysis above have béen detorminad based an a methed that extrapolates tho impact on defined
benefit abligatin as g result of reasonable chanoes in key assumpbons accurmng 3t the end of the reporting year,

The average duration of the defined berefit plan cbigation at the end of the reporting year s 5 years

goo



Mote

Within rext 12 months
Botwinnr 2 and 5 years
Botwienn Sand 1y
Beyand 10 vears

F34 BEipociod oxponse for noxt yesr

Ther expeciod expense [ogratuity scheme for the year ending June 30, 2005 works oul 1o be R 23919 millicn.

24 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables GEZ 215 HEG
Accrudi expenses 48380557 B5.589 257
Coe-to brémd cwnhiers TE&55063 -
wWithhaolding tax payalle Ly L L

Warkers" Wellare Fuiha 24 0 990 0%

Wiarkors' Prafi Participalion Furd 252 P e e

Other payables T

241 Movemeant in Workers' Wealfare Funds

Azat July 01,
Charge for ths year
A al June 30,

24.2 Movement in Workers' Profit Participation Funds

Asar luly 01 mFasoas
Charoe for the year TRoga s
Imerest charge for the year in B AsT TN

A gl Jupme 20, X4 TISE 00R

22T Thisincludes rebate payable amount 1o Be Nil [207% Be 8116 825) which is adjustalile against due from brand owners

25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

JS Bank Liresting 251 LS5 000 000
Subiuk 2532 2000000000
Bank Al Habib Limited 253 [ RET Ay
Dubai 1slgmic Sank TS S07 %00.000
Askari Bank Limied 255 e ED
Faysal bank Limited iy TR0 Seoy (5
Indusirmal arm Commercal Bank of Chins -

Arpyued markup 2508
6557266315 I
Less Arcruad markup presanted In current liabilities 279 505 Sy
. {va) caerensos i




257

Hepresents the utllized portion o warking capital facilities for funds against trust receipl (FATR) and short term fnanee
(&TF) amounts to B Wil (2025 B 947 milion] and B L1355 millon 2025 Rs 243 million|, respectivedy, Lot limitof aoihty
for sight-lottar of eredit [SLC) amounts o [ £000 milllan (2028 85 £ 3550 million), shipping auarantees of Be 4000
million [Sub Lirmic of SL0) (2025 Bs £ 350 Million), FATR amounting 1o 1150 millien (20235 Hs 1150 milllon]. STE of Bs 1150
million (2023 B 1,150 milion) fsublirmit of FATR), running finance of Bs 200 millian [sublimit of FATR) [202% Rs 200
reillion), Bank guarsniee of Re, 155 million {2023 Re, 135 million {sublirmit of EATR] ared ST 11 of Rs 1,000 million (20275 Mil).

Thize facilities are inter-changoable with wholly ewrsed subsidiary of the Conmpsny. The rate of markupon funded
fatlities = 3 manths HIBOR - 2% (2002% 5 moanths KIEDR + 2% The markup rate charged dunng the ysar an the
outstznding balancs rangod frarm EX2sE i 26145 [200% 17 52% (0 24 915%] poar anmum.

Thizze facilities are sacured agalnst martgags of residential proparties belonging 1o sponsars and shamsholders kaving
fair market value amounting to &8s 187.55 million (2023 B 19505 million} and investment property of subsidiary Ravirg
fai' market value amounting 1,017 518 millize, Jeint pan pacsu charge of amounting 2700 rmilllion (20258 R 3700 millian)
over &l present and futurs Cument assots and parsonal guarantees of all ditactors of the Cormpany,

- This reprasenls Shariah eampliant, privately placed and unsecurad Subukbs of six months tevorissued during (he year.

The procseds therafrorm wers ulilized 1o finance the Company's working capital requltemenL They carry profit at the
rate of & months KIBOR + 17595%,

Hepresantc thie utilized portion of working cspital faeilities for Fundz agalnst trudt recdipt [FATR/STF] smounts to Fe 639
il (2025 B 941 millian), total lmitof facility for saht-letter of credit [S1LC] amounting to 852500 million (2028 Bs
29000 I'I'ldin:ﬂ"'l'l running nance fcility of B 560 milllion (2023 B 560 milllon) (sublicnit of FATE), STF of 540 Million alsa
interchangeable with whaolly owned subsidiany Select Technolomes Pvr Lid. Therateaf mark up on Turrded Tacllities 53
ronthe KIBOR + 15%{0F] £ T months KIBOGR + 2% (FATR) 2073 moenths KIBORE+ 15 (AFYE S manths KIBOR - 2% {FATRH].
The markup tate charged doring the year on the culstanding balance ranged fram 27406 1o 2814% (2022 17.55% 1o
Z49015) par anmiuim,

These facilities are secured agamst mortoage of resdential properties Belonging Lo sponsors and sharshalders Raving
fair rmarkel value ameaunting oRa 513 millice (2023 7 357 milllon) and par passu | jeint parl passo charge ovar current
agzets of Be, 5500 milllion (2023 85 5500 rmillion], Rarking Charge on Plant and machmety of Air Lok Cammunication
lirmitied Fe 940 million, cach madgin, lien over terrm depesitc torm certificates, current accounis and impert documenis,
poreongl guarantees of direcrors and mortganors of RL 7800 million (202 Rs V.800 million) and cross corporste
guiranises

Bepresants the utdized portion of working capital facilities for Hunming Musharakah [BM] amounts to B 07 milhon
(2024 s 525 illion), total nit of facility for sight-letter of Srodit {SLCH) arnounting B= 1200 million [2G23: B 1200
reitlior], (SLC- 1) amountiveg Re 800 million [Z02% Ba. Nil), shippirg guarantee {sublirniLof SLCT) of 821,200 million [2029%
Re 1200 million), shipplng guamntes (sublimit of SLE-11) of As. 800 milllon (2025 Rs, Nil] and import Murabaha..f letisra
eum Wakalz of B 800 rrillion [202T BL BOO million) 2nd Bunning Moshaiks of B2 BOO million [202% Be 8OO million)
(Sibsbirmit of LC sight) The rate af mark up on funded facilities = matching KIBOR + 25% The markup rate charged dunng
the vear on the autstanding balance rangad from 2554% to 25605 (2025 1787% Lo 25.47%) parannum.

Theze facifities are interchanaeabile with whally owned subsidiary the Company and secured against Joint parl pasu
charge of amodntimg 700 milkon. The securily commprise of Lien over irmport Documents | Lien over Depost { TOR in the
narme af Company | Sponzars account being malntained with Dubal lslamic Bank oy as par SEE reauirements whichever
t=-higihar ' ) '

This reprecants tha otilized partion. of working capital facility for Short Toerm Binance amod ntivg to Rs 106 milbion (202
2= mil), total limitaf fEclity Tar letter of cradlt fsight) amountls 1o B SO0 millon (2022 ks SO0 rrillian), shipping guaran.
tees of B, 500 million [202%: . 500 milllon sublimit of latter of eredit [sight]] and shart term finance of B 500 millian
(2323 B 500 millan| {subsirt of letter of credst (sight)), The rate of mark ap on funded facilites 1= 3months KIBOR = 19%
[202% X morths KIBOE < 15650

Thoze facifilies afe secured against parsonal guaranises of directore along with their nat worth statomente Thesa
facilities are cecured against joint Had pessu charge of Be 354 million (2025 ps. 334 million) over all presantand foture
curtenl assols of The Company, TOR covering 50% of utstanding exposure at all times.
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e Represents the ubtihzed poruon af workong capital faolies for Funds agansl Trust recept Loca] Murabahs amounisio

e 1000 milllon (2025 R MNil), tatal Hmit of fufnded lipe Local Muabaha amounts o Be 000 milllen [2025% R i) The
rato of rmack up on fundod Beilites s ratovant KIBOH +2%. Tha markupe rate charged during the yvear an theputstanding
=mlanoe romoed frorm 2045 1o 25 14% perannum

These facilites gre secured agamnst TOR jomnt pan assa PP charge of 1,000 millicn on current asset. 380 charges of
700 milllion on fixed azente ol Seleet Technologies (Private) Limced and 1PE tharge an plant and machineny.

Hots
ACCRUED MARKUP
Long term kkans 21
Shortterm borrmwangs 25

CURRENT PORTION OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lorg térm luans 21 X0 OO0 (00
L=ase fabilities | &5 576205

XT3 ST 2% SN 20515

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

A number of legal cases have beon filed againsy the Tomypany by indbdduals gt warjows foremes ielating o sevearal
dispiites [ differencs of opinion prirarily In relation to corksumer court mattars. Due to theil naturs, 1tis not possible to
guantify their fnancial impsect at present,. Howevor, the rmanagement and the Comparny s legal advisers are of The view
that the autcame of thoss cases i€ oxpected 1o be favorable and aliability i, any, arsing on the settfemont of thess cases
15 not likely 1o e matanal Accordingly, no provision has been made for any Hatality that may anse az a result of these
cases |n these unconsolidated Mnancial staternents

Commitments

s of e

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Sales - Local 58 B 52T 757
S2rVICD INcame SE_ 84D 45
Gioss sales CEST4 BEGE A
Lees; Sales ta [ 385 45)
Less CHecaunt 2248084007
56,260 87T
Geographical reglon:
Fikbiiran £8 674, 866218 L4 574,486

goo



Timing of transfor of goods and services:

AL a point 0 Lme i i LT P P
Contract balances

Trade deid 2 045 TG BE]
Contract labilities 291 1 ETLEIRZHET

22 This represents the hebility recoamezed i respect of consdeaion recenved from customans before the sansfaction of
perfoirmancs sbligation. Revenue recogniznd in tho roparting perod that was ineluded n the contract labilities balance
aL the begmmng of the vear amounts Lo B 1671813 reillion (2023 B 1523 milllon). The bafance of contract liability asat
Jure 30, 2024, s expected to be recogmzed as reveri e within one year,

30 COST OF REVENUE

Ry matonal consurmso ol ITERTIESS0 BEZ 5T 611
Soles mron mobnies 25 55K G606 ;
Regulatory duty N AR OG5
Insurance 5333 T
Clearinig charges 0SS 08
Salarios wages and benefis =2 67812
Custom duly - tablets .
Depeecinthon &5 ISARTLLT
Utilities 4 S8 0
Armortization b QLLCAL
Exchanos joss s
Domestic carnage TIEZS00
WOTETEE 41450662 445
INCreass i veorlein-process T2 4353 {675,008
Corst of goods assembled T B0 804 84]
{increase] [ deciease in Tinished goods v b |
Ceent o gposocte enld - Owin azcedimibled 15 408 B S0R
Cost of goods sold - Iimported for resale E
Corst of goods sald - Purchased locally for resile E50964 344,740 as d
50 440 172 500 1220% NS er
500 - Asat July O, SFLO2ETEG SHA TN D2
Purthases dunmg the year 18090375952 380955594
1BAE 03 757 &3 s
Asat June 10, (LOSRSBE T 1

Rarad mipleflal consuimed 7519 NESAD

goa




31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE Hote

=xlareswages and benafits 111
Daprecialon G
Insurance ZA03T 538
Legal snd professional T 6 255

Regar and mainienance
Feas and subscrptitn

tlinies fria T =2
Office expence TLHIS A5
Socurity sarviee charges IB06a T2
Traveling and conveyance 50587 00
Eftariainment SRS L
vehicte running oxpongoe IO OEGEXT
Postage and mwelephone 2H97TTe
ArnorLzation 72 LET2 20
Printing and staticrany 2T 76l
Avditors remuneration 32 5560 000
Allgesances for expected cradit less - trads dabic EA (6 7Ea A5

Charity and donatian 53 S0 406 140
Misenlianeous axponse 1780843
ANz Er)

10 Salarles, weges and banefits includs Do 908 milllon (2523 fo 169% million) |n respect of gratuity furd.

12 Hreakup of audiior's remunaration s az follows

Annual audit foe 1 3000000
Rewvieswy of condensed intenrm Mnancial statemenis B0 000
Qut of pockel svpanse 203 000
Cartificates and othel sfsurance engagemaris

% During the year, the Comparny has nol pald donations o any erganizatian, in which any director or hils spouse has an
intorest - Donation o the following perties [ organizetions skeeeds |09 of tatal amount of donation: expanse or Bs. 1

rriiflion.
Million smiles foundation y 300,000
Suncer s1ormschool 00

Suppoit Tor farmily of exsomployoe (Late Hiaz Moo
Custarns Health Care Sooiely
APWA Rana Liagat Craftman's Codony Wealfare Project

32 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salanes wages and benafite 21 BEs0E
Fretaht oubward 3505 TN
Adtvertieement and promoLaes 8080804
Depretiation (= 51 R56755
Trensalling and convoyamea 7. 7x0 0
Packing exponse [R5y
ANoTLEZSL0n T2 2145976
itilities 308595204
IfgLrance

L\:é.wge and cormmuilcation G2 44 24 (85 10
AT ol IR TG54

2 Salaries, wages and banefits includs Do 908 milllon (2523 fo 169T million) |n respect of gratuily furol.
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OTHER INCOME

Prafilon jnvestmenis.

Markupinoome.on lean ghven o sutrssdiany

Unrealized gamn on finanoal assets at far value through
peafit o loss:

Gain on termination of lease

Gain on digpesal of operatlng fixed as=aic

OTHER EXPENSE

Provnsicn for Workers Welfare Fund

Prowision for Workses Profit Parbcipaton Fund

Increase in provision forslow mioving and absolete soek
Loss on dispe=al of torm finance certificate

joes an disposal of operatirg fied aseet

Irvestifierit in rrutusl fonde wiltter of

FINAMNCE COST

Bank charges

Intorest | markug on:

- Short term barrawings

- Long term loans

- Leaze liabulithes

-Markess Prafil Participation Fund

TAXATION

Current tax
Current peciod
Prioe porind

Defarred tax - relating to orlgination of temporary difforences

Currant tax labuity for the year as per the Crdinance

Peutlan of current tax Habllity a5 per tax laws
regresanting income tax undor 185 12

Portlon af current tax computed ac por Lax laws
repracenting lesy i ormsof reguirsrnents of |ERIC
2Nas 37

241
2432

i

0013210
02915656

10405176

672835
176958199
BS46E3S
44 450 5%)
Ranne
101200
I8 108 355

99536780

ST ATRATD
1= NE
B0
e

1 B0% SRS B66

H4 550 BLE

394 515 58
2077 5565, 350

36 EIA R
[1E7, 156, 41%)

4 BO- O

(A% S0

(187 136,413

T 56515

Ther aggregate. of curfent INCoME Lax Samounung o B 325768 million 2023 Rs (IB7136) millen) represontis tax hatliny
of the Cormpany calculated under the relevant provisions of the income Tax Ordinance, 2001

oo



36.2 Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit

Arcounting profit. before taxatlon IMSETRB

Tax at apphcable tax rate of 2008 (20023 29':] 91554 609

Tax effoct of;

Expences not allowed for tax 9725908

Deguctible exponses (17 Nasls)

Incerme nol allowed for tax {56,758 455

Ceferred Lax (TrEs4) o08)

Prios years tak [t 53} ¥95)

fax credits under seetion 65 (D) for theyear BT 206 35| (A8 SRR O1F)
Supor tax at rate a7 105 TR <10, O B6 685701
Tax cxpense for the yesr 152 X6 Th [IB2 352 £00)

33 This includes adjustment of tax eredit amounting @ RS &1730 million (2023 362 milhon) under soclion 65 (0). The
Campary made an investment in financial year 2021 for egtablishing and eparating a new (ndustrial undertaking. Undsor
the soction 65 |0} of tha income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the Ordirance}, Tor a perind of 5 yoars beginning financial vear 2001,
the Cormpany can clamm tax credil sommnst mibimum @y and fingl akes Evable under any af the provisions of the
Ordiranoz on the takable income arlsing from such industial undartaking: caleulated with referones 1o propartion of
the equity investment 1o the wial investiment. There ane nNo non-1ox conditins altached 10 thes crogins excepl source
af financing, Subeequent to the Campany's Ifvestment, the Finance Act. 2021 has repealed the wsection 65 (O] with
effective date of 01 Jufy 2031, Curing the year, the Coampany avaiied The tax oredit while filing e tax rotrn for the o
year 2025 Manasgement af Company, bated on the opinian fram the Comipanys Lax advisor, & confident that Company
Fasa legitimate claim, considaring the Company's right tofax crodit was sstablished wpan investmont whon secticn 85
{2} weas i effect

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Prafit attributable o ardinary equily holders for basic earnings

Weighted average number of srdinary shares adjudred far theeffest
af difutenn

Earmingpershare - beme and diluted
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38 RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprlse. of subsidiany, and the Companys Directors and Hey management personnel Balances with
related partios are discleced If respactive notes to the unooncsolidated financial staternents Sigrificant trarsactions with
related parties other than these disdlosed elsswhiers in the uncorsalidatod financial staternents are-as Tollows:

2024 2023
Name of related party Nature of transaction Rupees Rupees

select Technologies Expenses paid on behalf of the subsidiany 2 1074 06 B55:
(Privats) Limidged - 3 - - o . — -
- Expenses rarmbursad by the subsidany : acia LTEASE
= submsdiary cormpany

Expen=ss paid by the subsidfiary on behaif == vt LB S5 Ll

ofthz Company

Expenss reimbursad-by the Compary i MOLEE2 S5 140

biariup imcome G £.0527708

Outsianding balance as at Juns 30,
Feczlveble from the subsidiany e e sroor

o BREMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate prmolne charged |n the uncensolidated financlal statements In recpect of remuieratian, cluding all
benafite bo Chilet Exacutive. Directors and executives of the Company ane ac followe

Pl creTiad e arredd Lor LR T
Crtinlly & il P
Peechien ] &l lgwasre= o OO
By

Murnbe ol paianig

The Chief Executive 15 provided with company-maintained Car. No remuneration = said 1o arectors athar than Chief
Executive and gme executive direcior, Meeting fee amounts 1o /He, 2500 000 3004 1 T8 000 are pakd 1o & [202% §)
independent Directore Some exeutives have bear pravided with company maifitaimed vighicles and are also entitled to
T | slloraanoes

&0 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Tha Cormpany’s principal financial Haklittes comprize of long-terrn loan, short-terrm borrowdngs, unclaimed dividend and
trade and othoer payables. The rrapor portion of these financial lHahilitkes include short-terrm: borrowing thot s svailed to
mest the working capial regquirements The Company’s principal financal assels include trade debis athat recolvabiles,
ldare and advances, deposits choit-term and long term Investrnents and cadh and bank balatoes

The Compary iz enpoced to market rick, crodit rick ard liguldity rizk, The Company's canion imanageitient overcees the rick
profiie and s supported by the finarce departnent that aovises on financial risks and the appropriste financial risk
aoverminge framework for the Company, Ths department aleo provides assutancs 1o the Coampany s sonion rmanagemeant
that the Corripany™ francial rck-taking actidties are aoverned by appropriate policies and procedures and that firancial
risks. are dentified, measuned and managoed in accomance with Company's policies and risk appobie. The Board of
Dijrectors revlews and approves polinies for managing each of these riske which are summarized below:

&0.1 Market risk

ThHe sepsitivty aralzis has beon praparad on the basis that theamount of net detst. the ratio of fived to floating interest
rates of the debizand the properton of financial instrumants in foreian currencies areall constant

guo



The sencitivity analycls has been bagad an the sccumpiion that the sencitivity of the relevant profit ar less item < the offect
ofthe ammumed changes in respect of rmarkot riske Thiz k= bazed en thofinandal assets and francial labilities bald 2t Jurs
A0 2074 and June 30 2028

4011 Interest rate risk

Thi interest rato risk i the Fek that the fair value oF the future cach fiow of afinancial instrurment will Auctuate becaime of
changes in market intorost rates Majority of the nterest rate exposure atices from shart tarrm borrswinas from banks and
chiort terr depasits with banks Ar the reporting date the mterest rate risk profile of the Cormnpany's interest bearing
financial instrurments =

Fixed rate instruments

Finantial acgers GO0 200000000
Variable rate Instruments

Fnaneial ascets i 5L ERA 2203 ATT 615
Flnancial liabllities G977 X E05 535 550

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Thiée Coempany lsnot expised 0 Interest rata rick on its fived rateinstruments ac all of thece aro of a chort term nature.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A chanoe of 1000 basts points in intorest rates weuld have increased [ [decreased] profit by the amounis shown below

This analysis aveumes that all other vanables remain corsiant

Increase [ decresse in bacis pairits Fal + f =000
Effect on profit before tax 2} (12017 B75)

Market price risk

Fae ' investmemts at-f2in value though profit ar 18523 104 increacse ) decres=s in miarkst prics 3t réporting date would Rave increased [
cecraased profit for the yesr by Be nil 02 He 30730)

4012 Currency risk

Currancy rak s (e rak that thewatee or Tuture.cash fAows of financiad instruments will fluctsare doste changes in forsion exchanze rees
Curtency risk semes mzinly from récehables 2nd payabiss that sxist dus to transactions n forsinn curencies. The Company = not matedally
sxposad 1o the rizk of changes in foresgn exchangs mteEs 5 the brend owners have agresd o compenste for any Fuciuations o forean
CUIMBNCY MoWEmEenis

45013 Other price risk

et price-tisk teprecents thie fiek that the fah vaius or fimorecdsh Mows-of 3 finapclal instrrmant will luciusEte becawse of changes |In
market prices (othar than thoss amising from intsrast mte sl o currency risk], whether thase changes are caused by fectore specific to tha
individual finsnost instrumens or it =50, or facioes affecting all =irmilar fingncia) nstrements r=ded 10 the markse

402  Credit risk

Cradit rek is the risk which ansss with the posibiiity that one pamy 1o 3 financsl insrument will f2il o deschame neobiigation and @use the
atharpaty to Incus 3-Gnancis jo==. The Company Sttempis to controf credit rigk by monitoring credit exposudes; imiting vansactions with
smarific coum=mmetti=s and, comtinually ==es=ing the creditvarthines of munterparizs The {ompany do=s not S=lleve it & epozed 1o
major concanuraion of credit risk, however to manags sny posibls sxoosures the Company applies apongyed cradit Timiks 20 is customses
Cradit figh s the rizk that = countesparty will ot meeties sbligsticns under s Fnancial Isstrurment or costomer contract; i2ading to s financial
ln=. The Company = exposed to credit ek from t=operating activitles, primarity for trade debis

The miansgement monitors & limits the Cormpany s sxposurs o oedit rlsk through menitoring of ollem's credit sxpesie =dsw snd
consevEtive estimatas of peovisions for expected cracit loss, T any, and thyough the prodent use of colisteral poficy. Customer credit ek e
mansged sublect to the Company’s sstablished polisy, procedires and comtrol relating o customer credie risk mansgement Credic limikes
and qualny are established for 2l cosomears based an mdnidisl cosomers gsaluation,
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Thé Campany B axpoced ta cefedit risk on'trads debte, ather recoivables, depasits, loars and advances, cholt-term and
lome)-term invwostments and Bank Balabices. The Coampany sooks to minimize the credit risk etpocuie through Raving
oy pesures only (o Customers conslderad cradit worthy and obtaining securiticswhere applicable. The maximilm exposurs
to eredit risk at the reporting date £

Trade debie - Unsecursd S 0 206, T 281
Other recaivairles 2.4 4 S SO0 asT
Long terrm investmants 200,00 O
Advances te clearimg agent Sty -

Loansz and advances 475 J ELN2206

Short term jnvestrments 671, 185 61 25IN3 450
Hapk balances 1210957695 EXTTTLOL
ToL6 4 3 A05L Gt 517

Thie oredit guality of financial ascetc can be ascecced by ridfarence to pxtornal credil ratings ar the historieal infarrmation
about cournter party cefadlts as shown belowes

4021 Trade Debts

June 30, 2024

Mot due [4] 25601 06D
Plast gues
130 clay= IR 02546
3160 days
G180 days ] 250 L64
91120 days THS, LY lnc Al
Above 120 days 58 348 906 L BTiES

(&) Gih ST EIE RS0 THE

[&+B] X 535 447880 BILABSTE
June 30,2023

Mot due Al
BPrast diue:

1-30) diays

60 days

6190 oays

91120 days

Above 120 days

Animpairmaentanalyss is performed a0 cach reoting dale dsing & DIovisian matrid Lo easure expoched oredit losces The
provision rates ars based on days past due for grougings of various customer segments with similar lowe patiomns [Le, by
profduct Tvpe, customer type and ratingl, The calcwlation roflects the probabiliny waiohted: outcomie, the time value of
maorgy and reasonabile and suppartable jafarmation that = avallable at the reporting date about past evante current
conditicns and folecasts of future economic condiDiors. The Maximuim Gxposure o C'edit (sk-at tha teporting date is the
carty|ng value of sach clase of financial assetz The Company does not hold callateral a2 cecyrity, The |etters of credit and
ather forms of credit insurance are considored integral part of trade receivabies and: considared in the caicdlation of
Irnpirrrent, The jnformation alout the credit rish asposure on the Company’s trace debt< using a provision matel e alven
above.

4022 Bank balances, long term and short term investments, and other receivables

Credit sk fram Balanoes withy Ganks and financial nstitutions i@ managed by the Compam’s finance. dapgartmant i
actordatoe with the Company's policy. Investiments of surplus furdis are made cnily With approved counterpanties and
within credit imits assigned 1o each counterparty. Counterparty credit [imits arne oviewed by the Company’s Board of
Cirectors oriar annual basts, and may be updated throughout the year subjest to approval of the Chief Executive. The Himits
arg sof to fminimize the corcentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a countarpar ty's potontial filures
Lo ke paamenis
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Financial institution

Cash and bank balances

Ajlled Bank Limited PACEA
Asken Bank LirmiDed PaCREA
Bank Alfalah Lirmited PACEA
Bank AL Habilb Lirmitea PACHEMA
Bank lelami Pakittan Lirmited PACEA
Dubal [slarmic Bank Psbistar Linmiled RS
Fay=al Bank Limited PACHRA
Hatils Barik Limited Jcas
Halrb Metropolitan Bank Limitad PaCRA
HBC SED

J5 Bank Lirnited PACEA
Meeran Bank Umilled RIS
MCE Bank Lirmitad PACDA

Matianal Bank of PakiEstan PACRA
Silk Bank Lirmited s
Sindh Bank Lirmitad
Sonen Bank Linritead
Standard Chartered Bank

Bank Makrarmah Limiled (formerls St Bank Lirmited) mnas
The Bank of Khyber RS
The Bank of Purmjab PACRA
Uirhifed Bank Limiiad ICRME

L0278 With recpect to credit risk arising from ather financial assets of the Company, consisting of recelvabilas from
subsidiany and brand owners. the Company's management assesses exposure to such risk to be minimal based on past
expetianes and B restrieted tothe carrvirg armount of thaose acsets The Campantys subsidiary 1= profitable and gonerating
positive cash flows, 16 has been able to fully repay the epoening balance and the Company isconfident of full recoveny within
2 manths of the report date. The amount recenable flom brand owners l= not overdus and based upon credit ratings the
Compary expects minimal expected credit lose Accordingly, no provision has beon recogriized.

403  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that thie Camipany will not be ablo to meaet its commitments asspiciatod with fimancial lizbilities when
they fall dise fundity reguiremants are monitared regularly and management ensunes that sufficient hood funds ane
available to meet ary commitrnents a< they arlse, The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Compars’s inan
cial liabilities Hazed on contraciual undiscountad paymeni=

TJune 30, 2024
Financial liabilities

Livinly Bt lostili

Legcs lahilTias

Blraait Lo Lidin for bt
T grad cither pgatdes

B NS
Arrpsd il Ly x TS
AT L 2R
June 30, 2075
Financial lsbiitles

1 G B s o

Limsmem Tiaballetie=s

S T IatiTT oGS
Tiade gind othe goyakiles

St L s g




40,4 Changes in lisbilities arising from financing activities

2024
Long term lozns oeN { ¥l BALODO.000

Lezse [Ehiiities T2 - 8093 542
Short term bomowings 7l 1660 506360
Accrised
maErkup

2023

Lo tern loans

| =ane [ahilites

Short temm borrowings

Arcresd
mErhg

:2!3_'-" A0

ST E42 3 e et

£0.5 Financial instruments by categories

2024

Financial assets

Debt instruments at amortized cost

|ade debls - unsecuted kvl b B s B,
Otner rEcevaniss H

Long-term investmeants c =15 B F5H1E
Security depasits L 1 554 0l TR 504
Loans and advances TBE X A0 OR TG
Shart-term invest ments iB BILESHE
Bank balano=s b : L e e rd 1

Equity instruments through profit or loss

Short-term investrments Mutuz! Funds

B Bod IER AT

Financizl Liabilities
Long term jogns

Trade and ather payabizs
Shart-ferm Darowings

v




2023
Finzancial assets

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Trade debis - ursecyred 2 o, BH 20068050 BRI
Cther receivables ;

Long-t=rm Investmeants 1 | SO0 CRON0) 1000
Lo=res snd sdvances L} 3 2O TIRDDE
Short-term imeEstments - : I LE R ]
Bank balancss 523 TT.0651 EERITOAG]

Equity instruments through profit or loss

Short-term imeEstment=! Mutual Funds

SR ATEAN

Financial Liabilities
Long term koanes 97B 0 TS
Trade and other payables L7

Short-term borraings

4] FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair yaloe is the price that would e received o scell an asset or paa 1o transfior @ Fability ifvan orderly transaction bobwean
rar kel peeticipants at tho measurement date The carrpng amounis of Al the firancial instruments reflected in these
fimandal statements approximate to thelr Tall value.

The fullowing abile chows asots recegnized at fajr value, analyzed betyweon thoso whose fair value is based on;

Ly | Quoted prloes in active rinrkets Tor identical assets or labilities

Lol 2: Ihise imvosdving inputs ather than guoted prices included n Lavel | thatare gbeervable for the asset or
lizbility, elther directly (as prices) or indirectly (derpeed frerm prices); anad

L] 5: Those whose inputs for the asset or liatality that are ot based on observable markat data (unobsorable
IFputs).

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and Habilities, Together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
paosition, are as follows

Fair value hierarchy

The management assessed that the fair values of all financial assets and financial Hakilites. carned'at amortized cost,
approximate thelr carrying amourts largaly due to the shoft-terrm maturities of these instruments. The following table
shiows the carrying amounts-and fair values of fimancial instruments carried at fair value, including thair levals in the fair
value hbararchy

80>



Financial assets at 'h.irvall.l.l_é

through profit or loss:
June 30, 2024

fmvestmant in mutua funds 17
June 30, 2023

fmvestmant in mutua funds 7

52 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Fhe Company s obioctives when managing capnal are tosafeguard the Company's ability o continue as 2 goinNg:Concerm
=5 that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders andg benefite fdr other stakeholders. In crder 1o maintain or
adjust the capital structdre, the Comipany may adjust the retarm capital to shareholders, igsue now shares o sofl aszatsto

reduce debt

Consistent with the industry norme the Company manitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio, The atiois ealco|ated
a5 net debt divided by total capital plus debt Net debit = calculated az total borrowings as shivan in the statement of
firancial position less cash and cach sgquivatents. Total capital ic calcalated as "oquity” as shown in the statement of
fimarcisl position plus net debt e dofied aboee)

The debtoo 8quity ratio = 25 follows:

Long term lIoan 0,000,000 o7E M0 A
Short erm borrowlngs 6287, =06 26T7. 55,146
Cash and cash equivalert (1219456144} {546,558 296)
Net debr 56098304 367 ISEITETA
Tomal eguity R2IFTI50E87S

Total capital 19,254,095 883 5356 N8838

Capital gearing ratio

43 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Cell phones
- Maximum capadity
Actual producticn

44 e azsemibly plant was able to open enough LOs in te current yedar as the gavetnment removed restriclions
leading to higher preduction inthe year.

LED The Campany haz not yet reached its makimum production capacity, as the aptirmal riarket demand has not
been-achioved, This shorfsll = prirmarily due to the depreciation of the rupoe against fofeign curmencies, which
Feas led to an increass in the prices af mobile phones. Consequently, the purchasing pawer of consumers has
dirnirsked.

G NUMBER OF EMPLODYEES

#= gl Reporting dats
Parmarent stafl
Cutsaurced factory stalf

Aversge duting the pesr

goo




45 OPERATING SECMENT INFORMATION

Dharris amd Feemil | Azipmb} { Inrer s=pment almreari i Taial
2aid | 1513 | 1] | flva ] | T 1 13 | 1014 1 e
Eupsar Bupen

tm
~Exumel cueome iﬂ,ﬁui&.ﬁﬁ L5 B6F A5 F45 13 3RS 5e 2 EHHTE = = 132415797 21 MR BT
< TIHHr—oa = - - . . - - -

18704 DTy 15,563,283 g2 e S AR LLETID - - 28,28 413 700 bt S L O
Cowt = s
~Exterme] concomer SISETTOANE . (LRIDE0PAE0N (ITAEIMTE (T LA - godpiTIopm  (LEITE liTAnS)
-imiEr-RaEEent s + * ) = * # * =
Crg proiit 1008585 BET LAE3 355337 130 EI0ET] FTATE003 - s 3B I4E 48 IIEQEEE TH0.
AdmiEmrs ey LT - {RIE AT CRR4 AT (31 575304 - - {EIL 340 57Ty |§a1,5eR 418
Fallis and Eitriboton voss (250504, TAT) [F33480.070) FiaT T [Bi5gaey - - (318,952 136) ey b b ]
Crmareting prafit 137581050 RIOTELTES J3T1R1T 444 I'-l.j}"'_._f"t - - 4700 544 452 145304 55
Ot mrma 3= P EET 119,175.}1u 103440 29 - - - 42405073 180,173 510
Crhier expenaas (A24,007 140 {54977 £33 (H03.365 303) . . - (228,385 315 [FLEILEE)
Frmenzii oot (B34 394,311} [FIEAI I (4SLSRl TIE) B B [1,30F 351, 5EA, [FIBAES TR
Profit b treetan. 1345222181 ITE A5 200 TAETI AT RETEAL N g - - 3,311 587 618 "].E,}I;d:i—"‘l
Taxatica. Lz 182552401 - - (Iszaaicely  HEIEiiess

Brofit for b er 1&5&;2@ :ﬂ&"hm" i gy" AT = SIaEITT ELT R

Sammant suam PRl R ) e 080 1_:‘5& B leambes =% E"‘% - Hﬁﬁ.ﬂ] 13,557 47
Serrame linhileis #,303477 7ER u,:is,?srm %ru; -uﬁrusis] (L3LEFTE530) ,ﬂ‘g'- l?.mi_ 2T
Coprtal enpamditors 4L 371 T ]_q'ﬁ!",_{ L]

2024 2023

451 Geographical information Rupees Rupeas

Mhe Company’s resonue from exdarnal custamers by geographical location iz detalled belows
Pakistan 562082 418,797 21503505362

All non-curment assets of the Comipany asat reporting datec aratocated and opatating in Fakistan.

452 Hevenue from none of the customers 2003 Nl custamers) of the Company represents more than 100 of the
Company's tolal reverntie

453 |nter cogmant sales, purchases and balances have baon aliminatod.

46 SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

Eollowading imformation has boen disclosed with the forence to dEclousra reguirernants of faurth schedule of
the Companies Act, 2017 relating to all shareslstarmic indes

o - IR

&hariah campliant Subuk Imtrest o=Ering

Relationship with banks having islamic windows

Bank Name Region
Mizlah lElam rezgne srmdeni fund Hakizzn
AliEkah slgmic morey markst fund Fakiztian
Meszsn rorsns smdan funa Pakiztzn
Mtz=ran dally imcorrs furd Pakistan
Miearan cash funa Pakiszan
ChC trustee-Faizal isamic-Rnancial growth fimd Pakistan
COC trustea-Faisal financial secear opportunity fund Palistan
ChC trustaes. MBP Eamic mansy markst fund Pakistan
O trustes- NEP izamic daily dividand furd Pakisten Sharan

Bos



47  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

P A Thie Board of Directare b thelr mesting held on Septemer 02, 2024 have propesad a final cach dividend for the year
efidod Jure 30, 2024 of Be £ per char'e (2023 2 25 per shardl, amounting to R | S81076.822 (200%: Be 9B 173.077)
for approsal of the members at the Annual General Meotinag 1o be held on Septomber 27, 2024 These
uncansalidatedfinancial statements do not reflect this dividend

&2 Subssquant tooyesr and on August 20, 2004 Acer Cadget (n, anfouticed 3 strategic partnership wath Alr Link
Communication Lirmited [Airlink) to intreduce "Acer Gadast 210 Eptops. tablets and all-inone dévices to the
Pakistani market Airlink has Deen granteo distnbution righis-and haes entoereg an oxclosme assembling soreantent
with Acer Cadpet's manufacturing partner, Shanaghal Seunited inteliigent Technology Co. Ltd | te asemble thess
Products 3t Alrlirkes Likore. Pakistan, facillby.

48 CORRESPONDING FICURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for better presentation.
Significant reclassifications are as follows:

Description From To Amount
Advances to employees
against salary Loans-and advances tona Term loans 23 OGS
Expoctod dredit loss Othar Incame Administrative expetise 10038 682
Loan to subsidiary compariy Other recievables Loans and advances a0 ST0.02%

as the impact of the sbove reclassifications on balances in the unconsolicated statement of firancial position-as
an July 01 2022 = not material, no urconsolidated statement= of fimanclal position as of that date has been
presantod.

4£9 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These uncon=olidated financial statemeants were authorized by Bosrd of Directors an Monday
September 2, 2024

50 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless stated otherwise

Audd bt B Mo

CHIEF EXECUTIVE "CHIEF Fm& OFFICER DIRECTOR
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IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AIR. LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
Repart on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Dpinjon

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June
30, 7024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows far
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as applicable in
Fakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Augitor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are ind dent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professicnal Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code} and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judoment, were of most significance in our
Audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

How the matters were addressed in our |

Key audit matters

audit

_Inventory Quantity and Valuation
As of June 30, 2024, the Group held stock
valued at Rs. 8.109 billion, which constitutes
a significant portion of the Groups total
assefs, as disclosed in Mote 11 and in
accordance  with the accounting policy
described in Note 5.7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

»  Given the complexity associated with the
multiple  stages  of  assembling,
production, and distribution of mobile
phones, accessories, and allisd products,
the verification of inventory guantities
was a critical area requiring significant
audit attention.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

800 Ebrafim B Co., & Faldean regstened
fonme part of the in=mations] BB networi of 1
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Our audit procedures in relation to the
matter, amonzst others, included the
following:

« We conducted physical inventory counts
as of June 30, 2024, to verify the quantity
of inventory on hand. This included |
inventary disbursed at various stages of |
the production and assembly process, as
well as stock held in warehouses. We
reconciled the physical counts with the
stock records in the trial balance and

cross-checked guantities o ensure
Accuracy.
oo
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5. No

Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our
audit

The valuation of inventory was also a key
matter due to the invelvement of multiple
stages in the inventory process. The Group
follows the weighted average cost method
for inventory valuation, as disclosed in
Mote 5.7 to the consolidated financial
statenrents.

Determining the accurate guantity and
appropriate valuation of inventory at each
stage reguired management to exercise
significant judoment and apply complex
estimates.

We assessed the effectiveness of Ehe:

Group's internal contrals over inventory
management, particularly at different
production stages. We performed [T audit
controls (ITAC) to verify that overheads
were allocated appropriately and that
inventory was recorded and issued at the
correct moving average rates. We also
ensured that stock costing was accurate
and that the inventory was valued
correctly.

We performed substantive  anatytical
procedures using disaggresated data to
gain assurance gver the recognized stock.
This involved fecusing on outliers and
unustal trends, particularly in the context
of the external economic environment;
and discussing these findings with
management.

We checked the final stock valuation
sheat against the physical stock-taking
sheet to ensure that all items
included. We alse reconciled the final
stock valuation sheet to the general
ledger and steck (edger, verifying
amounts against appropriate sources and
investigating any unusual items.

We emsured that stock wvalues were
correctly recorded, with all relevant costs
capitalized in the stock wvalue. This
included & review of  purchase
transactions, Including purchase orders,
involces, goods inward notes, goods
receipt notes, LC documents, sales
invoices, and other supporting evidence.

We performed procedures related to
purchases cut-off to ensure that recorded
purchases were of the relevant period.
This helped wverify that the costs
associated with inventory were properly
allocated to the correct accounting
period,

We tested the costing of the inventory and
performed net reafizable value (NRV)
testing to assess whether the cost of the
inventory exceseded ifs MNRV. We also
ensured that any necessary provisions
were made appropriately in the
circumstances.,

We assessed the adeguacy of the Group’s
disclosures in the consclidated finandal
statements Conceming inventory,

waie |

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDQ Ebrahim & Do, & Palissn resstered partnership firm, & & member of B0Q Intemationa] Limited, 5 B¥ company imited by samaote=, and
Tonre port of the int=rmatiomal F00 nsteori of desendeat member fHmme
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How the matters were addressed in our

§. No | Key audit matters audit
ensuring  transparency and compliance
with applicable accounting standards.

2 Revenue Recognition

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the
Group reported net revenue of Rs. 129.742
billion, compared to Rs. 35.%34 billion in the
previous year, as disclosed in Wote 2% and in
accordance with the accounting policy
described in Mote 5.11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

» The Group's revenue is derived from the
sale of a diverse range of preducts and
services, inciuding eellular  mobile
phones, tablets, accessories, allied
products, and related repair services, The
Group alse offers periodic discounts
across various product categories o
different types of customers.

»  Given the significance of revenue as a ksy
perfarmance indicator and the attention
required to  ensure  the accurate
recognition of revenus, we identified
revenue recognition as 3 key  audit
matter.

Qur audit procedures in relation to the

matter, others, included the

following;

amaongst

= Gained an understanding of the Groups
processes and related internal controls for
revenue reccegnition, and on a sample
basis, tested the effectivensss of those
controls, particularly in relation to
revenue reccegnition and timing.

» Evaluated the appropriatensss of the
Group's revenue recognition policies and
procedurss to epsure compliance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan.

= We conducted sequence testing of sales
imvoices to ensure the completeness and
accuracy of recorded revenue. This
included reviewing the  numerical
sequence of invoices to identify any gaps
or  duplicates.  investigating  any
imegularities, and ensuring that all
involces were properly accounted for
within the correct financial period. We
also assessed whether the recorded
revenue aligned with the Group's revenue

recognition policies and IFRS
requirameants,
= Performed substantive anatytical

procedurss using disaggregated dats to
gain  assurance over the recognized
revetue, with a focus on outliers and
unusual trends in light of the external
econamic environment.

« Performed detailed tests on sales returns,

including inguiries and documentation of |

reasons for retumns, ensured the accuracy
of credit notes, and verified the
application of revised rates on updated
invoicas.

* Reviewed year-end manual adjustments

impacting revenue to identify significant

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDQ Ebrahim & Do, & Palissn resstered partnership firm, & & member of B0Q Intemationa] Limited, 5 B¥ company imited by samaote=, and
Tonre port of the int=rmatiomal F00 nsteori of desendeat member fHmme
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How the matters were addressed in our

§. No | Key audit matters audit

or unusual itemns, and examined the |
underiying documentation,

* Tested supporting evidence for a sample
of sales {ransactions, including sales
orders, invoices, goods dispatch notes,
gate passes, proof of delivery (customer
acknowledgment), and other detailed
procedures.

* Ensured that revenue items are correctly
classified according to the guidance in
IFRS 15.

= Performed procedures related to revenus
cut-off.

« Assessed  the appropriatensss and
adequacy of the disclosures provided in
Mote 2% to the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with relevant
accounting standards.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Repert Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the infarmation
included in the annual report but dees not include the consolidated financial statements and cur auditor’s
repart thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
ather information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparaticn and fair presentation of the conselidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
reguirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the censolidated financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to soing concern and using
the poing concern basis of accounting unltess management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations. or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Group's financial reporting process.

Bwo
BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issus an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with IS4s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisians
of users taken on the hasis of these consolidated finandial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545 as spplicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform avdit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a3 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrice of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
affectiveness of the Group's internal control,

= FEvaluaie the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the soing concern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exsts related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as 3 going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty axists, we are required to draw attention in eur auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate. to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease
to continue as a going concerm.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsibie for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinien.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thousht te bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
miost significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter ar when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
B
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Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2023 were audited by
ancther firm of chartered accountants who had expressed an unmaedified opinion thereon vide their report
dated October 05, 2023.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sajjad Hussain Gill,

LAHORE Roe €. L ¢ G
DATED: September 05, 2024 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: ARZ024100B87yTM3eSCHKd
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Air Link Communication Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS ATIJUNE 30,2024

2024 2023
ASSETS Mote Rupess Rupess

NOM CURRENT ASSETS
Hroermy Dlant =g eawpmient

Invetrriant oroperty

B334755859
1,401,500,000
T 445148

Intarigible acsols
Ly tErr et mEnt

ridd degacsits

31,5?1_73
SN
9972 888877

Maweoam

CURRENT ASSETS
Stares and =pharos 20956 864
Shoch T TrRcs TIRJI0B 255
Ir=dedebn= 2TIR972 N6
Leesires 2nd acvanoss 1724685585
frade depesits, propayrrsents and ather recshyables 5900 90 a7
Tak refunds due friom the-Sovammant 200 06 S0
SOt BT IneEsirmants TEEE 624 377
Caghsind bank balanc= 1,0207e8,669
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

E00.000.000 [June 30, 2078 00000 000| ardirary chares of Re- 10 &ach

tecieed] st iDenriDed ared pEd D sl

Chate fdremium - =2
Arcipmiulzted peofit S e =
Caneral resainess et Ciet

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Ly T s
Leste | jale il

Defierres ti liakiiity

CURRENT LIABILITIES

IDaFiricd vt ialslity

RCCrEed and othar lamiites
~antrast |slitees

Trate payail

ok LT o Ny
Ancrued markip

Frorision for imation”

ent portian of non current kabinties

il ol

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
COMTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Mhe annesed notes from | Lo 50 ot an inkzgral parl of these conenlidaled Tinancial sistemeants
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AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT CR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 29742 418 267
Cost of revenue (M9936,746,040)
Cross profit
Adrninistrative expeanse 3
Selling and distribution costs 32 [334 315.154)

{1094 533576}
Operating profit 2440261280
Cther income i3 F8 A5 180
Other expense 34 (63,020,035)
Finance cost 35 (1.828.101.4F7)
Profit before income tax and minimum tax BET97S.007
Minimum tax - -
Profit before income tax 5,602 535552 ;
Income tax 36 977 057.427)
Profit after income tax £ R25 408105
Earnings per share
- Basic and diluted

The annexed rnotes lrom ] o S form anant =qrdl parl of Lhese consgidaled inancial statemenia
Bon .
), Awd bt
- L T

—
CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



Air Link Communication Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Profit after income tax 4625498105
Iltems not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years
Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan [3,240,478) 5,511,182
Related tax effect 1265786 (2142 361)
Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit
plan - net of tax (1.976,692) 313618721

Iltems 10 be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years - -

Other comprehensive (loss) [ income (1976,692)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 BI35A A3 | 963869072
M= anreed rotes lfom 1 50 farm an integral paErt of hese consplidaied Nrancigl stalsmonts
Bio
- . I“ ] "J
}g Atl.-l . W L
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Air Link Communication Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befote taxation

Adjustments for :
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization on intangible ascetc
Impairmen alowancs for slow moving and oboolete stock - nat
Allowance for expected credit loss - trade debits- net
Provision for gratuimy
Provision for workers' Wislfare Funds
Provision for Workers Profit Participation Funds
Irnfectrment in mutual funde written off
Zain on lease tarmination
Fair value gain on investmant property
Fental income
Finance cost
Less / |gaint on disposal of operating fixed assets
Loss / {gain) on disposal of term finance certificate
Profit on investmants

R gy e pnd

Operating profhit before working caphal changes
Effect on cash fiow diue toworking capital changes
(increase) / decrease In current assets

Stock in trade

Storos and spares

Trade debis

Leans and advancoes

Trade deposits, prepayments and other recaivabie

Tax refunds due fromy the Covarmment

{Decrease] / Increace In current liabllides
Trade payabiec, accrued and other liabilities
Contract liabilities

Cach [usaed In) / genorated from operations
Finance cost paid
Gratuity paid
Income tax paid
HET CASH [USED IN) / CENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in operating fixaed assets
Proceeds from disposal of opemting fixed ascote
Additions in investment property
Additions in capital work in progress
Additions in intangible assats
Long term imestment encashed
Long term deposits paid
Rental income recaisd
Intarest income recaied
short tenm investiments - mnoet
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Leaze liabifity repaid

Long term loans - net

Long term loans - equity portion

Dividend paid

Short term borrowings - net
MET CASH CEMERATED FROM FIMAMCING ACTIVITIES
HET INCREASE [ [DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AHD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

T aripemed fwles frur = & LTy | rlegrral Ear] Of WUhesy conayl|dieted
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Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

| THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
] The Group comprzes of “Air Link Commumication Limited [Parent [/ the Holding Comipany”™] and Sehkoct

Teckhnolooiss [Private] Lirmited [Sthe Subciddian™, togethar “the Croup”.

12 Corporate and general information
12 Ajr Link Communication Lirnited - Parent / the Halding Campany

Adr Link Communication Lirmted (the Haldmg Compary’| veas incor poratod in Pakistan on Jamery 02, 2004 asa
Private Limited Company, [atdr on converted to g pubic imited Company orAprif 24, 2019, andor the repealed Comparies
Ordirance, 19045 [now Cormnparies Act 2007 having regEtdrad office at 152-M Cuald. e-Azam Industrial Avea, KOt Laklipat,
Labore, Purnials, Pakistan, The Company = engaged in the busimess of import, export distmibution, ndanung, wholesalka,
retail of communication and 1T related products and seovices including ceflfukar mobilefsrrrart phones tahlets laptops
ancpesarics and allied products.
I'hie Halding Comipany alsd has & facility for assemibly of smart phones and festure phomes located at 152 -0, Quald-e- Azam

Ingustrial Area, Kot Lakhipat, Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan,

L2232 Seleat Technologies (Private) Lirmited - the Subsidiary

Select Technologios (Privato] Limied [STRL] an anlisted pobiic cormpany registered ander the Companes Act
20017, k= a wholly owned subsidiary of the Cormpany. STEL &£ enagaged in the busines of ascembly and productian of
snarnphones and relatod accesoories, and hos i registiersd office ard assamibly amitat 152-1-M Quaid-o-Ararm Industrial

Ayoa, Kot Lakhpat, Eahore

2 CGEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSIMESS UNITS

Thelocations of Group's head office acsembiing facility, ratail ocutiets and flagship storeare as below:

BUSINESS UNIT ADDRESS

Thie Halding Company

Hoad Office L2 Qoakcl-e-Azam Industrial Area, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore, Pumab; Pakistan
Aczamibling Faciity 152 M Quaid- - Azzim Indiustrial Area Kot Lakhgat, Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan
Sarmsung Hetail Storg Shop Mo LG9, Lucky Ore Mall, La-2/8, Bloek 21, Ope UBL Sports Comiprles, Fashid

Minhas Hoad, Karachi, PFakistan
Al Link Flagehip Stors Shiogl Mo | Mirhes hall, 282 Mian Mekmood Al Kasor Boad, Block B2 Gulbarg 1,
E‘D.‘. Lahore, Pakistan



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,

BUSINESS UNIT ADDRESS

Sameung Retail Etore Shap Mo, X7, Cround Elook, Efmiperiurm Mall. Johar Town, Labore, Pakistan

Shop Mo  SF-7, Lucky One Mall, LA-/B Block 21, Ope. UBL Spor: Compleéx, Bachid

Al Link fotall Sxare Minbas Soad, Karach), Pakistan

Al Link Botall Store Shap Mo 1080 Opposite Carrefour, Packages Mall, Walton Boad, Lahore, Pakdstan
Ajr Link Botail Stora Shap Mo, SF-S1 Doelrmen Mall Clhitton, Karachil, Pakistan
Sammsung Retail Store Ship Mo, | Near Bark Alfalah, Saddar Cantt. Hyderabiae Pakistarn
|
Sammsung Retail Store Shitsp Mo, S, Cround FHoor, Shardef Comploo, Tekst Chowkl Multan, Pakistan
Sarricaing Retall Stare City Ceritre, DT Office Chovl, Hahawalpul
Samsurg Petall Store Shop 1098, st Floor, Packages Mall, Walton Bead Lahore
Air Link Retall Stare Ehop O-56, Ground Floor, Emporiumm Mall, Johar Town, Lahaone

Shog Mo, LG-20, Lucky One Mall LA B Block 20, Opp, UBL Spaorts Complex, Rashid

il Betail -
Wi Retall Store Miphac Raad, Karachi Dakictan

Subsidiary
Head Cffice | 1520 Dieaid-e-Azam Indostnial Area Kot Lakhpat Labone, Pounjabs, Pakistan
Assembling Facility | 1520 Quiaid-o-Aaram industrial Area, Kot Lakhpat Labore: Punjab, Bakistan

Iraddition to tho above, the Croup alkko aporates certain ctoms and warshouzes, tho L=t of which i not prefanted in thede
financial statements G Mainain concision

L BASIS OF PREPARATION

L Staterment of comopoliance
Theoe corsalldated financial statements have been propared in accordarce with tha accounting and ruparting standards
az appllcabile in Bakistan, The accounting and reportimg standards apglicable in Paketan compriss of

International Financlal Repaorting Standards [IFES) lesued by the Interratiorial Accounting Standards Board [LASH] as
matified under the Compamnesact, 2017,

lstarmic Finandlal Accounting Stardards [IFAS) ksued by the Institute of Chartered Accountante of Pakistan as notified
urder the Campanes Act, 2017 and

Provelons of and directives Bsuad undes the Companos Act 2007,

Boo



AlR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

Whare provisons of ang directives issued ufdas the Cormpanies Act, 2017 differ frorm the IFRS and (FAS the provisions of

and directives ssued under the Companies Ach 2017 have bean follwed,

312 Basis of measurement
These consolidated finandcal statemoants higwe Deon prepared wncker the Fstorical cost comicrbon exocpt that imveshmant

property and defined benofite arid are recognized on the basle maritioned in Note 5£ grd MNote 512 respectivaly

i3 Functional and presentation currency
These conzalidation finarcial statemants are presented in Paklsian Hupee which le the functional @nd pressntathon

currency of the Groug. The figures have boon rounded Gif 10 the nearest of Bupees unbest athetwisa stated

14 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
I preparation of consolidated firsncial statemants in conformily with aoproved accounting -Standarde requfes
rrRanagerient 1o make estimates, assamptionE-and judgemonts thataffect the-appiication of accounting polickes and the

reported amounis of asets, iabllities, incorme and espence<. Actual results iay differ from these estirnates

In prepanng thess consaidated financia ssatements, the significant estirmates, assumplionsand judgaements rrade by the

maraaement in applying accounting policles include

Imipairmerit of non financial azsets 535
Leqcs fiabdlitles LE6 1
Fair value of InveEstment propserty L :
Allowance for gxpectad: oredit |oss SA.) I
laxation 500 '
Revenue from contracts with custarmerns &N :
- APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED

APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

&.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year
ended June 30, 2024

The following standands, amandments and interpretationsare efective for tho year ended June 20, 2024, Theso stanaardgs
amendments and intérpretations are eithar nat relevant to the Srolp's operations or did not have slgnificant iImgact on the
corEchidated inancial Satements ather than cemain-agditions] disc|omsres,

j.ive



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STA

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,

Effective date
(anrmual penods
peginming on ar after)

Amendroents o 1AS] Presentation of HGrancial Staterments’ and IFRS Pradtics

) e January J1 2023
Statament 2 Making Materiality Judgomants. Declosure of Accounting Polices ¥

Amendroents 1o ASH ‘Acitounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

= - 5 Fangary O1,202%
and Errors - Bafinition of Accounting Estimates - ¥ -

Amendroents o AS12 Intomea Tawes - Defaried Tax ralated to Afcets and

Ep T . Jani {12025
Liakilities arfsing from a single trancaction anuary 41,20

Armendrrients o |AS 12 Income Taxes - lemporary esceplion to the Iahuary O, 2025

: ! : ey Jan 012023
roquinaments regarding deferred tax assets and lialxiities related to pillar two
[ e tasies

Thie Sroup sadopted the narmow - scope amendments 1o the International Accounting Standard {IAS) ], Presantation of Einan
cizl Statements which awe boan effectivie for annual reporting poriods beginning onar after January 01, 2023 Although thie
amendmeants did not result in any changes to accounting palicy themeelves they impacted the agcounting palicy Infarma

Dien disclosed in tha financial sfatorments

Management reviewaed the sccounting policies and updates to the information dieclosed In Nete & Summarn of material
accounting policies (202% significant accounting policies) in certam instances in Inewith the amendmeants and concluded

that all itz acoodrting policies are matarial far disclosure.

&2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The follewing standarcs, amandmoniz-and intarpretatans are only offective Tor accounTing pericds, eginning orear after
thiedate mentidrnsd against each of them. These standards, amendments and intérpretariofs are aithior not relevant to thie
Croun< oparationz or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group's fimantial statomonts other than ceraln

acditional disolosres

Amondments to [FHES 7 Finarcial Instruments; Dicchssures - Supplied finance

Fangary O 2024
arrangements - ¥

Amondments to [FES 7 Finarcial Instruments, Dicclesures - Amendmeants

: i 2 January O 2040
regarding the classficaton and messaremant of financial iInstruments ¥ =

Amondmaents to [FES 9 Financial instrument<' - Amandmanits regarding the

Janwuary 01, 2000
classification and measuremant, of fimancial instruments ¥ =

Aamendrnents o |HES 16 Leasey - Amendments to.ciarify how a soflcer leccee

: January O, 2024
subsaguantly measures sile and eascback trarsactions ¥ B

Armendrments 1o/ LAS 1 Presentatitn of Financial Siataments’ - Classification of JahuiEny 0L 2024
liabilitles s curtant oF NoN-Cuiment x

gon



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STA

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,

Effective date
(anrmual penods
peginming on ar after)

Amengdrients to |AS ] Presentation of Fnancial Staterments’ - Non-ourrent

Viabilities with covenants January 01, A1

Armengrrnents to |AS Y 'Statermerit of Cash Hows - Supphieifinarce

S LS
aranQoments January 0L 28

Armendrrients to AS 2] The Effects of Chapaes In torign Exchange Bates

_— .
Lack of Excharooability January DI, A12%

IERS 1T Insdrance:Contracts Jangary O1,202%

HFRS | Hrst-timne Adopticon of International Financal Repoming Standards has besn issuad-by 1ASH effoctive from July Ol
U0 Hiowoseer, 1T Bas not been adooied yot locally. by Securities gna Exchange Commsson of Pakstan [SECE),

IFRS 18 Presantation and Disclosures in Finandcial Statements’ has been msued Dy 1ASS effective from January 01, 2027
Howesser, it fias not been adopied yot locally by SECP,

RS 19 subsgianes wathout Pubiicaccountability: Disclosures has bean issued by 1258 offective from January 01, 2027
Howesser, it fias not been adopied yot locally by SECP,

RS T Insurance contracis fas been notified by thelASH 1o b offective for annoal penods Doginning on of aiter January
I, 2023 Howseower SECP has notified the timeframe. for the adoption of 1FRS 7 owhich will ‘b= adaopted by
Fanuarny O, 20006,

5 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The aceounting palicies appliod are concistent with prior yeat excopt acstated |n Note <

| Basis of consolidation

The cemsolidated financial stataments Include the financial statement of the Holditlg Campany and Itz subsidiany. The
Croun uces the acgulsition methed of aceounting 1o accourttifor busines: comblination. The conslderation thansferred = the
fair value of the assets transfenag, tha [abilities ascumad and the eguity intorest issued by the Sroup, T any, The Group
FECOGMTES any faon-controllirng imtercst in the geqguires at the non-cantrolling Interest’s propartionate dhare of the
ldantifiable mot assets of the acqulres, The financal statement of the Holding Campany and iz subsiciany are prepared up

tay The sarme regorting dato using Corssion e oounting policy exooept as stalod otherwisa

The Subcidiary = wholly owned incorporated company. The Group pollcy ralated to acquisition of the Subeidiany's
identifiableassets acquired and lakilites assurmed 10 tha acouisition are measuned inimially at thaedr fair value-at the date of
apnuisition Caodwill [fany) &initially measured as the excess of the anogreaate of the consideration transferred and the
vatlue of ron- contralling intenst using proportionate share method ever the net ldentifiable assots acquined and liabifities
assumed. If this = lese than the fair value of the net asset of the subsidiany acquired, the gifference = recognized in
cofsolidated staterient of profit ar loz= After nitial recoanition it & measured at carryindg valle e ot date of acagulcition less

Aty dccomulated Impalrrmeant

.ve



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

Iz firarcial Eaterreents of subsdianes buve beon consalidatod on e by fine basis it cormpary balances, tramssctitre,
incomeand experses have bean eiminated, Assote abilities, income and oxpense have beert consolidated from the date
the corrgrary acauired the control of the subsidiary tll the control ceate to exlet Unrealized galn or loss an intra company

trarsachicns are al=o eliminated bt unreallzed lesses ars hoveevidt redognized 1o the e=ient of iImpainment Fary

511 Disposal of subsidiany

Whan the Croug ceacec to concnlldate an investment in tubsidiary because of 3 lass of control any retained intérest in thie
enfity ic remeasured o (= Tair wlue with the change In carrgina amount recoanizsd in profitor loss This falr value becziimes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent-accounting for the retained intorest ac an associate; joint
verturo of financial assal 1n additlon, any amoants previously recagnized imother comprehanshve income in respect of thiat
entity are aocaunted foracifithea Group had directly disposed of the related accote o lakifities This may rmean that armounts

Ereviously recagnizad in ather eomprehensive income gre reclassified to profit or loss.

5.2 Business combinations and goodwill
521 Acguisition method of accounting

The acoutsition mothod of accolnting = dzad to account for all business combinations regardioss ol whather aauity
instruments or other assoic are acquired. The considoration rarsferred for the acquisition of s subsidiary Comprses the

amounts previously recognizea inather cormpranonsive incormie ane reclassified to profit or [oss

falr valuss of the assetstransiornrad,
[ liabilities incurred 1o the former owners of the acqguired:busines:
arpLity Interests izsund by the Group;
falr valus of arny assat or habihity resultmg from & contingaent conmantoration arrangement and

; fair value of any pre-existing oguity interest in the subsiokary

Identifiabile assets acgured and habilites and contimoent Habilites 3sumed in & buginess combir=tion are, with limited

excoptions, migacured initially at their fair values st the acquisition:date

53 Froperty, plant and eguipment
531 Owred astets

Froperty, plant and sguiprent are stated ot cost less accumutated depreciation and accurmulatag impalrment- losses, if
any. Deprociation & prosdded on strakaht line method 3t the rates gliven i schedule of property, plant and egulpraent and
charged to copsnlldated sraterment of profit o ez to write gff the depreciable amount of each ascet at the rates epeaified

intheNow &

Bopraciatian on additions iz charged from the day it becomes avallable for use, and assats are doprpeiated till the date of
disposal, Normal repairs and maintenance are chargad o consalidated statement of profit ar loss, while mamor renceals

and Eriprovenmants are capitalized.

Thin resicual values: useful lves-and metheds of depreciation of preperty, plant and equipmenT are roviowad ot eaeh finan

cial yoar end and adjested praspoctively, i appropriate

oo



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

552 Disposal

Anitem of progerty, plant and equipment and amy significant part indtially necognized = dereceanized upon disposal (Lo, at
the gate the rocipdent obtains cantroll o whan no futune economic Denefits are cxpectod from ite use o disposal Any gain
at less arising on defocogiition of the ascet (Calculated as the difforence Batweon thenet disposal ploccads and the carry

Ing ameunt of the azet) i= Included [n the consolidated statement of prcfit or loss when the aswt |z derecegnized,

533 Right-of-use assets

Tha Croup recognizoes right-of-ute acdeis at the commencament date of the lease (e the date the underlylng aecet ic
avallabie for wse), Fight-of -use aseets are Measured at cost_less any accumuiated depraciation and imEairment (osses, and
adjusted forany rermaasuremenit of lease Nabilities. The cost of right:of-uce ascots indudes the amount of feace lishilities
recegnized, initial direct eocte Incwrred, ard lease paymeniz made at o before the commencement date lecs any leaco
incantives receved. Bight-of-use assete are depreciatod on asirmaht-inge tasis over the shorter of the lease torm and the

actimated useful fhves of the accatc.

5.3.4 Estimate

Estimates with respect o residual values, depreciable ves and pattern of fiow of economic bencfits are baced on ' the
analyzls of the management of the Croup Turthe:s, the managemant reviews the value of the assets for possible
ImpEEmrmenis an an annual basis Any change b the estimates in the Tuture miaht affect the carrying amount of respeatne
ivarn of projarty, plant:and equiprment, with a correspanding effect on the deprecliation chargeand mpainmett

835 Impairmant

The carfying’ armounts of the Group’s ascots aro reviowed -at each repoting: date o goterming whather there s any
indication of Impajrmeant [ any such indicatian existe the carying amountz of such assdic ate reviewed 1O acmocs whiethar
they are recorded in oxcess of thair recoverable amount Whero carmnng values excooed the respective recoverable amount
accots are WILlen Oocwn to their recoverable smounts and the resulting impairment B fecognized as expense. The
recivaralble garmount s the highes of an azset’c fair value le= cost to oll and value in Use Where an mipaliment less b
charged, the depreciation charge = edlustad fior the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised Carying amount over iLe
estimated useful ife

5326  Lease liabilities

At thie commencament date of the lease, the Group recognizes-lease [iabiiitics measared at the present value of loase
payrnents to be made ower the lease tamrn The leaceé payrments indluge fixdd payments [including in-substance fioad
payThients} less any leace incentnes reconvable, variable lease payments that dopend on an index o 8 B0 and amounts
expected (o be paid undat residussl value guaraniees. The leace payrnents so inciude the exaefcise price of a purchace
aption reasanably certaln to be ewercized by the Croup and payrnents of penalties for terrninating a leass, iftho lease térm
reflects the Qroup exercising the aption to terminate. The vamable lease paymeanis thal do not depend anan index of a rate

are recognized-as el sense in the potiod an which the event or condition that triggers the payrnent ocours:

g



AR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL ST,

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2 2

Iry calculsting the presemt value of lease peynierts; the Group wses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
comrrsncermont dote if the interest rates implicit in the leases are not readily detetminable. After the commencament
date, the amount of leace Habilities £ increaced to roffect the accordtion of intarest and reduced for the lease payments
e, {m additian, the carrying armaunt ofieass Habalites = remeasurad If there e a modifiication, a chanoe in the leass torm,
achange in the in-cabstance fixad lease paymiants or achangg in the ascecsment 1o purchase the: underiying asset:

I Growg detaermines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, togather with any penods covesed by an
opticn 10 extend the Ease T i s reasonable coitain to be exarcizen, or any pariods covered Dy-an option o erminate the

leqse, it it reqsanably certalrn not o be exdrolzed

The Group bas several leaco options that include extenston and terminaton optiots. The Group apphes judgernent in
evaluating whethar it Iz reacanably certaln whather ar not 1o exercice the optlon o rernes or terminate the |ease That i it
corEders all relsant fBoor that aoeste an econormic ncemtive for it o e=srime the renewal or errminaton. Afist the
comrresncemont pored, the Group reacsessas the lease tarm if there Basignificant event ar charige in circumstances that

i5 within it cantrol and affects lic abjlity to exercice of not to axerclse the aptlon to fenew ar to tarminate.

537 Short-t2rm leases and leases of low-value assets

Thie Group applies the shofT-1odm oase recogmtion. exempTion 1o itsshortoarm leases, i any [Le. those leases that have s
lease tarr of 12 rmonths of less from the comvmencarment date and do not contain 3 purchass agtion], It alss applies the
lease of low-value acsots recognition exempifon o leases that are of low value | eace payments an short-ternm leases and

s of low value aesais are recogmized as oxfmanse o straght-line basis over tha lease toom.

538 Arrangement is not a lease

The Group has entered a '‘Manufacturing supply agreement’, dated Moverabes O, 2000 for manufactuling ard solling
smarnphones and roelated prodocis with Xiaomn Pakastan Prvate Linmtedg (the Buyor), the Croup's sole coustaomer, The Group
has determined that the Crodp’s plant & an identifliéd asset (Group of ‘accate] but the Croap has subctantive right to
subtitute the astet throughout the period of Use as the Group has the peactical abifity to sUbstindte altornative asuets
throughout the poried of use and the Groug vould bonefit cconomically from the exercise of its right to substituts the asset
[by for example deploving them elsewhata within the: Group to maet dematids under higher rrargin agreameants). Thie
bilwr has no right to direct the we of the aswet’ Accordingly, the Group's arrangemant with Xlaomi Pakistan Orivate
Limited does pol contain lease, as defined undor |[ERS 16 “Loases™ The Group recogniios the considoration recenable
under ‘Marnufacturing supply adreament” with reference to identifiable porfarmance abiligatidnes, undor IFRS 1S, v making
this determiration, the Croup has cansldered that it s primarily responsible for fulfilfing the promilze to rranufacture and

et emartphones and rolated products’ as per the agreament.

Furthar, considering the Group's asmectment of tarm of agreement, that the buyer only bave a sight 1o taks pooseccion of
and e o its praporty (that is used 1o produce Qoode upon EEYMENL] on the Groups optien/ consant and guantum of fixed
payiments uthcer the arrangement, amounts 1o be fecognized in the: prafit or loss under both the cperating lease
amangernent ynder FRS & o contract with customers, undear IFS 15, are suletantially consistent,

Ro



AR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAlL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,

5.4 Investment property

Recognition dnd msasurement

Investment property, which s propey held o earn rentals and'ol for capital appreciation, incloding propemy under

construction for Such purpecec is measurfed. initially at-its coct including trancaction coste.

subsoguent o intat recognition, iInvestment property moeasred at fair valuo, The changes in fair volue recogresed in the

statoment of profit or loss

1T fair value of Tnvestment propafty is determined at tha end of each year using current marnket pnces for comparable real

astate, adjucted for any differences in nature, location ahd condition.

The effect of any changes in estimate s acoountedg for on a prospective basie Farther, determining adiustrents for any

differences in nature; locaticn and condition of the investment proparty invalves significant judaiment

55 Intangible asset=s

Intangible: accote are initiglly statod at coct lecs accumulated armortization ard accumulated impairment losses iF am.
Amartizallion k= chdrged to condolidated ssatarmmnt of profit or lesx applying the stralaht line basis ooy jts normal useful lifo
as specified In MNoto B Amentzaton is charged 1o consofidated statement of profit or loss on ume progorton basis far
addition or deletion during-theyear. Gairs and losses on digpocal of assetc areineluded In consalidated ctaromant of prafit

of o=

56 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cach and cazsh egulvalents in the corgolldated statement of finarcial pocition comprlse cacsh in hand and cazh at barke ac
spodified in Mote 7 that are readily convertibie o a known amount of cash and subject to an insigmificant risk of changes
i values

Far the purpose of the consolidated statament of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents congst of cash in hand and cash at

banks defined above. Term deposit receipts are 'not eluded in cash' and cash equivalents as thay ar'e not hald for cach

MaARSErTent purpotas

57 Stock in trade, stores and spares

Srock in tiade stores ard spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value exdcapt thosa I transit. which are valued

at inveice salue inchuding othar charges, T any, incurred thareon Basisof determmining cost s as follows

L=t has been determined as follows

Haw ang packeng rmataral welkahited averago oot
pagarial in Lrarst actieal coRT

Whark In process walohted sverags cost
Finished good: wizighted average coct
Stores ano-spares welahited averago oot
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5.8 Trade debts

Trade debi= and other recejvalbles are carrled at orlainal iInwice amaount. Provision s made for delbsts considered doubeful
of recovory based on expected credit loss (ECLT medsl of IERS 2 and gebits considored mecoverabla are whitten off as and

when idantified. Receivable are generally due within 20 to 90 days of satisfaction of performanca obligation.
581 Allowance for expected credit [osses of trads debts

Thir Srodp assesees the jmpairment of ite Tnancial assets based on the Expocted Credit Loss ["ECLT) model. Under the
expectiod cradit locs rmodel, the Croup accounts for epectad credit leces and changes in thozs axpectad crodit losses at
the end of each raporting perlod (o reflect charnges in credit rizk since [nitial necognition of the financial aswwte The Sroup

measures the joss allewanoe at an amount egual to fatime ECL for L2 inancial iInstrwments
The Sroup meatures the expacted credit lo=es of 3 financlal Instrument in a way that reflects

af unbiased and probabllity welghted armount that = deterrnined by evaluatitdg a range of passibds autcorie=
thethme value of meney, it applicable; and
: reasenable and suppormable infarmation that iz avatabie without undue oost of effort at the reportng dato alxoul past

gvents current conditions and forecasts of future soonornde conditlons,

Expacted gredit hosses are measured Tor The maximum contractual gerc ovar which the ontity s oxposed o creddit risk
THe sigmificart ectimates relatifg 1o the measuregment GFECL relate to the far value of the collaterals i place, the expedtod

timirg of the callectlan ard forward leoking economic factors

59 Provisions

Frovisioms are recodgnized In tve staternert offirancial pozition when the Croup kas a legal oF constructive oblination ac 3
result of past eventzand it s probable that cutflow of resources embodyingeconormc benadfits will ke reguired 1o sottle thio
chfigation and-a relighie estimate of the arnount can be made Provisions are revieawed at each statement of financial
position date and adjustad to reflect current bect estirmate Where putflow. of resources embodying econormie benefits |=

nat profable s contingent Habality 1 disclosed, unlése the possibility of outflisw i remote

510 Taxation

5101 Current

Carrent taxis the expectiod tax payabie gn the taxable income far the year based on taxable profits, using tax rates enacted

af subctantively anacted ot the raporting date and any adjustmont totan pavable it respect of previous years
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5102 Lewy

Ihir amouint caleulated on axable incoms usiig Ure rotified tax rats = recoanized as current |nocome tax expense for the
yizar in consclidated statoment of profit of loss Any escess of expected income tax pard or payabie for the year under the

Ordinance avar the: amount designated sz current ihcomea tax for the yaar, i theh rocognited 2 a lew.

5103 Ceferred

I'he Qroup recagrizes a deforred tay aszot (o theaxtent that it probabile that taxable profits for the foresesabls future will
be svallable against which the asset can e utilized. Deferred 1ax assefc are regucsd 10 the oxient thatl it e no ongor
probalsle that the relatéd tax benefit will be realizod

Cefarred (ax &= provided asing the balance st roethod for all tomporary differences at-the repoTing date bebweon [ax
base of accots and labilites and thelr csmarng armolrnts for-fimancial reporting purpozses

Cofarred tax lability i= recognized for all :amable temparary differonces and doferred tax asssis are recognized for all
deductitcle temporary differences. cafry forward of unused tax credite and unused tax losses, IF any, to the extent that it =
prabable that fulure thxable profit will be-availsble agahhst wihich the deduatible ternporany differences, carry Tarveard of
unused Tax gredits and unused tax josses can B utilized

Deferred tix assots and kabllitigsare measured ot the tax rates that ard expecied 1o apply 1o the parfod whon the Hatsility
settled basod on tax rates that have Deen enaciod of substantially enacted at the reporting dats

5104 Estimate

Tha Croup ectabliches provigians, bazed on reazonable ectirnates taling inte account the applicable tax lass and the
decisione by appetlate authoentes oncartain isues in the past. Instances whera the Croup's view differsfrom the viow takon
by thaa incorme tax department at the assacsment stageana where the Group carsiders that its views on items of matenal

nature k= i sccordance with lav, the amouits aré hown az contingerit Habilites

& deferred tay isbility 8 recognized for all taxable emporary: differences and deforrea tay asocis are recogiized for
deductible temporany differonces and U uze tay locses to the éxtent that it iz probable that takable profite will be avallable
agamnst which the losses can be utilmed, Significant. managament judgment iz reguired (o determine the ameunt of
deferred tax assets thot can De recognized, based upon the [ikely tming and: level of future taxable profits togother with

future tax planning stratéenies.

S0 Revenue from contracts with customers

51  Sale of goods

T Holding Comipany s |n the basiness of zelling cellular mohile phones, tablofc accessoriesand allied products. Roevoen e
frarn contract with customets & recognized. whon control of goods are transferrad to the customes 3t 3 amount that

reflecis tho consideration o which the Oroup expeats 1o be antitled in exchanoe of thoss goods
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Resenue from sale of goods iz recoanized 3t a ot whon performatics oblmstons are satlsfied conclding with transfer of

control of the assat to the customer, gonarally on aelively

52 Service income

The Holding Cormpany aisn prowvides mepair sapvices for mobile: phones. tablots scoescornies and:allied: products which are
it-warranty and out-cEwarranty at it= torvlcs centers. The Holding Campany iecognizes the revanue from repair senvoes

whan the serice s pronnded 1o the customar.

513 Sales returns

The Group provides sales retums 1o custormors based on the instructsans by the band owners. Upon recepts of
insguctions, the Growp gives tho customessan option o returnunsold groductsand abain same product categaries based
of rovised selling prices or the Croup Esues a ohedit hote to the custamer which can be ufed to adjust against the

recoiy abile recordied of the Custiort

514 Contract liabilities

Acontract [iability s the obligation to transfer goode to & custarmer for which the Holding Campany has recelved concldar
ation [or an amount of conaderation © gue] from the customer. i a Customer pays coneideration bofore the Holding
Company transfers goods to the custamaer, a contract izhifity i& recognined when the paymonl s maeds or the payimont =
due [whichever iz earlier]. Cantract liabllities are recognized as ravenus when the Helding Company perfarms under the

contraat

515 Revenue from contracts with customers (the Subsidiary)

Thie Subsidiary oppliea the following judgement that ssgnificantly affect the geterminaton of the amount of revenue from
cONtracls With customess:

. Determination of performance obligations

With respect 1o the sale of goods, the Subsidiary cancluded the goods transferred i each contract constitute a single
parfarmarice obligation. v relation tothe product warfanty provided tothe customer [such o the eodds will conferm, in all
recpects b the specifitations standards, drawiras: sarmples, deseriptions guality reguirements, guality standards, ard free
frou defiect) as part of the agreements into which the Subsidiary entors Accordingly, such a wananiy is 3n assurance-Type
warranty and is thus accountod for under TAS 37, The Subsidiany has detormingd that the promice 1& the transioer of goods

ta the cusiamer.

Ary wiarranty related to the ultimate customer such s aftor -sale sorvices ar the perfarmancs warfanty s the responcibility
af the brand owner (e the Subsidiary to which owr cuticmer balongs) towards it customear, Theredore, the Holding
Camparny has concludod that the ransfer of goeas is a single porformance obfigation recognizad at a point in Lme whan

thieecontrol i tramsfarred.
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«  Principal versus agent considerations - sale of goods

Fhi Group enters arranasment for sale of goods induded in the contract in wehich the Group act as Saller (Accambpler [
Manufactyrer). The Subsidiary has determined that it controels the ooods beforo thoy are transfermd o Buyer [Xanomy
Paldstan Phivate Lifited), becad=e it has the abllity to diredt the use of these goods and dbtain the benefits from tham. in
making thi= determination, the Croup has consldered that it s primarily responszible for ifilling the promise o provide
goods because i directly dealz with the Buyer and i g primartly respensible for the guality or suitability of the goods in
addition, the Group has inventory rick baefofe the: gobde have bean doelivered to a custemer. Tharefore, the Croup hac
concluded that it isthe principal Inthese contracte |n adedition, the Subdgdiary hae concludied that It transfor of goods <jnghe
performance chiigation recognized ata pomnt an time when the controlis transfermed

572 Defined benefit liability

I'he Croup operates an unfunded aratuity scheme coverning eligible worker=s®, pavable on ceasing of employment cubsect
o -cormpletion of minimum aqualifying penod of senace Obligations unoder the scheme are caliualated:on the last arawn
gress 2alary bay fiummbey of years saivedd to the Oroug.

Anactuanal valuation of all defined benefit cchmes B conducted avery yoaar The valuation wses the Projected Lnit Credit
rsthod. Expierience adjustrmients are recodnizod in other comprebensive incame when they ocolr. Afnounta recorded in
cormaligated statormont of profit or foss aro limited (O currentand past seticd Cost™, gams of 1osses on settiarmants atd nat
interost incormne / ([Expecse). All other changes in net defined benefit iability are recognized in consoligated statorment of
athier camprahensive incame with no subsaquent recyeling to consoldated staternent of profit or loss

Seaff ratirerment gratuity defined Dencfit B provided for perrianent ermpioyess of the Grouwp. Calculatons in respect of the
kabliity reguire assurnptions 1o be made of future outcomes the principal ones boing In respect of mortality rate, withdraw
al rate, jhtrease in ramuneration and the disepunt rate used to comert Tuture cash fiows o currant values, Calculations are

sorsitive 1o changes in the underhying assumplions

513 Foralgn sxchange

Transactiorns in foreign currencics are initially recorded by the Groop at it functional currency spol rates-at the date the
transaction first guslifies for rocociithar

Morictary assats and liabilites genorminatad: in forabgr currencies are transiated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchangs at the moporting date Differences arizing on saftlomient or transiation of monetany tems ald recognizod in

cormalidated staterment of profit o lass.

Maon-manetany iterns that are rmeasured intarms of historical cost in & foraign cUrrenoy are transtated using the oxchangs
rafes ot the dates of the inmtial trarsctons Thare are no nomy maneiary itorms measured at fair value in aforoon cutrrancy.
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I Setatrrining the spot exchange rate towss oniritial recognition of the redated asset, exponse or income (or sart of it) on
the derecogmitlon of a2 non-moretary assét or nen-mondtary liablity relating o advance constderation, the datée of the
transachon s the date on which the Sroup inmatly receanizes the non-meneiany assel or non-moenetary lability ansing
froimn the advarice cansicheration, if there aro muftiple paymenks or receipts inadvances, determines the transaction date for

gach paymerit or récelpt of advance consideration

514 Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afimancial instrurment B any cantract that ahvec riee to afinamcial azzet of &he eintity and 3 firaneial Eahility oreq Uity instru

ment of anothar entity

3341 Financial assets
Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financal assets are classfiod, ot initial recagnition, and subsemuantly measured af pmortized oost, Tair value through ather

camprehensive incame [QC1) and falr value through profit or losc

Thir clazsification of finanaal assets at inital recognition depends on the financal asset's contractual cash flow charaoternis

tice and the Croups businecs madel far managing thorm. With the exception of trade dabts atel Bank balance that donat
contain a ggnificant financing companent ar for whilch the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Craup (nitially
meErasures & firrancial azset at itz fair value plas, in the caso of & financal asset not at fair value throwgh profit or loss transac

tior coste Trade dabds that do not contain a significant financing companental for whichthe Croup has applied the practi

cal expedjifit are medsured at the transaction price detarmined uhdsr [FRS s Rofer to the ascounting pollcy in' Revenis
froum contracts with customers Mote 5.1)

im arcdar for 2 finagneial ascet to be clacziffed and rreatured at amortized coct of fair value through OCL, it reede to glve rise
to cach fiows that are ‘sololy payments of prinaipal and interest (SPP on the principal amount outstanding. This assees
mant & raferred to ac theSPPI teat and ke performad ot an irstrument lovel.

The Croup's business model for managing financial assets refers to how It manages its financial assots in order (0 generaie
cazh flows: The busifecs model detarmitecwhothal cath fiows will result fram collecting contractual eash flows, <slling thie

finanelal assets, or bath

Purehases or sales of financial azcot< thot require delivory of ascotowithit a time frame actablishad by regulation or'cofvan
theins o the market place [regular way rades) are recogriized on the trade datie e, the date that the Croup commits to
purchase or sal| the asset

The Croup's finamdial assets include lpng term loans and depodite trade debie <hort term investmenis, other recelyables
and pank balances

Boo



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement

For plurposec of cubcenuont measuremenl financial acsets are clacssified in four eategories:

Fimancial azcete at Tair value through' profit ar loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (gelbt instrumants)

Fimanclal acéote declonated at falr walue throwgh OO with no recycling of cumulative galne and lotses upon
derccognition [eguity Instrument)

Financial assets at Tar waiue throwgh SO0 with recycling of cumulative gams and losses {gebt instrurments]

a] Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at Tair valus thraugh profit of less inelude financal ascets Beld for trading; finanheial assote decianated upon
Imithal recoanition at fa|r value through prafit or loss of financial a=ets mandatorfly required o be mescured at falr value
Financial assets are classified as held for trading it they arc soguired for the purpose of solling or repurchasing in the near
term. Darnatives, including separated embeddad derivatives, are aleo elascifion o Reld for traditlg unfess they are designat
ed &5 affective hedulng Instrameants, Financial a=ste with cash fiows that are not solely payment=s of piindpal and Interes
aro classified and measured ot far value through Erofit o lossirrespoective of the business miodel. Notwithssanding the
ctiteria for debit Instrumsnts to be classified at amortized eost aF atfair value throudah O, as destribed abowe, debit instru
ments may be desgnated at fair value throogh profit of loss aninital recoanitien 7 doelng so abminates, or sgnifrcantly

reduces, an actountng mismatch,

Financilassete st fair value through profit o loss are carned In the statament of financial position-at Tar walue with net
changas-in fair value recognized in the statament of profil of joss

IMiscatedory inclbdas darativeanstrumenits and listed equity irvesumantswhich the Group had rotimrgvecably edlectedio
classify at fair vatue through O Dividencs on listeg equity iInvestmenie greakso recognized ac other inpcome in the =tate

rrvant of proft of less whon the riaht of payiment kas boon estabilchod

A dorwative embedded 1n & hybnd contracy with a financial labiliny or non-financial host, = separated from tha hosoand
aceountad for ac a separate dervative iT the econornic chatacterstics and rigkes are ot clazaly related e the hest a
soparate nstrurment with the same fanms as the embedded darnastive woukd meat the defintran of a derivathae and the
hytirkd contract is-not measured at Tar value throuoh profit o loss: Embeddad desvatives are meassred at fair valua with
changes in fair value recognzed in profit o e, Reaccecesment only oceurs if there & glither achange in the tarms of the
coniteact that significantly mcdifies thecash Tlowes that winlld otherwise be reaulred or 2 reclsscafication of e fingncial asset
ol of the-fair value through profitor oss category.

Aderhmative emibedded withina hybeld cantract contaiting a inancal ascat host isnotaccounted for saparately, Thefinan
cial-asset host ogether with the embedded derpative s required to be classified in its entiiety asa financial asset at fair

value theaugh profit ar less
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=3} Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Thiz categary s the mest relevant to the Sroup The Group measures financial aseers at amortized cost ifboth of the

following conamions ars mel

The financlal aszet) = hadd within @ business medel with the objective te hold financial as=ets 0 ordes 1o collect

contractual cash fiows: and

The comtractual tapme of the financial atset nive rize on specifiod dates to cash floves that are alely payiment=of

pnngipal and inferost on the pnncipal amount, gutstanding

Finamcial aveets at ammortized coit are subsoaquently measured using the gffective interest [EIR) method and are subyest ta

impairment, Cains and 0sses are recognized in profit of lass when the asset s derocognized, modified or imparad

The Group'z financial a=ets at amaoyiiz=d cost= includes trade debts ather racslvables, long term investments, shart-12rm

invastryents oxcluding ineestment in mutual funds and cank balance

c) Financial assets designated at fair valuethrough OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition {equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrovacably its equity invesEmsnts 28 eguity’ instruments designat
ed atfair value through OC whan they meet the definition of egquity uhdes 1AS B Financial Instruments Precentation

anmd are not hald for trading, The dassificaton & detormmed on an instrumant - Dy anstrument basis

Cans and kosses on thiese fimanclal assets are never recyelod 1o prifit or loct. Dividendsz are recognized ac otlies income ln
the consolidatod statament of profit or fesswhen the right of paymant has Bean established, excopt when the Group
banedits from such proceedsas 3 recovery of part of the cost of the firancial azsat, inwhich catse; sach gains ame recorded

in O Equity instrumernis designated atfalr walue throuwgh OC are rot subilect to mpaloment ascommaght

The Groupdoos mot Fave any financial ascelsdesignated at-fair value through OCT (eguity iInstrumcnis)

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
{debt instruments)

Thie Group measures debt instruments at fair value throough ©CH T both of the follgwing conditions are met

Tha financial accat |z hald within a business madel with the oblective of otk holding to collect contractual cach flows

and sellmg; and

The contractual terrme &f the firancal asset glve rize on specified dates to cach flows that are solaly payments of

pnngipal and infernst on the pnncipal amount, gutstanding
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Far debt instrurrsents at fair value through OCLL interest income, foareign exchange revaluation and impaimment iesses or
reversals are recognized in thie statement of profit or léss and computed in the came manrgr as for financial actete
redasured at amortizea cost. The remaining far valoe changes are recognized in OC), Bpon derecognition, the cumulative

fair value change recognized In OC = redyoled 1o profit or loss

The Croup-doss not Fave debi instruments recorded at far value through OC with recycling of cumulative gains and [ossos
Financial assets - Derecognition

Afinancial assot oo, whene applicable &:part of a firiancial assot or part of 3 Group of similar financial assets) = primarily

derecogrized wien
; The nghts to recaive cash fiows from the assot have expired; or

i Crowup has transferred it aghts o eoohve cazh fiows fram e asset or has assamed an obiioation 1o pay Che
recoived cash fiowsin iullhwithout misterisd dofay 1o a third garty uhidor 3 pass through™arrangoemen;and either (&) the
Crougp has travsferred substantially all the riske ard rowards of the accot, or (b) the Croup has neithor transferred nor

retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assot

When the Graup has travdlerrad it rights to recelve cach fiows from an amet or hag entarad (nto a pas-through arrangs
meEent, it evaluates it and (o what, extent, it has etaned the risks and rewargs of ownerships When ithas nethar transferred
nar retained substantialiy-all the rigksand: rewards of theasset nor transferred control of the asset, the azsat s recognized
te tha estent of tha Croup's continuing invalwment in the acest In that cace, the Croup aldo recagnizes an astociated
Hability, The transferred asset and the associated hability are measured on 3 base that reflects the nghts anag ebiigations
that the Group bas rotained.

Cantinuing nyvelvemeant that takes the forme of 3 guarantoe oves the transferred assol, i measured 31 the fower of the
ariginal carrying amount of the ascct and the makimum armount of considgeration that the Group could be redguired to

repay
Financial assets - Impairment

Thie Group recognizesan allowance for expected eradit losses [ECLT for all dobt instrumen=not Reld at fair value throwgh
profit ar lass. ECLs are based on the difference betwoean the contractual cash fiows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash fiows that the Sroup expects 1o recelve. The ehorfall iz then discaynted at an appitosdmation to the a=et's

afginal offective inorest rate

Ef & are recognized |0 tewg stanes. For credit exposures fir which thenz has not beon a slgnificant inoreaze i credit rick
sincd initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defaull ovepts that aro possible within the next
IZ.rmonths 13 12 month BCL)L For thise credit exposures for which thare has been a significant increase in dredit risk since
Initial receanition, a less alliwance is fedquired for credit lo=es expecion over the famain.lng life of the exposure irfegpective
afthetiming of the default{a lifetime ECL The Group cansiders a inancal assot |n default whan contractusl paymentsang
120 daye pact dus. Hewevar, ik certain cases, thoe Craup may aloa corsider a financial as<et to be in defadlt whien intermal o
external Information indlcates that the Sroup = unlikely o receive the outstanding contractual ameunes in full before
talireg N ScoUnTany cregit enhancerments hold by the Srouwp A Tinanciad asse = wiitten off when thaerg is no reasornable

sxpectation of recovering the contractusl exch-flows.
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Ve Sroug uses 3 prowision malrng o calculate ECLgior trade dobits The provison rates are based on days past due for
groupings of vanows customer segrients that have similar loss pattains o, by geography, product type and customie

type)

Far trads debts; the Group applies a simplified approach in calcutaring ECLS bacea on lifetime expected credit Iosses: The
provision matrix s Inftially baced on the Group's historical observed default rates The Croup will calibrate the matrlec to
adiuest the histof iEal credit loss expenence with forward - looking mformation For instance, if forecast econamic conditions
[Le, gross domestic product and inflation) are expocted to detericrate over the nextyear which can lead toan increased
number of defaults in the <ectar, the historlesl default rates are ad|usted At evory roparing date, the historleal cbeenmod
dafault rates are updated and changes i the forwand: Jeoking estimates are analyzed. The expected credit |osses ara
recognized in the statement of profit or [oes For bank Dalances short term investments, marginagainst bank guarantes
the Sroup appllés a simplified approach in caloulating ECLs based an [ifetime expected credit lo=es The Croup reviews
intarmal and external information avallabls for esch Bank Balance 1o assoss expeciod credit loss and the likalihood 1o

recoive Lthe gutstanging contractudlbamount. The expecied credit losses arn recognized in the statermient.of profit or joss.

5142  Financial liabilities
Financial liabllities- Initial recognition

Financial habilities are clasaMed; at inual recognition, as financial iabilitkes at fair walue throug b profit o Joss, loans apdg
barrowings, pavablet, of as derlvatives designated at hedding instrumantsin on efoctive hedge, ad appropliate

Al Francial kabilities are ocognized imitizlly: at Taw value and, In the case of loans and borrewings and payalbles. net of
directly atirbutalle transaction costs.

Thie Group's financial habdlities inciude long teem loans, short terme borrowi ngs utiized under mark-up arrangemernts,
creditors, accrued and other Habilites,

Financial liabllities- Subsequant measurement
Loans and borrowings

Aftar initial recognition, interest -bearing leanzs and barfpwings are subseguantly maasurdd at amdrtized coct using the
EfS method. Caine and losses are recognized fn profit o less wihen the Rabifitles ans darecegriized as well az through the

EiR amormization process.

Amortized coat ks caleulated by taking into socownt any discowit or pramium an acgulsitlon and fees ar costs that ane an

integral gart of the £IR. The EIR-amemizaton i incluged as finance costs 10 the statemeant of compranansne incomie

Thic category applle< to long terrm lpans, hort torm borrowandgs utiffzed under mark-up arrangements, creditors aceruen

and other hatiitos:

Boo



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

Financial liabilities - Derecognition

Afinancial liabllity = denecogniized when thae ebligation unden the iabllity = discharosd or cancelled or explres Wihen arn
exmling fmancial habiity s neplaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the wrms of an
exicting liability are substantally rmodified, sbeh an exchange o modification i treated as a derecognition of the ariginal
lkxhility and the recoqnition of @ new liabllity, and the difference in the respectlve carrying amounits is recognized in the

statermnent of profit ar loss

5.15: Offsetting financial instruments

Financal aseets and financial liabilites are offset and the net amount i= reporied In the corsohoated statoment of iinancial
poson if theto s g curranthy enforceable legal right o offset the recognized amountsand there s an imtention to<satthe on

a hiet basls, to realiza the ascots and cettle thae |abilities dmultaneaushy,

N [ Qperating segments

Operating fegments are roported (B a mianng consictent with the internal reporting provided to the chief oporating
decieon maker. The Chief Opematng Doosion Makor (C00M), who @ respansitile for allocating resources and assessing
patfarrrrance of the oporating segrnorts, kas:boen [dontfied as the CEQ who makes strategic dectsons. Tho CODM mion
tors thie oparating results ¢fils businiess umits separately for the purpose of makling decisions about resoures allocatlon and
Earurmance asEecsment. Segrmant parformance = avaluated based o0 profit o loss and & measured ConsEienthy wath

profit or [ges in the firancial statornents

I maragement F=s determmed that tho Group bes "Deetribution and Betail and “Assemibly” a< Dae distinet recartable

cegments Accoroingly, seamont rélated information s prosanted. in Mobe 45

517 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Cividend: distr ibution and appropriation To resenes are recognizad as ability in the consglidated financial statoments in

the period in which these are appiraved.

5.18 Earning per share

Basic EFS s calculated Dy-dividing the profit or loss attributable o ordinary shareholders of the Group Dy weighted average

numbér of crdinary <hares putstanding during the year,

Giloted EPS = caloufated by adjusting basic EFPS withweighted averago numiber of ondinary shates that would De msued on
converslon of all diluthve potential ardinary shares into cedindry shares ang post-tax effect of changes In profit or'loss atirib
utably o ordinary shareholders of The Group that would result rorm corversion of all diluthe potental ordinany: shares into
ordirmny shares

Buo



Air Link Communication Limited
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2024

513 Contingent liabilities
A contingent llabtlity = disclesed wher

there 5 a pecsibble . abligatlon 'that aricec from past evarits and whose axistence will ‘be. corfirrmed anly By this
oCTUTfEnce df non-ocolrencs of one of mare uncertaln future svents not wholly within the control af the Sroup; or
there ic present obiligation that arlsec from past eventc but it ik hot prebable that an eutflow of rosources emibodying
ecaonomic banefits will be requingd to sattla the ebligation or the amount of the abiligation cannot be measurad with
sufhicient rehiability

Bwo
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G:2 Thersare Tully depreciated assets, having cost of Re 333828748 [June 30, 2073 Rs BAST9.465) that

are atiil in uss 3= of the reparting date

B3 Thedepreciation charge for the year has

besn allocated as follows

Cost afreveriug
Adminisirative oxpenso
Salling and distribution coots

B.4 The depreciation breakup is as follows:

Cperating fieed ascots
Right of e ascols=

B5 Capital work in progress

A at duly O,
Additioms during the year
Transferred to aperaling fixed assels

6.6

Wafrre

Tota| - 20

Teial - NS

Bl
BT &aT2

538,206
£000.309
(5,000,385
&5 206

T, TE0 000

TLEEE &
2Eoniscacy
(154227
2ADOTIRTTS




Note 2023
6.7 Right of use assets Rupees

Yehicles 6.7 1245072 6160399
Rented premises - bulldings 672 77803342 94 T20 424
19725450635 100.880.873

6.71 Vehicles

Year ended June 30,
Met carrying value basis
Cpening net book value July 01, 6,180,399
Additions 22 TT. 576
Dispasals -
Depreciation charge [9.481,254)
Ciosing net book valus 19,450,777
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 0. 544,541
Accumulated depreciation 1,093 820)
Met book valus 19,650,771
Dregreciatian rate per annum % .

6.7.2 Rented premises - buildings

Year ended June 30,
Met carry value basis

Opening net book value July 07, 94 720424
Additions 125590,053
Disposals -
Depreciation charge (40 507.115)
Closing net book value 177,B03 342

Gross carry value basis
Cost 460353 466
Accumulated depreciation (282 590,124)
Met book value TTT 805342

Depreciation rate per annum % 10-20

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As at July 471, 1350758 464

Additions -

Fair value gain 3 S0\741. 556

Asat June 30, 71 1,500.500,000
71 In Febroany 01 2023, the Group scoored freshiold lend and twllding having, ares 22954 square meter, wndier
construction, locsted sk 046 BeL, MM Afarm Poad, Gulbera L Tos building = net cecupied by the Groupand = Lo b= held oreaming

rental incame

T2 The bullding have been rented out to terants The Group carmes this under investmant oroperty &t f=r walue modsel The
reatsl Imoorme In respecl of this pgroperty amiounts o B S157 million 2038 Rs 541 millon)] and has besn recognized n
corsdlidated staterment of prolit ar sz {refar to Note 32 'Cther income')

As af reparting date the change in falr walue of the iInvestment property &= cormpared o= purchase prce have been recarded,
determmined with, rehirance to market condilions sd recent transactions of =milal propertiEs. The Croup doss not s any
contEciuzl oblgation towards = tenants © purachase, corstruct of develop maEstment propetty of o repaln maEmtainand
sriharce



721 This iwestrmant property s under lien against funded Tacilities abtained frorm finandial institutions by the Group.
P22 Porced cale value of the investment propefty Is-assessed at B 1380 miflion (2023 B=- 1,530 million)

Note
B INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software
Met carrying value basis
Opening balance as on July OT, 10662139 15,654,520
Addition during the year 1822671 1263 2GE
Transfer from operating fixed assets - net - 399000
Amortization charge (5,033.662) (6,674,584)
MNet book value as at June 30, 7445148 eeZ 1
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 4041550 51218 5§79
Accurmulated amortization (35,596,402 _ [3D556.740)
Met book value T.445148 066218
Armortization % per annum S535% X3

871 Tnis represents the software upgradation of the Retall Pro software
82 The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows;

Cost of revenue
Administrative expenss
Selling and distribution costs

1217483
TET2203
2153976

50539662

kY

9 LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Financial assets at amortized cost

Term finance cartificate a3 _ 300,000,000

This relates 1o a term finance certificate (TFC) obtained from 15 Bank, having a face value of Ry Nil (2023 Rs.

33 million) and carned a markup at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2%, having a maturity penod of 10 years
[202%: 3 mianths KIBOR +2%). The TFC paid interest guarterly, and i& rated A+ by PACRA. TEC is disposed off
during theyear. Mowernent in inancial assets is as follows:

As at July 01, 200,000,000
Additions -
Deletions {200,000,000)
Markup accrued

Current portien of markupaccrued on long-
term investment - net

As gt June 30,

10 LOMGC TERM LOANS AND DEPODSITS

Security depaosits 12247073
Advance toemployees against salary [l2X] 47935810
Less current portion of advance to employees 1= 22.710132)

B 25 2ICETR
37572751




101 Thiesa are interest free loan provided te employess and executives of the Croup, repayable over three years The
present valuoadjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 Financal Instruments! i ins@nificant, henoe
mat recognized in the corsalidated finandial statements

62 This includes |oans-and advances amounting o Rs 3508 milllon (2023, e 20015 million) glven to 2% 202515
execlthes of the Group.

M STOCK IN TRADE Note
Raw imaterial 5145945 765 T22050 665
Waork in process ¥ 5 I3 554 619
Motsile phores
Spare parts
1=5]157.972
Impairment allowance for clow moving and cbeoleto stock 3 Bt =788
E34E | \3EI247 8L
Gods N Transit nz | samanos
Ly Moverment |0 imearmentallowance for skow moving and obsalote stock 1=as follows
Ac at 1uly O,
increase [ (decrease] during the year B 446604 E635TT
=0TES
12 Thic represonts goods that are made avaflable for Use fo the CGroup by the supplis) agalnet open lettarn of cradits,

but howe not yet beon received by tho Group:

12 TRADE DEBTS

Due from customers - Considaned good { P ]

Conddered doubtful - Others RELBETE | 15087,1%2

Allewarce for expoctad credit loss 23 8248676 (aoe7 =9
21 This:includes-reroivable fromme Xiaomi Pakistan {Private] Limnited amounting to @s. NIl (2023 ;R 667 1553575) in

recpert of the Group's foredgn exchange lotse< on importatian of raw materal resultlng rom difference batwesn the spot
oxchange rates at the date of ipitial recognition of stock In trade and date of tha relatod payment. the Craup bas already
processed and sold the relsted finmhed goods A por “Manufaciuring supoly agredment’, such exchangs lossec Jand gains)
arg chargeabile to Xaaml Pakistan (Frivatel Limited, via debit note {or cradit nate, as applicablo).

e IPrete customers have na recant history of defaull For 2aging analyzi= of thede trade debie rafer 1o Mote 202 1L
23 Movemeant inallowance for expected credit loss 12 as follows:

A a3t July I,

tRevorsal) f charge during the year Ei

Cla=ing balance

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Adiances considored good - uneecured

Advances (o supplers EX} .
Achyanoe to custan authortos | B80S0 orr
Cumrent portlon of long tofnd ldans and dopetis I 220152

Buo



Nots

Advance 1o employees against group expenses
Advance to employees against loaned / maobile sets AE TR 14E 15
I&TW07150 || \7E4,GRSSAS

13] This represents amount given as advance to suppliers against purchase of stock in trade.

14 TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to clearing agent Je.1
' 14,722 508
Sl e ]

Frepayments

hargin agalnst latters of credit
Dhre from rand awrers fe st
Bank guraranioo

Remt recelvablae =3 110871
Ch e
Currant porton of markup on leng-term lrvestment az27e7

el This represents amount deposited with custorm authorilies 30ainNst IMmport Clearanco.

142 This represents due fram birand owners of account of various incentives and promotions affered by thiem, and
other costs reimbursed by them,

2 This represenis rental recenabie on invesiment groperty frem lomnenis

15 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT

InEcmE tax
Frepaid atsots
Siless tmm
16 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Financial assets at amortized cost

Term doposits .l
Acciuad markup

Investrrent in mutual fungs W2

18]  This relates to term deposits (TDRs) having face valus of Rs. 2712 million {2023; R= 1,712 million] and
carrying markup ranging from 19% Lo Z2% (2023 12 25% o 20.50%), having a maturity p-g:riu-d of 30 day=sto 365
days [2023: 30 days to 365 days). TDRs amounting to Rs 800 million are under lien against finded facilities
obtained lrom linancial institutions.

162 This amount relates to nil units [2025; 2,975 units) of Al Habib Cash Fund managed by Al Habib Asset
Management Limited.

8% Movemert in financial s=ssts = 38 lollows:

B



For the year ended June 30,
2024

As at July 01, LEAZ T O0H
Pt 2559,500,000
Encashed (1,600,000,000)
Markup accrued 4E0ST7E06
Markup received rdi bl i)
(Bl $ 50 e
For the year ended June 30,
203
Ag at July 01, 864 5535 BE4
Additions 2.479,960,000
Encashed [16I0,060,000)
Mark up accrued 265 300 BEL
Fair value gain oninvestmernt -
Mark up received (TRIE72.600

LEEZEAR0NE

T Movarment in gain on remeasurerment of financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss is as follows

Asat Juty 01,

Fairvalue gain during the year
Gain reatized during the vear
Written off during the year
Closing balance

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash inhand
Cash at banks - current accounts
Cash at banks - saving accounts

T71 Thizcarries mark-up rate at 33% - 5.4% 2023 Nl per anmnum.

18 SHARE CAPITAL
181 Authorized share capleal
2024 2023

Number of ordinary shares of
R=. 10K each

&00.000,000 LSl 83 Ordinary shares of Re 104 each

Boo

H49H 449

&, D00 OO0 B 000,000,000



--
182 |ssued, subccribod and paid up capial Mote Rupees Rupoet

2024

Number of ordinary chares of
Rs. 10/ each

192,692 308 192692308  Fully paid in cash
202576973 207576523 Fully paid bonus shares
305,269 23] 395268 73]

19 SHARE PREMIUM - CAPITAL RESERVE
R —

mal Thits reserve can be utifized by the Group only for the purposes specified in section B1(% and 81(2) of the Companies
Act, 2017

20 LONG TERM LOANS

Cirix Leasing Pakistan Limited | a1

Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited 11 202

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company

Limited | P03 BOG.UOGK)

Saudi Pak Industrizl 2nd Agricultural investmeant Company -

Lirnited |1 2004 900,000,000

Pak Oman Investment Cormpany | 208 B0 000 D00

Pak Oman Investrment Cormpany Il 206 IL0.000,000

Bank AL Habib Lirmited 07 TETS00,X0

Add: Accrised miarkup LIEn ey
ZN8nZ741

Loss Current portion - shown under curment liabilities AT W)

Less Accrued markup presented in current imbilitios [[FLSE v ]

ZTT5000.000

201  This represents loan obtamed frorm Onx Leasing Pakistan Limited under sale and lease back arrangerment of different
machinary including but not limited  to mobile. assembly units, air conditioner including VEF systemn, elevator, alectrical
equipment’s vehicles: As tha transfer of the assets did not meet the criteria of sales under IFRS 1S Revenue from Contracts with
Customers therefore the said transaction has been treated under IFRS 9. The loan carmies mark-up of & months KIBOE+ 5% and
is repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments The mark-up rate charged during the year an the ocutstanding balance ranged
from 25.14% o 586K (2023 20.43% to Z716%) per annurm. The oan is secured against the leased assets This loanwas settled
during the vear.

202 This represants loan (Lease Assers Agreement) of PER 240 milion ottained from OLP Financial Sendces Pakistan
Limited [Formerly Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited) to meat the working capital requirerments of the Croup. Total tenure of loan
is % yoars. Loan s repayable in 36 monthly instaliments starting from the end of st month of disbursement The rate of mark
up on loan is & months KIBOR + 0% The markup rate charged during the year on the cutstanding balance ranged from 25140
to Z586% per annume This facility is secured against one production fine for mobile phones along with laboratoryftesting
equipments, Mxtures and standard accessories and spare parts

2T This represents loan of PER 800 million obtained from Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricubtural Investment Company
Lirnited in 20Z] to meet working capital reguirements of the Group This loan was cbtained for the period of 5 yearswith a
arace period of 1year from the date of first disbursament. |Loan s repavable in 8 equial sami-annual instaiments starting from
the end of Gth guarter from the date of first disbursement. The rate of mark up on loan is T monthe KIBOR -+ 2.5%. The mark-up
rate charged dunng the year on the outstanding balance ranged from Z2.74% - 25064 to (2025 18.77% to 2558%,) per annurm
Eﬂs facility is secured against all present and future current assets of the Group.

V4l



205 This repreconts loan of PKR 900 million obtlained from Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural investment Company
Limitad to partially finance/refinance of the Group. Total tenure of loan is 5 years and grace perod is 1 year from date of first
disbursement. Loan is repayabie in 8 equal semi annual instaliments starting from the end of Gth guarter from the date of first
disbursernent The rate of mark up on loan is 2 months KIBOR -+ 7% The markup rate charged during the year on the outstand-
ing balance rarmged from 2274% - 2564% RQ0Z5 TR.BE% - 2455%) per annurme This fRdlity s secured against all present and
future current assets of the Group and personal guaraniess of sponsoring director of the Croup.

205 This represents loan of PKR 300 millicn obigined from Pak Oman frvestment Company Limited in 2001 to meet
working capital requirements of the Group. This Inan was obtained for the pericd of 2 years with a grace period of & month
from the date of first disburcoment. Loan is repayable in 10-egual guarterly instalmonts starting from the end of 3rd quarter
from the date of first disbursemeant: The rate of mark upon loan is 3 months KIBOR + 2% The mark-up rate charged during the
year onthe cutstanding balance ranged from 72 24%. - 2614% R0O75 17 36% to24.91%) per annum, This facility is secured sgainst
all present and future current assets and non current assets of the Group.

206 This represents foan of PKR 350 million abtained from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited to meet working
capital requiremenis of the Croup. Total tepure of facility 3.5 years and grace period is & month from date of first disbursemenit
starting from 14 equal quarterly installments starting from the end of 3rd guarter from the date of disbursernent. The rate of
mark ui:n:n inanis 3 maonths KIBOR « 2% The markup rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from
Z2 AW, - IO, 20T TT TN - 24.02%) per annumm This facility s securcd against all presant and futire non current assets of the
Group and parsonal guarantees of director of the Group.

207 This represents loan obizmed from Bank AL Habib Limited for the purchase of assembling unit {Land and Building)
located at Quaid-e-Azam Industrial estate Kot Lakh pat Lahore The total tenure for this facility is & years including 1 years grace
pericd repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments starting form the end of &th quarter from the date of Tirst disbursement.
The rate of mark up on loan i= 2 months KIBOR + 2% The markup rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance
ranged from 22 24% - 20 14%, (2023; TT 22, - 24 08%) per annurm. This 1qaf| is cecured against fiked assets currernt ascetc 100%
cash margin against import of mobile phones at time of establishment of L Cs and personal guarantees of all directors of the
Group.

2 LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease period for the lease dunng current yaar ranges imrom 3 to 10 years 2023 2 1o 10 years) The effective interest rate
used as the discounting factor (ia incremental bormowing ate) rmnges from 9239% to 2399% (2003 929% to 12699, The
amounts of future payments and the pariods in which they will becorme due are:

A1 Year ending

2024
2005
20260
202
2028
2029
Later than 2009

Less: Future finance charges:
Precent value of lease paymments
Lese Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Buo




Lease payments (LP) and their present value (PV) are ac follows:

Diue not ater than 1 year
Die later than 1 year but not
later than

S years
Later than Syears

Movement of lease llabllities

Az at 1 July ,
Additions during the year O6 7T 054
Mark-up on lease liabilities L2565 TRT
Termination of kease -
A A0 T
Payments [ adjustiments (Z2572307)
Precent value of lease payments 2065 T4R 400

Legs Current portion of long term laase {46,452 TRY)
57,896,016

Cash outfiow for lease ] )

The Group had total cash outfiows for leases of Re 122 472307 (2025 Bs 104,566,848 ). Non-cash additions 1o
right-of-use assets and lease fabilities in the current year amounts o Rs 1466361 602 ard Rs 136251034 respactively
(2072 Ps, Ml

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

This comprises of:
Deferred tax liabillties on taxable temporary differences

Decelermted tax depreciation - the Holding Company
Accelerated tax depreciation - the Subsidiany
Investment property

Deforred tax assets on deductible temporary differences

Leace labilities - net [2,766,791)
Defined benefit Babifity (L2742 954
Provision for worker's welfare fund (BR, F56.787)
Provision for worker's profit participation fund (7 T D)
Altemate corporate tax 004025
Prowvision for net realizable value adjustment (7 E1H)

Provision for expected credit loss A E5904)

Unabsorbed depreciation Iosses - the Subsidiary =
TEAEEA 0P

Less deferred tax asset of Parent shown

under non-curment assets EAILTS
5 560, 57

Reconclilation of deferred tax - net

As at July O,

Recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss
Recognized in consolidated statement of other
comprenensive income

As at Juna 20,

B




222 Baolow s the expiry tax year of unabsorbed depraciation losses on which deferred mx assot has been recognized.

26 L ¥ i
Rupset Rupags
Explry tax year Nature

23 The Group being prudent has not recognized deferred tax asset on following terms during the previous vear. The
recognition of doferred tax asset is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient taxablo profits will be
available against which the unutilized losses can be deducted. Therefore, during the year the Group has recorded doffered
tax asset on following itames:

Expiry tax year Mature
2032 Ajtornate corporate tax
2026 Minimum tax
Mo expiry Provision for WPRPE
Mo expiry Urmabsorbed depreciation loses

= DEFIHED BEMEFIT LIABILITY
UNFUNDED GRATUITY

Z31  The amounts recognized in the consofidated staterment of fimancial positon ane:

Present value of defined benefits obligation 614356
22 Theamounts recognized in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss are;

Current servica cost

Past service cost

Interest cost on defined bonefit obligation
Expenze recognized-in the statement of profit or loss

23 Movement in the net present value of defined benefit obligation is:

Met iabilities at the beginning of the year

Current service cost

Past sarvice cost

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Femeasurements (gain] / losses charged to other comprehensive incom:e
-Actuanial assumpbon

-Experience adjustmeants

Lees Payments during the year
Met abilities at the end of the year

Qualified actuaries have camied out the valuation as at June 30, 2024 The projected unit credit method, based on the
fellewing significant assumptions, is used for valuation:

Dhzcount rate

Ciscount rate for obligation

Expeacted rates of salary imcrease in future years
Retinement assumption

Mortality rate

Boo




The risks towhich plan i exposed inelude salary, demogiaphic, investment and discount risks If the cignificant actaarial
ssumEtion s (relating 1o major reks) wsed Lo estimate the dofined bemefit clligation st the reporting date, had fluctuated
Ery 100 bprs sadlth all otHer variables halket cosstant, the Trripact on the presant value of the defined bendafit obligation wold
have bean.as follows:

1495 154
(T7B84)

The seieitivity analy=ls above have boen detormined baced an a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obfEgation as a result of reasonablo changes in key acsamptions cccaring ot the end of the reporting vear,

The aweragie duration of the defined banefit plan abligation at the end of the reparting vear s & yoara.

M4
Rupees

Within next 12 months T
Between 2 and 5 years 230045
Betweon S and 10 years 248 Y

Boyond 10 years Z7ies 35
22 614355

254 Expocted saponce for figet yodi

The expertad expeines (o gratuity =heme for the year endling June 20 30X work= out 1o be Bs 24159 milllon

24 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables 241 LEFNTTI R4S 4 TEI68ETE
Accrued expenses 0%, THLAED Ba50a0n
Dige 10 brand owners 724665963 -

Withhoiding tax payabie 405 TeR Hib &R0 057
‘Workers Welfare Fund 242 I RGN R EE 026
Woaorkers' Profit Participation Fund 43 L02 T 424 89 Ti0 KE
Other payabios 24.4% 20807 £H) ELEE T

Sales tax payable 4D0HE094 7635260
SIE7302651 | B34720536

241 Thisincludes amournt payabls te Xiaomi H. K. Limited amounting RP=3.882 71 million 2023 371603 millicn).

242 Movement in Workess' Welfare Funds

As at Fulby O, EXaS{RG
Charge for the yaar 98,756 900
As at June 30, T2 ETT O

Rin



243 Movoment in Workers' Profit Partdcipatdon Funds

Az at July O,
Interest charge for the year 5
As at June 30,

Nute
25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS '

JS Bank Limiated | 25 L135,000.000 11E3 5510
1% Bank Limited (| 252 045 BOT BAS 246645456
Bank AL Habib Limited | 24:3 838 144 §72 431 314065
Bank AL Habib Limited [l 54 4 338014 724 238 114001
Dirbai lelamic Bank »3 4107 A0 600 3% 470 008
Azkari Bank Limited BE L0821 &, 800
Fay=al bank Limited - 00 B00 0214
Pak China investment bank p ot 740,000,560
Faysal bank limited 2549 400,000 570
Sukuk 510 3000 000,000
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China - TRES TR SSE
Accrued markup 192 507244 £4373.130
14,115,004 151 5 182 480 733
Less Accrued markup presented in current liahilities e 7248} (44373330
5,130 117 A

251 Reprecents the Utilized partiorn of working capital BReilities for Turnds sdalrist trust raceipt {EATH) and shat tarm
firiance (ST armesbints to el Nl (2025 B 24 rilllion) and R L35 million (2023 G243 milliidnl respactivaly. tota] it of
faciiny for sight=mtter of ored it [SL0) armouants tofs 45 000 rajlion [#300E s 4250 illian], shiogig guarantessof Bs <0600
mion [Sub Limitof S0E) G o350 Million, EAEH amounting to L 150 milkan E2EsEs 105D million) STE of B= 1150
man {(FO2E:Rs S i ian) Sudeng of FATHE] runming financeof B 3880 miltion (=ublinet ol FATH ROEE R 200 raillion

pank gusrantesof B 1S mullion [S0ES P85 millon (subrmit of SaT=

yand STE 0 of B 1,000 munon [Z0EE W)

¢ intar-chanoeablsentin the Growf The mis 6F e ki an funded B ltres =X namthe ) BOR - 2 2022
Jmoritha IO + 25 The markup =Ete chandsd durmd the year onthe cautsanding balancs renoed Trom F22585 {o 2 18

PO VR 1 JA QIR per annium

[Fesa fasitties are cociirad againgt mortaade of resldental prapadied baladg|nag 1o sporeacs and sharehalders havlixg fal

rrafleet walue ampuiiting v B [B7 55 erlllony (2028 D= Lomlilon] ang investment oo af subEidiary having fEi

)
rmarkel vl amounting LIS million, Joit parl pisu elizme of amsuriting 3700 padldan (2020 Be 3 700 mbllisen) ower all

presant and futlre eurieint ascats anid parsairal guarantees of all Bvectors oFthie Croun

Reprecents the utilizéd portian of warking capital facikti
2ERs e i), cotal e of facility for sight==
L350 roillan). FATR arrantng to B 1150 million (2023 B LIS2 mullion), ST [Sub Limit of FATE| armountng to B 050

man [EEE R 152 melllon] ang STE=amountmng to S= L1000 rmlen POESS= Wil These facitesars intefchanpeatls

i

credfiE 510 amotints o B &000 ralon 2025

D20 rnlTion (2

verthin the Group Therateof markup on funded faciivess 3 mentns i EOE+E= The mprkum ratechanosg dunng theyesar
on thegutstanding Eance rpnced from 224k 10 26550 FO2E TV 22% 1o #5317 par annum

[Fie=s faolite= gre sodyred ad=inst mornasgs af reudsnt=l ropemiss balangng io sponsarsand Sarenoidians g &Eir
Mridrke! vais amountmg 0 8 IB7AE mylilon (E02x B 19505 rmililon] and iméastmana gropaty of subsd=ry hgedhg S
et vl pam charge of amoaunting 100 millien (20230 e D00 millien) ower all

r o e oo

ameinting L7513 milllor, Joing o

prezant i futyre cusrent aecets ared paecan gl guarantecs of || gleets

Roo



253 Reprecsents the Ltilized portlan of warking capital facilities for Fundeagainst trust rocsipt [FATRS THH amournts to
e 639 riillion [2025: B 94] miliian), total mit of facility for sight-lettor of credgit [SLE) amoonting 1o Bs 2500 millien
[202F: Be. 2500 millian}, rurniog finance facility of B 560 milllon (2023 8. 560 milllon) [sublimit of FATR], STF of 840
Million afso interchanoosbie with wholly owned subsidiary Select Technologios Pyt Lid, The rate of rmark up on funded
facilities is 3 months KIBOR + TERF) s3nd 2 months KIBOHE + 2% [FATH] (2025 2 months IB0R « 1% {BF) and 3 months
EIBCGR + S (FATHY, Themarkup ratecharged duning tha year on the cuistanding balance anged frarm 22 265 10 25 145%
{202 T 22% 10 24&9T%) per annun

These facilities are secured againgt mortasgae of residential proporties belonging 1o spensers and shareholders hayving fair
rmatkot value armounting e B S1E millian (2023 2s 247 milllan) and pan passy | ol parl passu charge ovee current
assets of R 5,500 million (2023 Be 5500 million), Ranking Charge ot Bantand machinery of Alr Link Commutication
lirvited Pe 940 milllon, cash margin, lien over teem dﬂpﬂﬂt&, term caltiflcate<, currant a'z:_nmﬁs and import documents,
per=onal guarantess of directore and mortgagors of He VA0 milian 20258 Re 7000 millian) ard cro= curporate
guarantosc

a8 Reprecents the utilizied portion of working capital fasilitios for Funcds against trust racisipt FATHR amaunts o B
5255 milllion [2025: 2 22864 milllan], total limit of facility for sight-letter of eradit [SLC) amounts to Be 6700 million [2023:
R 5 000 rmiillion], Ainznce agairst trust técaipt (FATR) amounting ta R 5340 million, 20238 Bz £ 000 millian] [sublimit of
jetter of credit) and STF amourting o Rs 680 million [soblirut of FEEH]. The rate of markup on funded facilities s 3
months KIBOR+2%S The paarkue rate charged duying thoyoar on the cutstanding batance Enged from 22 26% 1o 25 145%
{2025 TF 22% 10 249T%) per annum

Sarme facilities are interchangeable within the Group and secured aganst mortgage of restidential properties belanging
o spansorsand shareholdars Madng i market vahee amsunting to e SIEmillion (2025 B T&Y rmillion) and parl pFaseas
it patl passu charge ovar current asssts of He 500 million (2025 R 5500 million), Ranking Charge on Plant and
machinery of Air Link Communieation limited Pe 940 milllon, eazh margin, llen over term deposits, torm cortificatizs,
LTl accounts and | im port docurmants, porcanal guar.'!nma?tnfd.lre:l,ms. and mortganoes of B= 7800 milllon (2005 e,
TBLO miihuni and cresscorporate guarantees. First exclushea charge on Larid and building of select technologies. !EP_-n oty
share and DR

255 Represents the utilized portion of working capital faclities for Qunrilng Musharakak [HM) amolnts to Be 07
rrdllicin (2025 Rz 525 million], total limiz of facility for sight-letter of crédit [SLE. 1) amounting Be. 1,200 milllon (2023 B 1200
rrdllign], (SLC. ) amaunting B< 800 million [2028: Bz Nil), shipping gusrantes jsublirmit of SLC-0) of B L2080 million [2023:
Fe 1200 mailicn), shipping gusranies (sublirtit of SEC-1] of Re. 8O0 million (20235 Rz Nil] and impart Murabaha ( Istisna
cum Wakals of Re B0 million (2003 B 800 mullien) and Bunning Musharka of o 800 milkon (2023 B= 8063 million)]
{sublimit of LC sghtl Therate of mark up an funded fagilities iz matching KBS + 25%. The markup rate charged dusing
the year on the gutstanding balance rangad fram 2354% 1o 25645 R02E 7625 to 25412 per annuim.

These Tacilitios. are Lf'rl;ﬁrchang&ﬁh!ﬁ within the Group ahd-secured against Joiht parl pasu charge of amounting 700
millicn. The security comptice of Lien over Import Docurments !/ Lien over Daposit/ TEA Inthe name of Croup [ Sponsors
acealint being maintained with Dbl lslam|e Bank or as per 80 ruirements whichevor = higher,

256 This remresents the utllized portion ofwairking capital fac|lity far Short Term Finance armounting to R 136 rrvillion
[Pr2E P M), total fimit of facility for lotter Gf credit =aht arnounts to fz= 500 milfion (2024 H= SO0 million), 5hippm:g
guarantees of Be 500 million [202% Be S00 million cablimit of latter of credit [SGight]] and chort term-finance. &f B 500
rrillian [202% B2 800 rmilllon) (sublimit of letter af cradit [sght)), The ate of mark up on funded Taclities i= 3 months KIBOR
+ 1956 (2023 X rhanthe KIBOR £ 1951

These facilities are-scoured against personal guarantess of directors gloric with thair net worth staterments. These faoilities.
ani SHCUNEO 303Nt I0int par] passu charge of Bo T3g milion (202% Bz 324 million) owor sl oresent and futare ourrent
assets of the Group, TDR covaring 50% of outstanding exposare at all tirnes,

it Reprosents the utilized partion of working capital faciiities far Funds against trust receipt Local Murabaha
amounts to A= 000 rmillien (20235 RBs. NI, total lirmit of funded line Loal Murababa amounts to B 1000 million (202382
Mil), The rate of rark up or funded facilities is ralevant KIBOR « 2% The markup mie darged during the yoar on the
curstanding balance ranged from 28043 to 25 |4% per arifum,



Ihiessl Facllitiesate cotured adainet TRE, jolnt o gazsi PO} ehange of | 000 il sm clirfent scsot PP ebsrcie @ 700

rrilllon an fiked aocote af Subsldiany compadtiyand JP2 eharge on plaistand rrachinely

258 Espresants this ut) [izea port o of wiarking caits| faciites. forshait TenmeFinancs Faciity (ST amounts teds, 750
million [FOZE B Mil)total it of faciity for Latter of comfort (LOE) emiounts: to Bs 1000 mralion [202E B Wil STF
ESpg Tl Taty

AMELNTINS 10 B 500

[ R M) [submirmtof lettar of cormfort). Tha

markup on funces facities =3 rronihs

I BOH=2 50 Thess facililiecars sacured adsNel 162 charge- ol presnt and futtre fiach and current assets, Leny ovar

Shares and Corgorats gugraniees

s SepreEantE theutdized portan of et kireg caoital Bt for Tash brance Faalimy amaunts e S= 00 miliken
AESE B MiT) 1ot [imir of Sclliny for Latter of orahit (5L amauntsto @S [S00 rmlinr (22 85 M|, TiEraly ammourtmd te

B 50 mid[lion OSSR faci|ities k= & months BIBO0-2 000 Thets facilitsss are soviiod

e nll]. The rate af rmarlodp o fun

20alnst ranking charos on present dng fubire cufrent azmats, T30 and PGz of soaney difectody

2410 [his repréconte Shariabicormplant, privataly placed and bneesyres] S ke manithes taie soued during the

year The procseds thansindm wern' LitHired o fimafice the Glalp's warking eapltal retpuiremsant ey carty pindfit at the rate

o & rriant e WKIB0E « | V5K

26 ACCRUED MARKUP

Lomg term loans 20 T O 3559
‘Shoart term borrowings 25 T2 YT A4
SOR L1159

27 CURRENT PORTION OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lomg term loans
Lease fiabilities

N3

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

281 Contingencles.

A nurmber of legal cases have boen filed against the Group by indnaduals at various forums reiating 1o several disputes f differ-
ence of opinion primarily in relation 1o consumer court matters. Due 1o thelr nature, it is not possible to quantify their financial
impact at presont. However, the management and the Group's legal advisors are of the view that the outcome of these cacec
is expected to be favorable and a fiability, if, any. arising on the ssttlement of these cases is not Tikely to be material. Accordingly,
no prowision has been made for any liEbility that may arise ac a result of these cases in these consolidated financial statements.

282 Commltments
Letiers of credit 4 PEF, 406 AL,

29 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Sales - Local 978523 27T
Sarvice income 56342 461
Gross sales X2 (%4 865 688
Less Sales tax (44 TR3.419)

1880507 460
Less: Discount (2248 084 007)
Bun 0742 418267




2024
Hote Fupess Pupoec
Geographical reglon:

pastan
Timing of transfer of goods and services:

Af a point in time 52 0%4 BE5 688

Contract balances
Trade debts ILFTIS 204 o L e rden
Contract hability 9] SIEN044 (LR iser, - of

291 This represents the ligbility recognized in respect of consideration received from customers before the saticfzction of
performance abligation. Revenue recognized in the reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year amounts to F= 167LET million {2073; Rs, 15217 milfion), The balance of contract liability as at June 30, 2024,
is expected to be recognized as reventie within one year.

30 COSTOF REVENUE

Haw material consurned 301 85859 515,106
Sales tax on mohiles 606
Semvice fee ([foreign consultants] 0,784 B4
Regulatory duty 71 BRI 94
Insurance 10.£73577
Clearing charges 109055 108
Salaries. wadges and benefits EICLOl AT
Customn duty - tablets '
Depreciation 63 pan sl
Litifities BT
Amortization 82 1217483
Exchange loss 2
Domestic carmage TAELEO0
B M0 OG0 RO
(increass} / decrease inwork-in-process (T4 B0 T6E)
Cost of goods assamibled BTG 414 7
{Increase) f decreasa in finished goods [LWE 002 939)
Cost of goods sold - Own assemibiad BS 972 401,300
Cost of goods sold - Imported for resale =
Cost of goods sold - Purchased lacally for recale I3 904 T84 750
TS S 46040
301 AsatJuly Ol BiE, S5, T
Purchases during the vear QLS5 657
92 D64 ABR ELE
Closing as at June 30, 16,204,053 550
Faw material consumed B AtO o 106

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

‘Salaries wages and benefits 11 IDT MR OaD
Fent, rates and taxes 847387
Depreciation 03 12ETER 75
Insurance Z195 07
Legal and professional 5406
Repairs and maintenance LA T
Fees and subscription ST NEL4AE

Boo



Lhilities B4 529

Cfice expense 2012125
“Security servico charges DLOATIE
Traveling and comveyance G214 T30
Entertainment ELFT ETT
Vehicle running expenss O 412
Postage and =lephone & IS
Amortization 1EF22H05
Printing and stationary £ 61 B0
Auditors remuneration 6,680,000
Allcrrznce for axpectod credit loss - tade dobts {6,728 455
Charity and donation CO GG 40
Adverticemant ' TASTOET
Miscellaneous expense ZITT R4S

oaT 4RI FTI

Salaries, wages and benefits inciede Rs. 918 milllon (2023 Bs. 16592 million) in respect of gratuity fund.

Breakup of sudimrs remunaration i as follows

Annual audit fee

Review of condensed interim financial statemernis
Out of pocket expensea

Certificates and other assuance engagements

[Juring the year, the Group has not paid donations to any organization, inwhich any director or his spouse has any
imterest. Donation to the following parties f organizations exceads 10% of total amount of donation expense or
Hs. 1 million.

Million smiles foundation £000,000
Sunder stem school =
Support for famity of ex employee (Late Hiaz Noor) 1.8040,000
Customs Health Care Society SO0
APWA Bara Lisgat Craftran’s Colony Waelfare Project 0,500,000
B AD0000
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Salanies, wages and benefits 2] BEEIL021
Freight outward IO T
Advertizament and promotions HOR0904
vaelﬂng and conveyance 2003
Packing expenze L&56. 571
Amortization a7 ZL8976
Utilities 30 855704
Insurance
Postage and communication

Salaries, wages and benefits include Bs. 918 million (2023 Rs. 1693 million] in respect of gratuity fund.
Roo



33

35

OTHER INCOME

Profit on investrments

Unrealired gain on financial aszeis at fair value
through profit of loss

Fair value gain on iInvestmeni property

Rental incomie

Gain on terminaton of leass

Gam on disposal of operating fixed assets

OTHER EXPENSE

Prowvision for Workers' Walfare Fund
Prowision for Workers' Profit Participation
Fund

Increase in impaiment allowance for slow moving and
obsolate stock

Losson disposal of term finance certificate

L oss on disposal of opemting fixed assets
Invastrment  mutusl funds wiitten off

FINANCE COST

Bank charges

Interest / markup on:

- Short t2rm bormowings

- Long term lkans

- Lease habilities

- Workers' Profit Participation Fund

TAXATION
Minimum tax differential

Incorme tax:

Currernt tax
Prior year

Defermed tac
Relating to origination of temporary differences

Relating to rate change

Currant tax imbility for the year as per the Ordinance

Partion of current tax liability as per tax lews representing

income tax undes AS 12

Portion ufc‘un&nttaxwﬁ;mtedagpm @x laws

representing levy in terms of requiremants of IFRIC ZI1AS 27

Boo

242 08 736500
243 296546505

16,446,694
44 450 53]
7293136

Z0L300
£T9472336

308 242 T30

197548858
GELET7SHD
22 460367

BARLTII

297410 185

90146984

[EZ198,847)
G705 42T




I61  Theaggregate of current income tax and minimum tax amounting o Bs 1009236 million (2023 Rs. (48561 miliion]
represents tax liability of the Group calculated under the ralevant provisions of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001

Mota

36.2 Reconclliation between tax expenses and accounting profit

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax atapplicable tax rate of 29% [2023: 29%)

Tax effect of
Exponsos not allowed for tax 97299819
Deductible expenses [Po4 6P EET
Income not allowed for tax (738 455
Deferrad ax E2 198 B4
Prios years tax 206586 AT
Minimum tax -
Tax credits under section &5 (D) for the year (6T7. 308 33
Supor tax ot rato of 0% I 0875
Tax expense for the year

9TTRET AZ7

This includes adjustment of tax credit amounting to Rs 617308 million under section &5 (D). The Group made an
investment in financial year 2021 for establishing and oparating 2 new industrial undertaking. Under the section &5
(D) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the Ordinance), for a pariod of S years beginning financial year 2021, the Group
can claim tax credit against minimam tax and final taxes payable under any of the provisions of the Ordinance on the
taxabie income arizing from such industrial undertaking; calculated with reference to proportion of the equity
investment to the total investment There are no non-tax conditions attached to these credits except source of
financing. Subsequent to the Group's investrment, the Financs Act, 2021 has repealed the section G5 (D) with effective
date of Juky 01, 2021, During the year, the Group availed the tax creditwhile filing the tax raturm for the tax year 2023,
Management of Croup, based on the opinion from the Group's tax advisorn, 1= confident that Group has a legitimate
claim, considering the Group's right to tax credit was established upon investment when cection 65 (D) was in éffect

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders for basic eamings A

Weighted average number of crdinary shares for basic EPS

Earning per share - basic and diluted AR
Bin



I8 RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties include remunsrstion of key management personnel which is disclosed n ot 39

39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the consolidated financial statements in respact of remuneration, including afl benafits to Chiof
Exzcutive, Directors and executives of the Group are as follows

Managesial remuneratzn S B . 10761 1as
Cerainty MG E
Medies! slledancs = g Lozt Tuird
BanLus Temalienl FILOST

o GE2

turnieer of parsans a

The Chief Executive is provided with group-maintained Car No remunerstion = paid to Directors other than ChiefExeautive and one executive
Cirector. Mesating fee amounts to Bs 2,500 000 (2025 3 575,000) are paid to 3 [20Z%: 3} independent Directors. Some esecutives have bean provid-
ad with group maintained vehides and are also entitled to fuel sllowances

40  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJIECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financal iabilities comprise of iong-tenm foen, short-term borrowings, unciaimed dividend and trade and other payables.
The majar portion of these financial mbilties inchude short-term borrowing that is availed o meet the working capital requirement= The
Group's principal financial az=ets include vrade debts. other recevables, loans and advances, deposits, shost -k and long-term investmenis
and r=sh and bank balanoes

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit rsk and lkgquidity risk. The Croup's senkor management oversees the risk profile and & supported by
the finance department that adwvises on financial risks and the appropriate financal risk governance framework for the Group,. This department
also provides assurance tothe Croup'ssenior management that the Group's financial risk-taking activitiss are govarned by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks are [dentified, messured and managed in accordancs with Group’s policies and rsk appetite. The Board
nfmecmmrwmmjdapmpﬂfnﬁfu’magmgmdﬁ of these risks which are summarized below:

£0.1 Market risk

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fied to fioating imarest rates of the debsts and
the proportion of financial mstrurments in foreign curencies are all constant

The sensitivity anabysis has been based on the assumpoon that the sensitivity of the relevant profnt or loss tem is the effect of the assumed
changes in respect of market risks This is based on the financial 2ssets and financial iabifities held at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2073,

£0.1] Interest rate risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a ressonably possible change ininterest rates aon above mentioned financial instruments:
With all other variatves held constant, the Group’s profit before tax s affected through the impact on ficating mEte borowings as Tollows:
2024

Rupess
Incigase f decieste o1 Lass pois o f=100 « /- 700
Efftect an prohl Defoie Ias R E 95T AT

£0.1.2 Currency risk

Currency rick is the risk that the walus or future cash Nows of financial instruments will fiectiate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency rek arises mainly from recatvables and payables that exist due 1o ransactions in foreign cumencies. The Group s not matarially
exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates as the brand owners have agreed tn compensate fior any Muctuations in foreign comen-
Cy movesments

#0.1.3 Cther price risk

Cher price risk repiesents the riek that the fair value or future cash lows of 8 financial instrument will fluctuate becau=e of changes in market
prices [other than these arising from interest rate risk or cumency risk), whether thoss changes are @ussd by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument of its iEswer, or factors affecting all smilar fimancial instruments baded m the market.

402 Credicrisk

Credit rish s the ask which arises with the possibility that one party to 3 financil instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the
ather party to incura Ainancial loss. The Group attemipts o control credit sk by momntoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with speafic
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. The Group does not believe it is exposed to major concentra-
tion of credit: risk, however to manage any passible exposiie the Group apphes approved credit Tmits toits customers. Cradit risk is the risk that
@ counterparty will ot mest its obligations under a financial imstroment or customer contract, leading to s fimancial loss The Croup is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities, primariy for trade debts

e



The management monitces and limits the Group's exposure to credit fick through maonitoring of cients credit
exposure review and conservative estimates of provisions for expected credit loss, if any, and through the prudent use
of collateral palicy. Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to custormer oredit fisk management Crodit imits and quality are established for all custormers based on
individual customer evaluation. The Group is exposed to credit risk on trade debts, other recaivables, deposits, loans
and advances, short-termm and long-t=rmm investmeants and bank balances The Group seeks to minimize the credit risk
exposure through having expocures only to customers considored credit worthy and oblaining securities where
applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk a2t tha reporting date is

2024
Rupsas

Trade debts - unsecured ITFT 0204
Other recenabiles 707 E06TE
Shart-term investments 280040 I58

Bank balances

The credit quality of financial assets can ba assessed by reference to external credit ratings or the historcal
information about counter party defaults as shown below.
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An impairmeant analysis |s performed 5t ezch reporting date using 3 provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segrments with similar loss potrerns {2 by product type, customer
type and rating), The cakculation reflects the probabifity-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and suppartahie
informstion that is available at the reporting date sbout past events, cumrent conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The maximurm exposure o credit risk at the feporting date is the canmying vslue of sach class of financial assets. The Group does not
hodd collateral as security. The lotters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered integral part of trade receivabiles and
considerad in the calculstion of impairment The information: about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade debts using a
ptmlslmfmatﬁ:isgmm

4022 Bank balances, long-term and short-term Investments, and other recelvables

Credit rick from balances with banks and financial institutions s managed by the Croup’s finance department in accordance with the Group's

poficy. Investments of surplus funds dre made only with approved counterparties and within oredit Timits assigned to sach counterparty.

Counterparty credit imits are reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and miay be updated throughout the year subject

to approval of the Chisf Exocutave: The fimits are st to minimize the concentration of rishs and therefore mitsgate financial loss through a

counterparty’s potential falure to make payments
Financial inathtution

Cash and bank balances
adlied Banke Limned

kst Bamik Larribed
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£023  ‘With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, the Group's Management assesses exposure to
such risk to be minimal based on past ekperience and s restricted to the camying amount of those assets

403 Uguidicy risk

Liguictity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to mest s commitments associated with financial fizbilities when they 51l due. Liquidsy
requiremens ane moritored regularky and managemient snsures that sufficient liguid funds are svailable t© mest any commitments as they
arise, The table below summarzes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contaciual undiscounted payment=
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405 Fimarmclal instruments by categores

2025

Financisl pssats
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Financial assets
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&1 Caplital Management

The Group's:objectives when mansgmg capital are 1o ssfeguard the group’s abiflity to continue &5 8 Qg Concerm 5o that i .can continue ko
provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other sakeholders. In rder to maintain or edjust the Gpital structure, the Group may adjust
the return capital to shareholders, isswe new shares of 2l assets o reduce debt '

Boo



Consistent with the industry nonms, the Group menitors its capital on the basis of gearing rtio, The atio is caloulated = net dobt divided by
otz capitad phus debt. Net debt i= caicubted as total borrowings 3s shown n the statement of financal position less cash and cash equivalents
Total capital is calouisted as '=quity” as shown in the consofidated statement of financial position plus net debt fas defined above).

Tree dhebt to equity ratic s as lnlies=

Log term loans 29595 THE TV,
Short term boreowinas

Cash and cash eguivalent

Met dett TS0 NSE
Total egulty f 2228 541634

Total capital - BASTETITEE
Capital gearing etio | o 3ME

42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES
Falr value measurement of financial iInstruments

The camrying valuss of all financial assets and liabifites reflected in the consolidated financial stataments approdimate their fairvalues. Fairvaloe
s the price that would be received to sell #n asset or paid to transfer-a liabilty in an orderty transaction m the principal {or most advantageous)
markst at the measurement date under current market conditions [Le. an exit price} regardless of whether that price is directly obsarvable or
estimated using another valuation technigue.

The Group wsas the foflowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the Birvalue of finandsal instruments by valuation technigue:

Lavel Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabifities.

Leyel & Cther techriques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair vafue are obsenvable, either directly or

Lovel & Technigues which usae inputs which have a signifecant effect on the recordad fakr value that are not based on observable markst
data.

Fair value versus camrylng amounts

The fair values of financial assets and EalEftes. together with the camying amounts shown n the consobdated staternent of financial posstion,
are as follows

Fair value hierarchy

The management assessad that the fairvalues of all financial assets and financial fiabilities, camed st amortized cost; spprodmate thair camying
gmounts Brgely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The following mble shows the camying amounts and fair values of
financial instruments carred at fair valoe, incdoding their lovels in the fairvalue herarciy:

Financlal assets at falr value
through profit or loss:

June 30, 2024
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CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
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451 Ceagraahicsl Infarmaton

The Greup's revenue from exesrnal customars by gsagraghica! kecation = detsted below:

LT 3 Y E O CR0 T

Pakistan

Al nom-ourrant as=ets of the Croup 3= at reporting dstes are Ioceted and operating in Pakistan

453 Revenie from ¥isomi Palistan (Privets) Limited repressnts mars than W% amournting to P 73650 000 470 [O0T-A=
15,43 308 B850} of the Croup's tots| revanes

4523 |nter segment =les puwrchases ana bafandss hawve boeen aliminatsd

456 SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

Following nformaton has been deckosed with the reference to disclouses requirements of fowrth schedute of the Compames Act, 20017 refating
o all shiores bslamic ndes

Description Ezplanation
Chidii lial codmpliant Sukk Irlrest BEaaring
SharT TE T DorTiesangs INtres=: Eaaring
Dk bublaree == o7 Jume 0, Placsid yrstier Shanialy permeslble

obrbos s s any Elamie mded e oF Tnsniclivg

Relationship with banks having islamic windows

Bank Mame Region HNature of transactions
Alfsiah |skamic Tezana smdand furd PiEkist=n Sharizhcompiant Skoek
MEtah stEmic monsy market fund Pakistsn ShEfahcompiant Saakuk
Mecran rorana gmdapifund Pslistsn Snafiah compiant Sukuk
hoozzn daily income fime Pzkistsn Shanahcomphant Sukosk
Meszsnoash fund Pzkistan Shanancomphant Sukousk
COC trustes-Fales) lslarmic finandist growth fund Pskistz=n Sharish compliart Sukiuk
CEC trustee-Fales| financial sector npborinity fund Pakisean Shasish complant Sukuk
L0 pustes NER Elamic money markst fund Fzkiztan Shariah compdizrt Sukuh
£ pustes- NBD =lsmuc daily dividend fund Pakistan Sharish compiant Sukuh
Fai=al Bank Limit=d Pakisrsn Taijar=h fimance facliby
Crubai klarmic Eank Pzhkistan LCurrent-account
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47 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

&7 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 0Z, 2024 have proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30,
2024 of Rs. 4 per share (2023 B 2.5 per share), amounting to Rs-1 581076924 (2025 Re 98B, T73.077) for approval of the members at the-Anmual
Teneral Mesting o be held on September 27, 2024 These consolidated fimancal statements do not reflect this dividend.

£72 Sobsequent toyvear end onoAugust 20, 2024 Acer Gadget Inc, announced a strategic partniershipwith Alr Link Commumication Limited
[Adrink) to mtroduce “Acer Gadoes el laptops, tablets, and afl-in-one devices (o the Pakistan market Airlink has: been granted distribution
rightsand has entered an exclushe asieml:l'ln_g agresment with Acer Gadget's manufscturing panner, Shanghsi Sixunited Intelligent Techniol-
ogy Co. Lid. to assemble these Products at Airfink’s Lahore. Pakistan, faciioe

48 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-amanged, whereyer necessary, for better presentation. Significant reclassifications are as follows:

Description From To. Amount

Advances to erployess sgairist salany Loans and advances Long term loapsand deposits 3736863
Erpected rredi o= Ohar income Agministrave =panse 10,0386482
Contract lishifries Contract iabijiines Trade paysbies accrued 3nd otner haailines Fashc pedo. |

Asthe impact of the above reclasslicstions on bahrmin&emuﬂﬂaEdMquﬁmmjalpnsiﬁcm == on Juby U1, H27 is not material,
na statements-of financial position asof that date has been presentod.

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
Thesa finamcial staterients were authotized by Board of Uirectors or Monday, September 2, 2024

50 GEMNERAL

Figures have leon rounded off to the rupees unless statied otherwise.

goo
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

Notice of the TI** Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY CIVEN that the Tith Annual Ceneral Meeting (AGM) of Air Link Communication Lirmnit-
ed (the Company) will be held on Thursday, September 26, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. at Pearl Continental Hotel,
Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan as well as through enline video conferencing facility to trans-
act the following business;

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2024 together with the Directors and Auditors’ reports thereon,

2. To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their rernuneration for the financial year 2024-25. The
Board of Directors have recommended for re-appointrment of BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered
Accountants as external auditors for the financial year 2024-25,

3. 3}To consider and approve the payment of final cash dividend & X¥% e Rs XXX per share of Bs 10
each held by the members as recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in addition to interim
cash dividend i@ 20% e Fs. 2.00 per share of Rs. 10 each.

B. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Totransact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair,

Hy the order of the Board

Lahore: September 5, 2024 (AMER LATIF)
Company Secretary



AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

Notice of the TI** Annual General Meeting

NOTES:

1. Book Closure

Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Friday, September 20, 2024 to Thursday,
Septemnber 26, 2024 (both days inclusive) and no transfers will be registered dunng that time. To ensure
that any share transfer deeds are registered in time for the above entitlement, they must be received by
the Company's Share Registrar at CDC Share Reqistrar Services Umited, COC House, 99-B, Block B
SMCHS Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, Karachi-74400, Tel Customer Support Services (Toll Fres)
OB00-CDCPL (23275), Fax: {92-21) 34326053, Email: infoifcdesrsl.com, Website: www.cdosslcom by the
close of business on Thursday, September 19, 2024,

2. Appointment of Proxy and participation in the AGM

A member of the Company who is erititied to attend and vote at the Annual General Mesting may appoint
another membear as their proxy to attend and vote on their behalf. To be considered valid, proxy forms
must be duly stamped, signed, and submitted to the Registered Office at 152/1 — M, Quaid-e-Azam
Industrial Estate, Kot Lakh Pat, Lahore, at least 48 hours prior to thie meeting. Please note that the proxy
must be a mermber of the Company. Proxy Forms are available in both Urdu and English and can be found
attached to the notice circulated to shareholders, as well a5 on the Company's website at
https/fwww airlinkcommunication.comyinvestor-information.

Members, who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Comnpany of Pakistan will further have
to fallow the under menticned guidelines.

a. Attending of Meseting in Person:

i. Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder andfor the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration detail are uploaded as per the regulations, shall
authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)/
ariginal passport at the tirne of attending the meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attormey with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting.

b. Appointment of Proxies:

i.  Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and for the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit
thie proxy form as per the above requirement.

il. Attested copies of CHIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

ii. The proxy shall produce his/her eriginal CNIC/original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attormey with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Cornpany.



AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

Notice of the TI** Annual General Meeting

3.

Online Registration to participate in the meeting

The members can also participate in the AGM through zoom video link facility.

To attend the meeting. members are reguested 1o register themself by providing the following
mformiation along with a valid copy of CNIC {both sides)/ passport or attested copy of board resolution
/ power of attomey (in case of corporate shareholders) through  email at
agmidairlinkcommunication.net on or before Thursday, September 26, 2024;

Mame of CNIC No. CDC Account

ShareHolder No. / Folio No CAiENG Emall Address

4.

Members who are registered, after the necessary venfication, will be provided a video link by the
Company on the said email address. The login facility will rermain open from 09:45 am. till the end of
the mesting.

Bank Account detail

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Cormpanies Act. 2017, it 1s mandatony for a listed Company to pay
cash dividend to its members only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

E.

In order to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in
Electronic Credit Mandate Form available an Company's website at
https/fevwweairinkcommunication.com/investor-information and send it duly signed along with a
copy of CNIC to the Shares Registrar of the Company CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, COC
House, 99-B, Block 'B' S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, in case of physical shares,

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to
shareholder's broker/participant/COC account services. Mo further action is required if IBAN has
already been incorporatedfupdated in the COC account or physical folio of the shareholder.

Change of address

mMembers holding shares in physical form are requested to prormmptly notify the Company's Shares
Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Lirnted, 93-B Block B, SMCHS, Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi of
any change in their addresses through a written request. Whereas, for shareholders maintaining their
shares in electronic form, please ensure that vour addresses are updated with your respective CDC
participant or the CDC Investor Accounts Service.



AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

Notice of the TI** Annual General Meeting

6. Financial Statement

In accordance with Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, and S.R.0. 3859{1}/2023 dated March 21, 2023,
we have sent the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, along
with the Chairman's Review Report, and the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports, via email to all shareholders
who have provided their ernaill addresses. Additionally, these documents are available on the Company's
website at the following link and QR code: .

httpsy/fwww.airinkcommunication.com/investor-information

7. Change in email address

Members are responsible for promptly notifying the Shares Begistrar of any changss at CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B' SM.CHS. Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi,
Karachi-74400, Tel Custorner Support Services [Toll Free) 0800-CDCPL (23275), Fax (92-7) 34326053,
Email infoi@cdesrsicom, Website: wiww.cdosrsl com

8. Deduction of Income Tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001

Members are responsible for promptly notifying the Shares Registrar of any changes at CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B° SMCHS. Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi,
Karachi-74400, Tel Customer Support Services (Toll Frees) 0800-CDCPL (23275), Fax: (92-21) 34326053,
Email: infoi@cdosrsl.com, Website: www.cdosrsl.com

i The rates of deduction of income tax from dividend payments under Section 1580 of the Incorme Tax
Ordinance, 2001 shall be as follows:

a) Persons appearing in Active Tax Pavers List [ATL) 15%
bl Persons not appearing in Active Tax Payvers List [ATL) 20%

iL To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the armount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of
F0%, shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the
website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure thattheir names are enterad
in ATL before the first day of book closure, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30%
instead of 15%.

il withholding Tax exermption from the dnadend income, shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax
exemption certificate or stay order from a competent court of law is made available to CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, by the first day of Book Closure.

. In case of joint account, please intimate proportion of shareholding of each account helder along
with their individual's status on the ATL According to clarfication received from Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR), with-holding tax will be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal
shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

V. In this regard all shareholders whe hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding
Proportions of Principal shareholders and Joint-holder{s) in respect of shares held by them {only if niot
already provided) to our Shares Registrar, inwriting as follows:

Principal Shareholder Jolnt Shareholder
Company | Folio/CDS |  Total Shareholding Shareholding
NEII"I"IE ACCOunl’# SharEE NamE E‘Iﬂd prapar“nn NEITTTE Elnd prapm[un
CNICH CNICEH
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)




AIR LINK COMMUNICATION LIMITED

Notice of the TI** Annual General Meeting

(wi] The required information must reach our Shares Registrar within 10 days of this netice; otherwise it
will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint-holder{s).

{vil} Corporate shareholders having CODC accounts are required to have their Mational Tax Mumber (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy
of their NTH certificate to the Company or CDC Share Registrar Senvices Limited. Shareholders while
sending NTN or NTHN certificates, as the case may be, must quote Company name and their respactive
folio numbers. Without the NTN company would not be in a position to check filer status on the ATL and
hence higher tax of 30% may be applied in such cases.

[vili) Members who desire to stop deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submit a declaration on
rion-judicial stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted eariier).

fix] ‘wWithholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax
exemption certificate is made available to our Share Registrar by first day of Book Closure.

9. Conversion of Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form

Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 mandates that all companies transit their physical shares 1o a
book-entry form within a timeframe to be specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP). Shareholders holding physical shares are strongly encouraged to open an account with
the Central Depository Cornpany (CDC] or establish a sub-account with any registered broker to facilitate
the conversion of their physical shares into a scriptless format. This transition offers numerous advantages
for shareholders, including enhanced security for share custody and the ability to sell shares at their
convenience. it is important to note that trading in physical shares is currently prehibited under the
regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

Air Link Communication Limited

1521 = M, Quaid-e-Azam, Industrial Estate,
Kot Lakh Pat Lahore

| of

a member of Air Link Communication Limiied hereby appoint Mr son of

of

or failing him son of of

who isfare also membesis of Air Link Communication Limited to act as my/our proxy and to vote for

mefus and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Mesting of the shareholders of the Company to be

held an the day of 202  and at any adjournment thereof
Signedthis _ day of 202

Falio COC Padicipant CDC Account/ Mo. of

Mo |0 Ne: b-A th held

E ¢ | SnACToum e | chmpsie Signature on Rs.50/-
Revenue Stamp

Witness:1 Witness:2
Signature Signature
Name Mame
CINCE CINC#
Address Address
Notes:

1. The proxy must be a member of the Company

2 The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the Company.

3. If a proxy is granted by 2 member who has deposited his/her shares in Central Depositary
Company of Pakistan Limited, the proxy must be accompanied with parficipant's 1D
number and CDC account/sub-account number along with atiested photocopies of
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the beneficial owner
Representatives of corporate: members should bring the usual documents required for
such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting excluding holidays
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